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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
April 13, 2009 is now in session. Good morning, Members. I hope you had a
wonderful Easter weekend. At this time the Chair would like to introduce the
Members that are present this morning. We do have Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Nishiki. Member Mateo and
Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members Molina,
Johnson, Kaho' ohalahala, Medeiros. They'll be coming in later on this morning.
Upfront we do have personnel from Administration. We do have the Budget
Director, Mr. Fred Pablo; the Deputy Director of Housing and Human Concerns,
Jo-Ann Ridao; and also our First Deputy Corporation Counsel Traci Fujita
Villarosa. Supporting the Committee are Lance Taguchi as well as Gayle Revels,
both of them are Legislative Analysts, and also Yvette Bouthillier who is our
Committee Secretary.
Members, we do have people signed up for public testimony this morning. For
those that are providing testimony this morning, you have three minutes to
provide your testimony, if you can identify yourself and the organization that you
represent. Once you conclude with your testimony if you could stay a while,
Members may have questions for you. But before we take in public testimony,
members of the audience, if can turn off your cell phones to the silent mode or
turn it off, your Chair would appreciate that.
Okay. Members, the first person to sign up for public testimony this morning is
Todd Lawson followed by Trevor Tokishi.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. LAWSON: Good morning, Chair and Council Members. My name is
Todd Lawson. I'm here to represent, my representation is twofold. I'm here as a
long-term resident of Maui County and a father as well as a business manager for
Akimeka, LLC, located in the Research and Technology Park in Kihei. I'd like to
thank you for your time, I know you guys have sat through several testimonies in
the last few weeks. So I appreciate that support from you in listening to the
community. I'm here to ask for your continued support of the Maui Economic
Development Board and also offer my testimony for my support. We've been a
partner with MEDB for the past ten-plus years within the Research and
Technology Park, since 1997. We have shared goal and that's to create long-term
clean science and technology jobs for our children as well as giving the ability for
the kamaaina to come home to a, a good salary positions within the County of
Maui. As you, you may have heard in the last few weeks, Akimeka has been very
successful and I think that success has been crucial, and it's been helped along by
our partnership with the Maui Economic Development Board. Our owner just
received the Best Small Businessman of the Year for Hawaii and Akimeka was
also voted one of the top ten small businesses within the State. You know, these
types of awards can't happen unless we're creating strong partnerships with the
community, and our partnership with the Maui Economic Development Board has
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been very successful. Our success also is their success and vise versa, their
success also creates success for us. I'm anxious for the next year, we're starting
several initiatives with the MEDB, and that's within the green energy technology
areas and renewable energies. So I just, you know, just continue the support for
MEDB We're there and our success is really because of them. So that's really
all I have. Are there any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. LAWSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Trevor Tokishi followed by Leslie Wilkins.
MR. TOKISHI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. TOKISHI: My name is Trevor Tokishi and I, I work for a credit union and I, I
wanted to share a story with you, a story that, you know, recently is becoming too
common, too regular. Single mom of two loses her part-time job, gets her hours
cut at her main job and of course loses her medical insurance. She, she comes to
us for a loan for, for medical expenses for her kid. We pull her credit report and
the credit score is shot, you know. For the most part the credit report was, was
okay, you know, but it was her Sears bill. She hadn't paid her Sears bill for
nearly four months. And when we asked her about it, she said she had bought a
washer on her Sears card way back when and that washer wasn't working
anymore, you know, it was sitting in her backyard. You see, she thought that
because she wasn't using it anymore she didn't have to pay for it anymore, and
that lack of awareness, you know, ruined her credit score. I'm here today to ask
you to maintain funding for the Maui Economic Development Board for three
reasons: one, because of their focus on financial literacy; two, because of their
focus on economic diversification; and three, because of their focus on our
community. You know, we all know, first of all, that we are in the worst
economic crisis that we've seen in our lifetime probably. And, you know, it's
easy to blame the big execs on Wall Street, you know, the AIGs of the world.
You know, quite frankly, I get upset myself when I think about it, you know. It
kind of feels like, you know, we got screwed a little bit for lack of a better term.
But I also really believe that a lot of it could have been prevented with better
financial education on all of our parts. You know, just because someone told you,
you could qualify for that big mortgage or qualify for that fancy new car or credit
card, you know, it didn't mean that you could afford it, you know, and a lot of us
are guilty of overextending and overbuying and, and contributing actually to this
problem. This past year the Maui Economic Development Board partnered with
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the Hawaii Council on Economic Education to, in this economic cadre program,
you know, which I had the fortune of being involved with a little bit. But what
this program did was bring economics back into the classroom. You know, and I
think MEDB's commitment to nurture this life skill in our kids at this, at this time
is going to be vital for their future and, and for all of ours. Secondly, MEDB's
whole mission is to work towards diversity, diversification of our economy, you
know, and they've had some very positive results. And I think that, you know,
this, this diversification is going to be crucial for, for, it is crucial for our kids to
have options, you know, in front of them on Maui going forward and to help us
out in further economic situations, you know, so we're not just tied in to one or
two industries. Thirdly and finally, MEDB has their fmger on the pulse of our
community, you know, through this Focus Maui Nui and continuing outreach and
surveys. They are able to articulate, you know, the core values of our community
and I think, you know, that, that as decision-makers -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. TOKISHI: --you know, MEDB's—wrap it up real quick. MEDB is crucial to you
and to all of us. And so to wrap it up real quick, you know, I'm hopeful that
instead of our residents being in tough positions just because of their lack of
awareness or, or lack of education or lack of opportunity, you know, instead with
MEDB's continued efforts and your continued funding of those efforts, instead
our residents and in fact our whole County will be in a better position to take
advantage of opportunities as they arise. Thank you very much, Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning?
Thank you, Trevor.
MR. TOKISHI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Leslie Wilkins followed by Jeanne Skog.
MS. WILKINS: Aloha and good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Council.
My name is Leslie Wilkins and I serve as Vice-President of Maui Economic
Development Board. I direct our science, tech, engineering and math education
and workforce development initiatives with special outreach to girls, women,
native Hawaiians and other historically underserved populations in science, tech
and engineering. Our approach has always been to strengthen the pipeline from
K-through-12 education through postsecondary and actually working with our
companies one-on-one to recruit and retain our homegrown talent pool. We have
two approaches. We work to educate the educator with increased stem skills
because there's a big multiplier effect on that. And we also honor our culture by
aligning the sophisticated science in our host culture with scientific career
opportunities and technical career pathways for our young people today. Most of
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our funding is Federal funding. In fact 90 percent of our education and workforce
portfolio is Federal funding. We were honored to receive significant investment
from the recent Omnibus Appropriation Act. But let me clarify two significant
points. First of all, that money is quite restricted for specific purposes in
education and workforce. We are not allowed to use, Federal speak, disallowable
costs, I believe is the appropriate term, for business development, business
expansion and support of our existing companies and new companies we're
hopeful to grow in renewable energy. You heard firsthand this morning the
importance of having an on-the-ground company to help build new jobs within
companies, business growth plans. We've heard throughout the Budget hearings
several companies that took the time to step forward and tell us that. So as you
know we cannot just swap out, if you will, any loss in local or County funding
through our Federal investment. In fact, it has to work hand-in-hand with what
we receive from you from the County Council. The second point I wanted to
make about our Federal portfolio is because we have some season experience in
Federal contracts management, we are often looked to, to administer some of our
programs with our other partners Statewide. In fact, about half of that
appropriation will go through subcontracting to whether it's the Lanai Women's
Center or whether it's our counterparts with Kauai Economic Development
Board, Hawaii Island Economic Development Board or actually supporting staff
on Oahu. So we're honored to do that, but keep in mind about 50 percent of that
is retained here on Maui County. We would like to commend you for your
long-term investment in education and workforce development knowing that
you're building a critical infrastructure. In fact, you're building the critical
thinking skills that we need in our young people-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. WILKINS: --through the new jobs that are on their horizon. We serve 6,500
participants Statewide each year. We educate educators and we help our students
with project-based learning. You know EAST well, 800 students here in Maui
County. And as their projects continue to grow, more and more of them are going
into the renewable energy components. We offer job shadowing, mentoring,
internships, all a continuum to bring our young people into the new jobs of the
21 st Century. In closing, there's an old adage, the chicken or the egg. Do we
grow the jobs of the future and then do we educate the local workforce for those
jobs? Or do we educate the local workforce in preparation and then do we grow
the jobs and support the companies with their business plans? The answer is we
must do both together, we must work in concert. And the critical investment you
give us here at the County allows us to leverage, go forward and patchwork
together the funding we need to bring both of those forward together. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for testifying. At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the
presence of Councilmember Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Jeanne Skog followed by Teya Penniman
MS. SKOG: Good morning, Council Chair, Council Members. Happy Easter, belated.
Thank you very much for this opportunity and thank you for the partnership that
you have provided MEDB from our inception. It's, you haven't, the partnership
has not been limited to funding. It really has been about your invaluable
participation in a lot of the things that we have done. Economic development, no
matter what the action is, involves a public/private nonprofit partnership and you
have really been there for everything that we have done. So we thank you very
much for that and appreciate it. As Leslie related in her testimony, most of our
County line item goes to business development and business assistance. Business
development funding is some of the toughest funding to get in any climate which
is why economic development organizations like ours across the US usually get
funding from their government partners for this purpose. This is a really difficult
year and we, we definitely understand that. But we are asking you to restore
25,000 of the $50,000 cut we, that is currently in the budget so that we can
continue to be aggressive in business development right now. I want to
particularly focus my comments on our pursuit of renewable energy to underscore
that request. Many pieces are coming together right now and I want to describe
some of them to you. This is in the area of renewable energy. Maui County has a
distinct competitive advantage in this renewable energy cluster. We can do solar,
we can do wind, we can do ocean, hydropower and if we even wanted to as a
community, we could do geothermal. That doesn't, that, in addition to that
there's a lot of efficiency measures that we can take. So we've got all of these
assets available to us that I can tell you many other communities across the US do
not have. Renewable, and then these renewable energy applications will have
benefit across the board with other businesses and homeowners. Our, our Mayor
has made it very clear that this is a priority for her. The Federal Department of
Energy is on the Mayor's Maui Renewable Energy Steering Committee along
with MEDB and Maui Community College. In parallel, the State has its own
Hawaii Clean Energy Initiative that is working in partnership with the Maui effort
lead by the Mayor. The Department of Energy has framed several policy changes
and brought in significant technical assistance to Hawaii. Senator Inouye has
secured millions of dollars for funding local companies who are developing
renewable energy technology. The Federal Energy Act that was passed just late
last year by Congress renewed renewable energy credits and added new
incentives for investment.
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MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. SKOG: Both the Stimulus Bill and the Omnibus Bill has emphasized renewable
energy development and application and, this is really important, going forward
the Federal Department of Energy expects that funding for renewable energy to
continue to grow over the next years of the Obama Administration. So here's the
challenges. We've got to keep positioning Maui County to get our share of this
funding and to take advantage of the opportunities of our connecting companies,
connecting with companies, investors, funding, as I said, and partnerships. And
so with our request to restore the 25,000, this will help us to maintain that and not
diminish it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier this morning?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
MS. SKOG: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Teya Penniman followed by Susie Thieman
MS. PENNIMAN: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. I'm
Teya Penniman, Manager of the Maui Invasive Species Committee. I will try and
keep it brief. I know you've seen me before and some of our Hana crew members
had a chance to testify when you were in Hana. Very briefly, I wanted to thank
you, Chair Pontanilla, for sending me information about potential sources and
information from Federal stimulus money. I did take a close look at that;
unfortunately, very little of that money is slated to come to Maui County. A small
portion of funding from the Fish and Wildlife Service, we might be able to see a
bit of that. That will, will go a very small way towards helping to offset the
substantial losses we're expecting at the State. I also want to thank you, Council
Chair Mateo, for the efforts I know you're making in going to Oahu to try and
keep the TAT money here in, in Maui and, and to all of you for the support that
you're putting out to keep that money here, which I know is critical to the overall
County budget. We understand that things are in flux and I totally appreciate
what a difficult job you have trying to craft a budget without really knowing how
much money we have. The Maui Invasive Species Committee is certainly willing
to shoulder its fair share of, of reductions, but we are hoping that we will not see
any substantial losses given the significant cuts we're expecting at the State level.
Because, really, protection of our natural resources can't wait. We hear time and
again that the, that the environment is the economy, and yet both at the State and
the County level it's really a very small percentage of the budget that we have
allocated for that. Finally, I did want to also invite you to the 2009 International
Miconia Conference which will be held in Keanae the early part of next month.
You should be receiving one of these in your offices. This is an opportunity for
Maui to host an international gathering of researchers and natural resource
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managers from across the world, but particular the, particularly the Pacific, and
also for us to showcase the work that we're doing in Maui County with the
support of the County. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, questions for the testifier this
morning? Seeing none, thank you, Teya. Chair would like to recognize the
presence of Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala. Good morning. Susie Thieman
followed by Jordan Jokiel.
MS. THIEMAN: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Members of the Council. I'm
speaking to you this morning as the President of the Maui Non-Profit Directors
Association. On behalf of our 68 member agencies, I would like to thank you for
your support over the years and emphasize that we truly do appreciate your
concern for the citizens of Maui County. Your concern shows each time you
allocate funds to help those of your neighbors who are in need, whether the need
is temporary or long-term. It is because of your concern and the support that
many of our member agencies exist. The funding you provide is for many the
funding that allows for basic services to be given to our clients. For some of our
agencies your funding is supplemental to other sources of funding but integral to
the overall performance of our service to Maui County citizens. In discussing
need, we should remember that the services provided by our member agencies
cover the scope of needs in our community. Some are social service, some health,
some environmental, some literacy and so on. The success of your investment in
our agencies can be measured in the numbers of people who have been assisted
through the years, and if the need was temporary, the best outcomes are the
futures these people have ahead of them. Where the need is of a more permanent
nature, the success is measured in the ability to provide that assistance that allows
our neighbors to live a better life than if we were not there for them. As you face
some of the most difficult decisions of your lives, the funding for the 2010
Budget, we can only try to understand the dilemma that you face, finding the
money to fund the budgets we have made so lean that cutting $1,000 could mean
shutting down entire projects or programs within our agencies. We truly operate
with the leanest of budgets. Over the years we have requested only increases to
cover costs that we have no control over, utilities, insurance, et cetera, while we
try to increase service levels to meet the growing needs in the community. We
are the most efficient and cost effective agencies you'll find around the country.
We have been doing more with less for more years than we have time to talk
about this morning. Over the past month you've been hearing from our clients
during your Countywide Budget hearings. You've heard stories from clients that
simply took your breath away, and you've heard from the heart reports of clients
who never believed they could learn to do what they are now doing. Today you
will be hearing from executive directors of our agencies who have been providing
these services. As they ask for funding, they really believe they need to continue
to provide the level of service you have come to expect from them. You've heard
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many over the past weeks talk about how much the need is during these troubling
times. Some of you have asked testifiers for the various agencies if they could
makeup the deficit if you reduce their funding from last year's amounts. I've
heard some say yes, they think they can. One thing I'd like for you to consider
when you're deliberating about our making up this funding is that each hour we
take to work on other fundraising efforts is an hour we have to give up working
with clients.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. 'THIEMAN: Fundraisers for this year are being cancelled by organizations that find
the money that was available last year is not there this year. Businesses and
individuals who normally donate are finding it difficult if not impossible to meet
the growing list of requests they are getting for assistance. We are program
people, our staffs are made up of program people, many of us do not have any
administrative staff, we do it all. We do the programs and the paperwork for the
reports that tell our story. We work one-on-one with our clients. We know the
need and the need is great and ongoing. In closing, I'd like to once again thank
you for the careful and conscientious deliberations you're about to begin
regarding the 2010 Budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You have another piece that you want to talk
about, Teya [sic]? And then we'll take the two as, I'll ask the questions for the
Members to, to ask you. You had two items to testify on?
MS. THIEMAN: Oh, I didn't bring the other one down. I was going to wait till later.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you was going to wait?
MS. THIEMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you just as well do it right now since you're there.
MS. THIEMAN: I have to go get it. . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . .
MS. THIEMAN: Here we go.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. THIEMAN: Thank you very much, Chair Pontanilla. With my other hat as CEO of
MEO Business Development Corp., we presented a budget to the Mayor's Office
of Economic Development that is as lean as last year's; however, it reflects an
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increase of $9,000 in requested funding. This request was to cover the loss of
income we're seeing from fees that our clients in the past were able to pay, but
now due to layoffs and reduced hours at work cannot pay. As you begin to
deliberate on the Budget for 2010 this sounds like a request that is simply out of
order, especially when the Mayor cut our funding from the 215 we received in
2009 to only 200,000 for 2010. That means we're really asking for 24,000 more
than is in the Mayor's Budget. That's the bad news. Now for the good news, I
may know where you can fmd the money to fulfill our request. May I take just a
couple of minutes to tell you. In 1997 and '98, MEO requested and received
grants from CDBG to establish a micro-loan fund program in the amount of
$112,000. For the next five years MEO's Maui Micro-Enterprise Program not
only changed its identify to MEO BDC, but also ran a very successful micro-loan
fund. After five years, MEO BDC requested an amendment to the original grant
to allow for bad debt write-offs. That request threw HUD and the CDBG office
for a loop. HUD had done grants like these across the country and had never had
anyone provide, open the door to bad debt write-offs. The reason is that the
original grant provided for write-offs and that it stated that the revolving loan
fund created by the grant would continue through the repayment of principal and
interest by the clients. As the County and HUD tried to figure out how to resolve
the issue, the County in 2004 told MEO BDC to stop making loans using this fund
until this matter was resolved. I started later that year. When I tried to resolve the
issue by showing CDBG that there was in fact no issue, the matter was covered by
the original grant wording, they decided we needed to do a new grant as the old
one had been closed and filed. In discussing the terms of the new grant, the MEO
BDC board agreed with me that since we had a million dollar line of credit from
our bank to fund loans now, trying to negotiate a new grant with the County for
$112,000 seemed unnecessary to the program. We then set out to formally close
out the old grant. In closing that grant we paid the County over $102,000, that
was the amount being collected and held in the special account set up for the
program. In the six years of this grant MEO BDC made more than $402,000
worth of loans using that $112,000 and still had 102,000 to return to the County.
Here's where I'm led to believe the funding for our request can come from. My
understanding is that these funds are being held pending a resolution to you, the
Council -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. THIEMAN: --for its use. Was it two or three?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, can you go ahead and finish up.
MS. 'THIEMAN: Thank you very much. We have been watching for this resolution over
the past months and have not seen it. If anyone here can fmd out about this
$102,000 and get it released, we hope at least some of this money can be used to
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fund the increase we requested. You have heard our clients both on Molokai and
here on Maui over the past months in your Countywide Budget hearings. These
are but a few of the many success stories out there. Many of you have been to our
Banker's Night graduation programs and learned about the great business ideas
our students have developed. In these uncertain times as residents see their
incomes drop and/or disappear, they are deciding to take charge of their future
and learn about starting their own businesses and controlling their future finances.
We stand ready to help as many as we can. Our Core Four classes have grown in
size, our counseling service requests have increased. Our loan volume has grown
to where the funding I mentioned earlier, the 402,000 in a six year period is now
the average balance of our portfolio. Today, last, excuse me, last year we brought
in 289,000 new loans. We have a balance of $575,000 in our portfolio. These are
loans made in the amounts of 500 to $25,000. Our loan fund managers are the
best. They work with the clients to understand issues that come up before it's too
late to fix and help their clients run more successful businesses in today's
economy.
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MS. 'THIEMAN: We are also working with clients to repair their personal credit, so their
scores will someday allow them to become bankable and leave our program.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Susie, for
coming. Please don't, don't mind me, I'm falling apart, I sneezed all weekend.
But I want to thank you for bringing this situation to our attention. When I left
MEO almost five years ago, I thought we had pretty much resolved this so that
money's still sitting around. You know . . . (end of tape IA — 9:35 a.m.). . . no
matter where we went and on Molokai it was passionate the amount of help that
has been received from working with you and with Kuhao Business Center on
Molokai. And I think it's really important because as the people on Molokai
struggle to try to take care of themselves, obviously small business is the answer.
And I was hoping to find a place to find some money to at least restore your cut,
but I really would like to see you get more. Because I really feel that we've got to
invest in economic development and, you know, we hear over and over and over
about diversifying the economy. What better way than by, you know, small
business. So I'm sure that Chair will, you know, now that he's found the pot of
money, check on it, and I certainly will call his attention to it 'cause I hope we
can find some money to enhance this program, which I think is one of the few
things that you can quantify. You know, we have a lot of social programs and we
do a lot of, our, our agencies do wonderful work, but it's very difficult to
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quantify. With the work you do you can measure the businesses, you can measure
the income, you can measure the taxes that result. And so to me it's a different
kind of program. Is, who is aware of where this money is so we know where to
go? Who you working with?
MS. THIEMAN: With Carol Gentz at CDBG and my understanding is the last place the
paperwork was hung up was in Finance, so some, someplace in that link
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, I'm sure, like I said, our Chair is very
skilled, he'll go, and Mr. Pablo, they'll go looking for it. Thank you. Thank you
very much.
MS. THIEMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for identifying where those funds are
located. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier on both items
that she testified on this morning? Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. THIEMAN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair would like to recognize the presence of
Member Johnson as well as Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Jordan Jokiel followed by
Carol Reimann
MR. JOKIEL: Aloha and good morning. My name is Jordan Jokiel and I am the
Program Manager for the East Maui Watershed Partnership. And you may have
seen me before and I'm going to try to keep this as brief as I can, not more than
three minutes. I'm not here to ask you for more money, but to thank you for the
money that you do provide already to our program and to ask you to do what you
can to maintain level funding. I know these are really difficult times. Just boiled
down in, in its simplest terms, the kuleana of the East Maui Watershed
Partnership and the other four partnerships in the County of Maui is to protect our
water supply. Watershed protection is an essential service that, you know, in
addition and maybe more importantly to supporting our economy and our spiritual
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needs is that it's, it's a public health and safety issue. Without clean or a reliable
source of clean water, we can't really exist as people or as a community And,
and I just want to say again I have worked throughout the State doing
conservation work and I'm, I'm very, very impressed with this County's sense of
responsibility to protect this public resource. You know it's, it's, it's not
something that can easily be compartmentalized into kuleana. It's everyone's, it's
like the air we breath, it's something that, that I'm really impressed that you guys
recognize that this is something that we all need to protect, and you play a far
larger role, I think, than some of the other, other counties do. And other counties
that other, other conversation workers that I, colleagues of mine are also very
impressed with that as well. The money that you guys contribute to our program
is also a very good investment. Every single dollar that you contribute to us is
either matched or is leveraged for additional, additional funds. So, for example,
this year $100,000 that you guys contributed to us is directly matched and brought
in $100,000 of Federal funds. Without your money we would have not brought
that money into the County of Maui. In addition to that, the other $100,000 that
we received from you for this, this fiscal year was leveraged, in other words, it
was made far more attractive to other funders, State funders and, and Federal
funders to bring money in to get a lot of the projects that we're responsible for
done. For the next three years we've already committed $150,000, hopefully we
get that money, to support and directly match one-to-one for more Federal funds
and this is part of Obama's stimulus package money that we hope we're going to
get. The programs that that will fund are watershed protection and YCC which to
me is a very important thing, because like what we do is not only protect the
young trees in the forest, but I think it's important to protect the, the youth and the
future decision-makers of Maui County, like Angel Mau(?) have in, in the
audience. She's someone who worked with the YCC in the past and is now
working with us with the AmeriCorps, and it's really encouraging to me to see the
youth kind of taking a stand and taking a role in, in the work we do. The money
provided by the County funds three positions and that supports, it also supports
numerous vendors and local businesses. We do what we can -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. JOKIEL: --we make an effort to try to spend all of our money locally. It also, also
directly protects over 50,000 acres of land and watershed and reaches out to
thousands of school kids and community members via our public outreach
program. The final thing I wanted to do was clarify, there's $1 8 million coming
in from the Federal government via I think stimulus package, Obama money, and
that's for Upcountry watershed protection and flood control. None of that money
is going to our operations, and I just wanted to make that clear 'cause I think
that's kind of a misperception. Since this economic crisis has hit I've been
spending my whole life trying to ask Federal, for Federal stimulus dollars, and as
of yet we've not received anything and I've not received any positive news that
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we're going to get anything from the various conduits that, that we're, we're,
we're kind of soliciting money through. We will take significant cuts from the
State, I think our program will, that, that's inevitable. So it's really important
that -MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. JOKIEL: --you continue to support our programs. Mahalo for your time and thank
you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --questions for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you, Mr. Jokiel, for being here. Yeah.
As far as the State, what, what kind of funding cuts are you anticipating? Because
I've heard all kinds of numbers coming out of Oahu.
MR. JOKIEL: It's, I'm not sure on the exact numbers. It was, it was back in November
we heard it was going to be 60 percent, and now it's far more than 60 percent and
that's been our bread and butter. That's been about 60 percent of our entire
budget. So if we get, honestly if we get 10 percent, 15 percent of what we got
before, I would be really encouraged by that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And isn't part of this funding coming off the
conveyance tax? Do you guys fall under that, that aspect?
MR. JOKIEL: We do, we do. So we're getting a double hit because conveyance tax
money is down because less people are buying homes. In addition to that, what
money is going to be made available through that is also being cut, and I think it
was cut, I'm not sure, I could give you the details on that but that was cut
significantly as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. If, Mr. Chair, we could get those details
from Mr. Jokiel and his agency, it would be greatly appreciated. And thank you
for your hard work. We know right now it's, it's really challenging, but, you
know, thank you for all your continued diligence. We do appreciate it, and all
your, your people.
MR. JOKIEL: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair has one comment. You know that
money, that $1 8 million that you, you know, I know I mentioned it at several
meetings for Upcountry watershed protection. So do you know where that money
is going to go to, you know, since it's Upcountry? You're East Maui.
MR. JOKIEL: I'm not sure where it's going to go. My understanding is that it's USDA
money and it's going to go to infrastructure improvements, and I think it's
pipelines and, you know, water system, water delivery systems. And I can find
that out, but I know it's not going into any of the work that we're doing at all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So none for protection?
MR. JOKIEL: Not to my knowledge.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo. Thank you for being here this morning and
for your testimony. You do receive funding from the Department of Water
Supply?
MR. JOKIEL: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And when we reviewed the Department of
Water Supply's budget, they had indicated that they made a reduction in what was
going to go to East Maui watershed. My, my concern is for all the watersheds,
but especially East Maui where I'm from. So what kind of reduction was it and
how will that impact your operations?
MR. JOKIEL: It was a 5 percent reduction and we can make that adjustment. It, it's not
going to seriously affect our operations. I mean it does affect us, but we're still
completely operational.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because it was indicated that it was
acceptable to the different watersheds for that reduction. So I just want to be sure
it doesn't impact, you know, the watersheds in a negative way, and you indicated
it doesn't.
MR. JOKIEL: It, it doesn't.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
- 16 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

MR. JOKIEL: Five percent is, is something that we can absorb. We couldn't absorb too
much more than that, but, but in these times I think that's, it's, we're happy to get
what we can get.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And if stimulus money is available to your
organization, do you apply for it directly or is it applied for on your behalf
through the Department of Water Supply?
MR. JOKIEL: The stimulus money that we've been asking for we've, it, there's been
several different places we've applied, through, through the Fish and Wildlife
Service, through the State, through the Forest Service, but nothing directly
through the Department of Water Supply.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And have you received any responses as to the
potential of you, your organization getting some stimulus money?
MR. JOKIEL: Yeah, it's funny. We've been really, we've, we've positioned ourselves I
think really well, I think we're ranked out among the highest projects in the
region for some, for some money, but we've not received anything yet. And I've
not had any encouraging news beyond that, that, that we're positioned well, but
the monies aren't coming through those, those Federal conduits to the State. So
that's the Forest Service, USDA and the Fish and Wildlife Service.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you so much for being here this
morning and for your information that you shared with us. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. When you say region, is that only Hawaii or
you're competing with the West Coast area?
MR. JOKIEL: I think with Fish and Wildlife Service money we're, we're competing
with the West Coast as well, but we do have a project actually in upper Hana that,
that ranked out really high. At the State, I think it's one of their higher projects,
but in the region itself, like the regional package, I think it's, it's been hard for
those guys to get funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you again for being here.
MR. JOKIEL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Carol Reimann followed by Kurt Corbin.
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MS. REIMANN: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget and
Finance Committee. On behalf of the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association, I ask
for your support of the $3.8 million funding for the Maui Visitors Bureau. The
Maui Hotel and Lodging Association's membership is comprised of
approximately 120 property and allied businesses in the County of Maui. As a
global leader in tourism marketing, we strongly believe in the value that the Maui
Visitors Bureau brings to our community, and we urge you to support their
important work. As the economic engine for Maui, the marketing and promotions
of our visitor industry is crucial to the future of our island. In a recent report by
economist Leroy Laney, he quotes that the industry is in "crisis mode". Until the
industry recovers, the reality is that tourism-related businesses and jobs are in
jeopardy and that the trickle down effect will continue to negatively reverberate
throughout our economy. It is imperative that we continue the funding of MVB
so that Maui remains top of mind in the marketplace. In times of economic
hardship, it is not the time to decrease marketing funds--on the contrary, we
should be continuing our efforts to be a viable player in today's highly
competitive and increasingly daunting market. The results of MVB's hard work
have positively impacted the economic health of Maui County. This would be in
terms of tourism related jobs for residents, supplemental businesses for local
vendors, support of local agriculture and the infusion of tax dollars that support a
myriad of government functions. In addition the visitor industry contributes
considerable community support and the infusion of dollars to the economy via
the annual Visitor Industry Charity Walk, donations of hotel stays, F&B, golf and
merchandise certificates for a myriad of nonprofits, and the financial
contributions and significant economic impacts from the nationally televised golf
events supported by tourism-related businesses. These valuable contributions and
other visitor-related philanthropic activities may be in jeopardy if the industry
continues to decline. If this happens, who will make up for the void? There's no
doubt that the visitor industry and our entire economy has taken a hard hit since
the airline crisis early last year and the subsequent economic downfall felt across
the nation. While we all agree that diversifying the economy is essential the
visitor industry is currently the economic engine, and therefore it is our
responsibility to care for the industry that supports so many of us. Intense global
competition for the various travel markets has become increasingly daunting. The
marketing of Maui as a destination needs to remain strong and consistent so that
we can maintain our competitive edge and continue to be a presence. While we
realize the budget request for MVB represents a significant dollar, it is a relatively
small amount when you consider the tremendous return on investment that our
County reaps as a result.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. REIMANN: We humbly ask that you vote in favor of the $3 8 million funding for
the Maui Visitors Bureau. Thank you very much for your consideration.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Reimann, I just want to say thank you to your
organization and the properties for supporting our efforts in House Bill 1744.
Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman Good morning,
Ms. Reimann
MS. REIMANN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for being here and providing us testimony
on this. So I just wanted to clarify one portion of your written testimony that
you've submitted to us. The bullet point that, on the bottom of the first page,
where you mention donations of hotel stays, F&B, golf and merchandise for
nonprofit fundraisers. And the, a Budget Committee here and I guess in the past
have asked nonprofits what they're doing on their part for fundraising efforts.
And you've noted here that the individual certificates that have been given by
your various members have totaled well over a million dollars in a given year. I
was wondering if you could provide us some data as to how much was given out
say over the last one, maybe two years, because I'm trying to establish a
connection here as to how, you know, crucial MVB's funding and how it relates
to the needs of our nonprofits in their fundraising efforts.
MS. REIMANN: I don't have that information at the top of my head, but I certainly can
get that for you. For the last two years?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: At least because you mentioned in your testimony that
totaled well over a million dollars -MS. REIMANN: Oh, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --in, in a given year, so I'd kind of like to know, you
know. . . (inaudible).. .
MS. REIMANN: Sure. Sure. I can poll the membership and we'll get that information
to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Great. Thank you very much.
MS. REIMANN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members...Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much, Carol. And I know we're all
hoping we don't lose the transient accommodation tax. But I wanted to fmd out
because principally the money that we have used to fund MVB in the past and of
course, you know, support the visitor industry has come from that resource. How
would you offer a suggestion as to where we would come up with the money to
replace the $18 million that we could potentially lose from the loss of TAT?
MS. REIMANN: Gosh, I knew you'd ask me that question and . .(laughter). . .from
what I understand, I've heard rumors about possibly, you know, real property tax
increases. And, you know, we all understand that we all may need to, you know,
chip in and help out the situation, and, you know, we would support an
across-the-board increase if that were to have to have happen.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much, Carol.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to the State Legislature they provided
the counties, the four counties, Kauai County, Hawaii County, City and County of
Honolulu as well as Maui County some areas in regards to, you know, increasing
our funding or, or funding source. One is adding a 5 percent, up to 5 percent
surcharge on the TAT and then also the possibility of a 1 percent real, real, retail
sales tax. And the monies generated from that, it's, it's considerable amount in
the tune of maybe $43 million or $48 million, somewhere around that area. But
it's going to take this County or any county to, to start this program maybe year
and a half, two years possibly. So, you know, anything that we can do or you can
do to continue to support the defeating of H.B. 1744, you know, is greatly
appreciated.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you. And thank you, Carol, for your
testimony. Ms. Reimann, let me ask you this question. I've been to many resort
areas throughout the United States, Mexico, Canada, and they have resort fees for
which it directly set up for parks, other infrastructure, other security such as
police and all that for these resort areas. Would the Visitors Bureau as well as the
Maui Lodging Association consider something, something like that, with you
guys support, which we would use that money? And, and exactly what the TAT
was done for is, you know, helping to support the visitors which is our economic
engine, but on the other side we've got to maintain the parks, the roads and all the
other things that they get to use when they're here. So would you guys support
something of that manner'? Would you guys consider something of that manner'?
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MS. REIMANN: I think that's an interesting proposal and something we haven't thought
of. But we could, you know, put some thought into it. I'm not quite sure the
thought, feelings of my board or MVB's board, but we would have to think about
the consequences as well. I know it's hard to, you know, right now we're
challenged with getting visitors to our island. I don't think it's the right time, but
possibly in the future it's something we could consider.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think when you show the visitor that these things
are direct benefits for them and the usage of their stay and the quality of their
stay, I think it's a lot easier than taxation. But, again that's just one man's
opinion. But I've seen it and, and throughout whether it was Florida and other
areas, these resort fees are pretty much accepted because that's just part of what is
necessary to keep these areas as beautiful and as attractive as they have been in
the past, yeah. So thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Ms. Reimann, for your
response.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Reimann,
again. In your response to Member Johnson I was somewhat surprised, but not in
a negative way, in that the industry would be somewhat supportive of a real
property tax increase and, and if Staff can correct me if I'm wrong, I think it's
$8.20 per $1,000 on hotel classifications. So, and you mentioned
across-the-board, so you're saying the industry would support a tax increase as
long as everybody else takes a hit as well, which would include residents?
MS. REIMANN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Am I correct? Okay. Could you provide us maybe at a
later point how much of an increase the industry could absorb? Because I for one
would, you know, this is not the greatest of times to consider any tax increases
because of what we're in. But, you know, we're sort of between a rock and a hard
place. I, I would be somewhat concerned of a hike in which, you know, you folks
would end up laying off people, and so I would want some proposal from you to
see, you know, what, what the hotel industry could absorb on their property tax
classification.
MS. REIMANN: I appreciate you mentioning that because you're right, you're
absolutely right. We're all taking a hard hit right now, especially the visitor
industry, but we do realize that we need to do our fair share in the community as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And if you could get that info to us as soon as
possible, it would be helpful.
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MS. REIMANN: Not that we want it, okay? . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. Yeah, it's seldom rare you hear people
saying -MS. REIMANN: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --hey, you know, we, we'd certainly want
to. . .(inaudible). . .
MS. REIMANN: Worst case scenario.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. All right. Okay. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman Ms. Reimann, thank you
for being here, for your testimony. Because of the economic conditions now, has
the MVB and your organization had any meetings to establish a new strategic
plan to improve things for the hotel and visitor industry?
MS. REIMANN: I'm not quite sure. I know MVB is actively being, you know,
changing their tack in marketing and promoting the islands as a whole to improve
the visitor industry. And Terryl will be up shortly to testify and report on all of
her activities.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So your organization and MVB doesn't have
meetings together?
MS. REIMANN: Oh, we continually are in contact, defmitely.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So there hasn't been any strategic planning in your
attendance at those meetings?
MS. REIMANN: We are. I'm sorry if I misstated, but we are continually in contact
working towards improving our visitor industry economies and getting more
visitors to the island so that our residents, you know, can reap.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I understand that. Can you give me any
specifics?
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MS. REIMANN: I'll let Terryl really report on that because that's kind of her area of
expertise, if you don't mind.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And as a representative of the hotels and
lodging industry, what is your organization contemplating to do to seek new
markets even though the economic conditions currently are global? Have your
organization determined what you could do to seek out new markets for the
visitor industry?
MS. REIMANN: Actually, that would be under the jurisdiction of the Maui Visitors
Bureau as well, the marketing and promotion of the island. I am really more of an
advocate for the industry and support Terryl and all of her efforts to market. But
she has been actively pursuing new markets and innovative ways to bring new
visitors to the island.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your responses. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Carol, do you know that in next year's
budget we are probably looking at deficits again and the question of property tax
increase will probably come again next year. What other areas have you looked
at to make up any kind of deficits beside property tax increase?
MS. REIMANN: We are just kind of pursuing all, any ideas we can muster up. I can't
speak off the top of my head, I'm a little nervous right now, I'm so sorry. But
real property is, from what I understand, one of the only ways the County is able
to recoup the TAT funds. Correct me if I'm wrong. And we are doing everything
we can to fight House Bill, you know, 1744 to ensure that the County retains its
TAT funding. But I can certainly regroup with my board, and we can give you a
report in a more, with some more substantial information.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Reimann, good morning and thank
you very much. I'd just like to, to continue to add. Perhaps at this point your
reference to the industry's consideration of real property, like Mr. Molina I, too,
am rather surprised at that recommendation of consideration at this particular
point because--and also, thank you for your organizations following up with
1744--because one of the options available to us is the additional, up to 5 percent.
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That again will come at the backs of your organizations', you know, properties.
So it's kind of difficult to understand at this point because if the properties are
saying we can look at a real property tax increase this fiscal year and on top of
that you're willing to add a potential 5 percent added to the TAT that they're
going to have to pay, I'm kind of, you know, if that's--yeah, I wish you would
have that discussion, because if that's what you're willing to tell us that the
agencies or the representatives are telling us is okay, Mr. Chairman, I'm ready to
move at this point to say thank you very much, we've solved our problems.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But we're going to kill the goose that laid the golden egg, so I
think we better have that discussion. And I, I think, I think it's something that,
that you need to do with your properties instead of just, you know, trying to just
give us solutions at this point in all fairness to the, to the agencies you represent.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. I echo Mr. Mateo's concern, you
know, we don't want to kill the goose with the golden egg, you know. When you
provide a 5 percent, up to 5 percent surcharge to the TAT, you know, it's going to
add a lot of dollars to all of the properties here in Maui County. And, you know,
if we're looking at trying to survive this economic downturn, certainly, you know,
we don't want any more employees to be laid off. So, you know, maybe you
should take a look what is being proposed to all of the counties, the surcharge as
well as the retail sales tax, you know, how will it impact, you know, your
industry. Because I think for us to say, yeah, you know, we welcome all of these
ideas that you're presenting us, certainly we don't want to hurt the industry as
well as hurt the employees that, you know, you folks employ.
MS. REIMANN: Thank you. I appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. We may be overly optimistic. What I
think I heard Ms. Reimann say was that because of the situation and, you know,
of course their funding is crucial to them that. . . (inaudible). . .rather than seeing
that go away, that they would consider--and this was very carefully worded--an
across-the-board property tax hike.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .which meant that not only they would have to pay, but
everybody else.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everybody else, yeah. I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I'm assuming, and I will ask you for clarification in
a minute, that you were suggesting this in lieu of what is currently being
proposed, which is that 5 percent hike?
MS. REIMANN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I figured that. Not both?
MS. REIMANN: No, not both.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ah, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, for my second time. I, I, when you get
information for us, Carol, 'cause I know you have a handle on what the room
rates are. Because what we read in the papers is that statistically the visitor counts
are down, but also the revenue per available room, you know, there's deep
discounting. So could you give us information, when you're able to, to show
what the level of the discounts are? Because that is also what the State is
predicating their return for transient accommodation tax, and if you have that
information available because for me it's very important.
MS. REIMANN: Sure. We can get that information to you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just one last comment from the Chairman. In
regards to your written testimony, I can attest that, you know, the donations that
the hotel provide to most nonprofit or maybe 95 percent of the nonprofits here
with some gift or certificate from your properties that you, you know, represent.
So thank you very much for being here this morning.
MS. REIMANN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Kurt Corbin followed by John Andersen.
MR. CORBIN: . . . (end of tape 1B — 10:05 a.m.). .. and Council Members. My name is
Kurt Corbin, I'm the Assistant State Director for the Hawaii Small Business
Development Centers. It's a Statewide organization, we have offices on all of the
major islands, five in total. Let me begin also with a mahalo for your continued
support for the Hawaii Business Research Library and for this opportunity to
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address you this morning. The Business Research Library is part of the HSBDC
and we are a cooperative program funded through the US Small Business
Administration, the University of Hawaii, the State Legislature and the County of
Maui. And the library is based with our offices in the Maui Research and
Technology Park and serves the information needs of business owners, public
policymakers, educators and through, and all of these through specialized research
and analysis both here on Maui and Statewide. Now in its 15 th year your grant
funding . . . (clears throat). . . excuse me. . .now in its 15 th year your grant funding
has helped to underwrite a portion of the operations at the library through the
support of staff salary, space, information technology and equipment. During the
past 12 months the library staff has provided research assistance to over 1,600
businesses. We have produced the annual Maui County Data Book which is a
300-page compendium of economic statistics; published a resource guide Starting
a Business in Maui; and made available public access to over 400 commercial
databases for business research and analysis. We work in close cooperation with
other libraries, in particular the Maui Community College, to provide specialty
research for students and for faculty. As with all publicly fmanced programs
we've worked hard to find deficiencies in our operation in pursuit of providing
high value for the constituents that we serve. The library has changed a bit of its
focus from being a traditional bricks and mortar repository of data and
information to one which is much more focused on research analysis and public
policy support. To this end I'm pleased to announce that we have recruited an
individual with both a masters degree in library science and a strong economics
background. She will join us here on May 4 th . And we've also put in plans to
expand our capabilities in that area through the recruitment of a senior economist
to provide research analysis and work for, for members of this organization as
well. We also have plans to expand our services for business owners in the area,
financing strategies, operations analysis and issues related to import/export and
international trade. As I'm sure you appreciate, never before in the 15 year
history of the library has there been such a critical need for timely and insightful
research and analysis. And we humbly ask -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. CORBIN: --for your continued funding in support of the library as a critical
resource to both business owners, who are struggling in today's challenging
environment, and as a resource for policymakers like yourselves as you chart the
future course of our community. Thank you so much for your past support and
for your time this morning. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing--you got one, no? Seeing none, thank you very much -MR. CORBIN: Good. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for coming this morning. John Andersen followed by
Keri Kalilikane.
MR. ANDERSEN: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Budget and Finance Committee
Members and Staff. My name is John Andersen, I'm the Executive Director of
Na Hale 0 Maui, our community land trust. And I'm here to say thank you for
your support of Na Hale 0 Maui and thank you for your investment in our
organizational development. I have a brief ten-point fact sheet to share with you
during your budget deliberations here. In response to the Mayor's request for a
10 percent reduction in nonprofit grants, Na Hale 0 Maui reduced its request by
20 percent. The County's investment in Na Hale 0 Maui has resulted in a
$3 million HUD neighborhood stabilization program grant to acquire, rehabilitate
and resell foreclosed homes as affordable homes that will stay affordable in
perpetuity. The grant contract with HHFDC was signed on April 8, 2009, and it
will bring to the County more Federal grant funds than the entire CDBG program
in Fiscal Year 2010. The County's operational grant will allow Na Hale 0 Maui
to use 100 percent of the NSP grant funds for the benefit of the community in
Fiscal Year 2010. The NSP grant funds will provide affordable housing for more
than 30 Maui families. Na Hale 0 Maui's operational grant request is equal to
only 4 percent of the grant funds Na Hale 0 Maui's programs will bring to the
County in Fiscal Year 2010. As Na Hale 0 Maui transitions to the program
implementation phase, additional non-grant revenue will be generated as part of
our business plan for building a sustainable, self sufficient organization. Na Hale
O Maui has developed a program for the Council's approval to facilitate the
buyback of existing deed-restricted affordable homes for resale as workforce
homes that will stay affordable in perpetuity. And the County's investment in
Na Hale 0 Maui has resulted in developing an organization that is fully
operational and prepared to partner with the County for the development of new
perpetually affordable housing projects in the future. The County's investment in
Na Hale 0 Maui is yielding a return that will benefit the workforce of Maui now
and in the future. Thank you for your support and we look forward to continue
working with you in the future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. [sic] Andersen?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, John.
MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Keri Kalilikane followed by Maude Cummings [sic].
MS. KALILIKANE: Good morning. I'm Keri Kalilikane and I'm here representing
Hale Mahaolu's Homeownership and Housing Counseling Program. I'm actually
not here to provide, to repeat my testimony which I provided at a previous
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hearing, but I am here to make myself available for any questions that you have
regarding our program which the Mayor put in as a line item grant. I'd also like
to take this opportunity to thank you on behalf of Hale Mahaolu and our
Executive Director, Roy Katsuda for all of the long hours that you put in to the,
these Budget hearing meetings, we really appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this
morning? Thank you very much for being here. Maude Cummings [sic]. Harold
Keyser followed by Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond.
MR. KEYSER: Good, aloha and good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members.
My name is Harold Keyser and I'm the County Administrator for the College of
Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources. And I'm here this morning in
regards to our budget request for Fiscal Year 2010. I'd like to begin by thanking
the Council, the Office of Economic Development and the Mayor and past
Mayors and Council for all the support that they have provided to us in the past in
helping us deliver our programs. CTAHR has submitted the FY '10 Budget with
a 10 percent reduction from last year in recognition of the reality of reduced
resources available. We also have our own, anywhere from 5 to 20 percent
reduction from the State to the university system. The activities that you support
are very diverse. We, we deliver through our cooperative extension and the ag
experiment station programs in agriculture, the environment, 4-H youth, a
nutrition education, intergenerational programs, home gardening and also
renewable energy. We, we were able to strengthen our expertise this year with
the addition of an invasive specialist, management specialist. It's a Statewide
position, but we were fortunate to have it based here at the Kula Ag Experiment
Station, and we look forward to that specialist working with Maui Invasive
Species, the watershed partnerships and the ranches and other clients and
stakeholders who are, who have an interest in invasive species. Another
highlight, we are, we have an unprecedently [sic] large program in training for our
master gardener programs that it enables us to, to provide technology transfer for
people interested in growing more of their own food and to help us in the outreach
efforts which have increased dramatically in this area this year. I, I've submitted
our budget to you and I just wanted to be available if you have any questions at
this time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Keyser at this
time? Seeing none, thank you very much for being here.
Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond followed by Rieh [sic] Yust.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Chairman Padilla [sic], Pontanilla, I'm
sorry, and Council Members. I'm a little nervous. This never gets any easier.
I'm here today to ask for a reduction of a cut of $25,000 to our operating costs. I
have testified before you folks already and you've heard from my staff. We have
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been in a partnership with the County for nine years, and I think that we've done a
really phenomenal job with your support and this partnership with the nonprofits.
And we're able to increase our budget, meet our increasing costs every year. And
but this year it's going to be very difficult and our donations are already down
about $20,000, and so the cutting in our operating cost is going to affect our
salaries and so we're very concerned about that and hope you can find money in
these very lean times to support us. I'm here to answer any questions. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Rieh Yust. . .oh, Rich Yust. Rieh. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. YUST: I've been called a lot of things, but I've never been called that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I see over here R-I-E, look like one H and Y-U-S-T.
MR. YUST: Well, that's good, I came up quicker than I thought I was going to. Good
morning, Council Chair, Council Members. My name is Rich Yust and I am the
Executive Director for the Maui Food Bank, and I am here today to get your
continued support. And I know, you know, there's never been, you know, a
tougher time to, to fund essential services, and I don't think it gets much more
essential than, than food to the needy. And currently we're seeing numbers that
we've never seen before, numbers that are higher than after 9/11. We're seeing
numbers, I mean just in December I was looking, our numbers were over 12,000
people that were seeking food assistance. So and we're, we're going to see those
numbers continue to keep increasing unfortunately until, you know, until things
turn around here. We're trying everything we can. We've brought on a food
solicitation specialist--we've seen donations, a downward trend from the stores
and wholesalers because they're ordering less 'cause they don't know what's in
the future. So the store donations are down. I've brought on a, the solicitation
specialist in order to help educate them better on how they can give us higher
quality donations and to also reeducate them about the fact that we have a special
dating code that we can go by, because we are a food bank and we don't have to
go by the retail dating code and, you know, reeducate the shipping and receiving
clerks. We're also expanding our food drives. You'll notice one coming up in
two weeks from now, we'll be at every grocery store on Maui. We have
community groups going to be working those stores for us, Rotary Clubs, Lions
Clubs. That should, that should help, you know, ease a little bit of the, a little bit
of the pain that we're feeling. Let's see, we also are having to increase our
purchases of food, we just brought in a container last week from the mainland.
It's, it's unfortunately a daunting task to try to continue to meet the needs more,
you know, we're, we're looking at all avenues to try to, to try to increase our
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donations and both monetary and food donations. We're going to, this year we're
going to do a summer food drive we've, which we've never done in the past. We
just need to keep, you know, we need to keep staying on it, I feel, and with, with
the County's help it allows us, it frees us from having to use vital resources
towards, you know, towards supplies and admin and some of the overhead that we
have. . .that, you know, the County's funds really help ease that and that means
that we can, you know, do our job of getting food out -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. YUST: --to the needy. So anyway, your continued support. Thank you and
mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, wait. Chair first. Mr. Yust, how many seniors take
advantage of the Maui Food Bank?
MR. YUST: Do I see anybody taking advantage of it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seniors.
MR. YUST: Oh, seniors taking advantage of it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Senior citizens. Yeah.
MR. YUST: Not, not that I'm aware of. I would feel that if anyone is going to go
through the, you know, the effort and the energy to stand in one of the food lines,
that they are probably deserving of food. You know one of the things is that
we've never, we never ask anyone to pay for any of the food. They, you know,
there's no documentation needed. So I mean there could be the potential for that.
I don't necessarily see that being the case. The, you know, the 70-plus agencies
that, you know, that work with the Maui Food Bank we feel are very stringent on,
on their guidelines of what, of who they serve and how they serve them and I
don't necessarily see that to be the case.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Would you be open to that?
MR. YUST: To, to reviewing that a little bit deeper?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. YUST: Of course. Always, obviously, you know, obviously if someone's taking
advantage of, you know, of a. . .not necessarily a good thing, but of, of, of a free
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service, you don't, obviously you don't want anybody taking advantage 'cause
that means somebody else may be doing without and we don't want to see that
happen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, sir.
MR. YUST: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for providing that information and I
appreciate that follow-up response to Chairman Pontanilla about documentation,
`cause that was going to be my question 'cause I hate to see some people who
really may not need it as much as others. Have you at this point had to turn away
people?
MR. YUST: My, from, from the agencies' reports to us is they are not necessarily having
to turn away people.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But if we...
MR. YUST: And I don't know all the inner dealings with every single agency. Again,
we have, you know, 70 agencies and over 100-plus programs that come to the
Food Bank. So it's hard to, you know, it's hard for me to, you know, keep tabs on
every single program but...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: With the current level of funding proposed are we at a
point where you, we may have to look at the Food Bank possibly turning away
people if we don't increase funding or get additional donations for your
organization?
MR. YUST: You know, I think we're, we're still continuing to meet the need.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. YUST: Yeah. And...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But the numbers are increasing though as far as...
MR. YUST: But numbers are increasing and, and obviously I'm working, you know,
diligently with my development director and the board to, you know, to make sure
that we are looking forward, you know, ahead to, to, you know, what's going to
be the, you know, the worst case scenario type of, type of situation. We don't
necessarily know that, but we, we're trying to plan for that, and so that's why
-31-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

we're going to, you know, pull on some of our additional resourcing which may
come from, from Feeding America, who we're connected with, and the Hawaii
Food Bank.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I just wanted to find out. . .because a lot of
emphasis has been placed on sustainability and people who were coming before
us having transient vacation rentals and bed and breakfasts, they're on agriculture
land, have said they'd be very open to providing fresh fruits, vegetables, you
know, whatnot. Is that something that you're currently able to work out with
those individuals who want to provide that and who are required to do a farm
plan?
MR. YUST: Yeah. I think that's a, you know, a terrific idea and I was, I testified a while
back ago for that idea when they were talking about the transient rentals and how
it'd be a wonderful idea to have, if you're going to have it in agricultural land for
them to actually produce some product, you know, that in turn could be passed on
to the people, you know, to the needy especially when it comes to produce. And,
you know, currently we do have a fresh produce program. We bring in, it's
roughly about running right around 18 percent of all the product that we handle
is, is fresh produce. And I currently have made arrangements with an organic
farmer in, in Haiku who's going to, he used to grow for the stores and he's
basically tired of that so he's going to grow strictly for us. We're working, you
know, with some other farmers as well, and we're working with other groups.
We have a new group called Waste Not, Want Not, who's harvesting trees and
they bring all that, all that fruit to the, to the Food Bank and we pass that out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But has the, the transient vacation rental industry or
the B&B people come to you specifically to set up the type of program that was
spoken about before?
MR. YUST: They. . .no, they, they did come to-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I hope they do.
MR. YUST: Yes, I do, I do too obviously. Yes. We, we can use all the fresh produce
we can get and every bit of it goes out the door.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, hopefully my question will serve as a reminder
to them that they are required, if they're on ag land, they have to have a farm plan.
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MR. YUST: Oh, that's . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they should be doing something in agriculture,
and helping you during this difficult time, I think there's no better purpose.
MR. YUST: Yes, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Yust, I was. . .the
same line of questioning as Member Johnson. Have you been in touch with our
local farmers currently that are and have been producing local produce not for the,
the highest grade but for the off-grades of food?
MR. YUST: Yeah. We currently do work with, with many of the local farmers. We've
been to the, to the farm board to educate them that we are--unfortunately, there's
still this notion that it's cheaper to turn it under than it is to donate it. And even
though they'll get the tax credits, you know, for a donation to a nonprofit, that it's
still, it's still trying to reeducate the farmers as well that it's more cost effective
for them and better for the community and sustainability to donate that product.
So that's a continuing education that we're, that we're working with, with farmers
to reeducate them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So in other words they are plowing under
food rather than allowing you to have it?
MR. YUST: Yeah. We do, we do pick up from the farmers markets obviously, the swap
meet, and those are local farmers who, who do actually bring extra specifically for
the Food Bank or if it's leftover product that they didn't sell.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. For the, for the farmers that are
turning under food, is it a question of efficiency of people that are needed to, to
gather that and, and are you able--I mean in your education while you're trying
help them to understand, are you able to provide that kind of perhaps manpower
and volunteerism that would help to gather food?
MR. YUST: I would like to be able to provide that. Volunteerism is, is really low right
now I think for all of us nonprofits. I think we can all attest to that. But...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But is that the reason why the
food...
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MR. YUST: No. It's, it's, yes. It's mostly because of resources. It costs them more to
harvest obviously and we don't have the people, and then there's all the liability
issues of being on their, on their property. And that was one of the big things I
was working with a farmer in Kula, and that was his big problem was having
volunteers on his property and being protected. Obviously I could write, you
know, a rider for these volunteers and they would be protected. But to instill that
in their, in their mind that it's okay and if somebody falls they're not, you're not
going to be sued is, was, was, is a hurdle that we're constantly having to, to jump
over.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then you mentioned
something about it's cheaper for them. Is that just based on, on the labor that
would be required?
MR. YUST: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And how many, how many farmers then,
then you do actually get food from?
MR. YUST: Well, if you, if you include the, obviously, the farmers who show up at the
swap meet and the farmer markets, I don't have the exact number, but I would say
we're probably 15 farmers. And then we have local homeowners who, you know,
who have trees or who are growing a row for the Food Bank. They've come in,
they come in. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. It just seems a shame that you on the
other hand say that you're going to bring a load of food off a container and having
to pay for that when you have food that's being grown here locally that could be
used perhaps. But do you have any idea how much food we're talking about that
gets turned under?
MR. YUST: Honestly, I have no idea.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. YUST: I'd like to know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Very good question, Member Kaho'ohalahala. I, I did that one
time. There were three of us trying to gather some potatoes and it's hard work.
MR. YUST: Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Very hard work. . . .(chuckle). . . So if you can get
volunteers I, you know, I certainly, you know, would like for you folks to
consider that. Who else has a question? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. I was interested in the, the
statement you made that you just brought in a container from the mainland which
obviously has expenses as far as shipping is concerned. My question is, is this
fairly subsidized or is this strictly the cost of the shipping itself borne by your
organization?
MR. YUST: The, the cost-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The shipping. Yeah. The shipping cost. Yeah.
MR. YUST: Yeah. I actually have worked out a deal with Horizon Lines who is helping
us with that shipping cost. This last container was about $4,000 of shipping as
compared to what it would have cost, it would have been about 9,000 without
Horizon's help. As far as the, the cost for the food and the shipping that's, that's
a burden that the, that the Food Bank uses, that takes on itself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What's your-MR. YUST: We don't have any Federal funding to pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. What is the origin of the food? Where does
this come from, from a wholesaler, a manufacturing center?
MR. YUST: Yeah. Well, yeah, we, we actually work with a food bank in Tennessee and
they actually produce their own food, so we're able to buy it much less than what
we could even buy it for wholesale or even seconds on the market, what the, what
the Tennessee Food Bank is selling, selling their pallet lots for.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this originates from Tennessee?
MR. YUST: From Tennessee, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow. So it-MR. YUST: It's from food bank in Tennessee, they have their own canning facility.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow.
MR. YUST: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, thank you for that information.
MR. YUST: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That, I think that's very educational, I never knew
that existed. Thank you. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair And thank you for being
here, Mr. Yust. I certainly remember your coming when we were discussing the
B&Bs, and I don't know about that. But I, I have a question. You know, I've
been away from this work for a while now so I'm kind of out of touch.
Essentially you're still using the distribution system where you collect or you
fund and you work with member agencies who actually do distribution? Is that
what you're still doing?
MR. YUST: That's, that's correct, yes. We, yeah, we don't actually serve individuals.
We, we work with, like I said, 70 member agencies. They're all nonprofits, you
know, faith-based, Boys and Girls Clubs, homeless shelters, resource centers,
what, I mean the full list, and you were all mailed a copy and probably passed out
a copy at some of the testimonies as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. And-MR. YUST: But, yeah, and then, and then individuals who are seeking food assistance
will, can actually call 211 to fmd out where our distribution is in their area, and
that's how, that's how it's referred to, to get it actually to the individuals.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So a person who wants food doesn't necessarily go to the
Food Bank, they go to one of the agencies?
MR. YUST: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that's important because I think the average
person on the street does not know that, and they think that they would go to you
to get food which certainly makes sense. So that's probably a good, this is
probably a good time to do some education. The other question I had for you was
I know that different locales have second harvest programs, and I know that
people tried to do that here several times already as Chair was mentioning. And
that is where people go into the fields after they have been already, you know,
they've done the harvesting and they go in to glean for a second harvest. And I
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know it's done nationally and I think they tried doing it here, but there were
concerns primarily of liability and, you know, some people just don't know how
to behave in the field, you know, so you might have issues. So they want to be
really careful. No, you know, fields are, are, have to be respected because we
have to take care of our land. And the other thing was we also tried here, and I
don't know if we're still doing it, a program to collect leftovers from like hotels
that serve buffets and things. Do we still do that?
MR. YUST: We, we are doing that, it's called our second, our Second Helpings
Program. We're currently collecting from hotels and also from the, also from
some of the restaurants, and actually one of our largest donors for that particular
program is the little sushi stand inside the grocery stores. And they have the, the
little bentos that are left over. They, they keep those chilled for us and we're
collecting hundreds of pounds of those bentos every week and taking those
directly to places like the Salvation Army to the Safe Haven there and to a couple
of the other resource centers. And so that, yeah, our prepared food program has,
has grown tremendously. There's obviously still room for it to continue to grow,
currently still trying to get the hotels on board and get chefs to change their ways,
much like farmers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I think that's a really great idea because it's, it would
be awful, almost criminal to throw away such good food, you know, and feed it to
the hogs when people could eat it. And with the cost of food nowadays that's
really a relevant thing. So I just wanted to give people a bigger picture of what
you do. You know, we all have this idea of you standing outside the grocery store
trying to collect cans and a few bucks. But it's a much, much bigger program
than we see on the surface. And I am really happy to see that your funding is at
least at what it was last year, because, you know, we all know this need is going
to go up and so it'll behoove all of us to try and do a little bit more for the Food
Bank. Thank you very much to you and your volunteers and your staff.
MR. YUST: Yes. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for being here. Next testifier is Joelvonne Kamaka
followed by Becky Woods.
MS. KAMAKA: Good morning .. .(end of tape 2A — 10:36 a.m.). .. My name is
Joelvonne Kamaka and I am from Ka Hale A Ke Ola Homeless Resource Center.
Please bear with me. This is the first time I've ever done this, so I'm very
nervous. First of all, I would like to thank you for the line item funds that we do
receive, particularly the RAP, I am the Rental Assistant Program Case Manager
there. And since we've received the RAP funds, we have been able to assist
many families to move into the community. Some of the benefits that we offer is
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a continuum of case management, budgeting and residential maintenance. I
personally go into the community and I do inspections in the community to make
sure that the rentals that our clients will be obtaining is fit for our clients, that they
are able to afford it, and I work with landlords to make sure that they are aware of
the budgeting classes that the clients have taken. The budgeting class that we
offer at the resource center is our Money Magic class. It is a one night class for
six weeks which we help our clients with any debt or understanding budgeting
and how that would work for them once they move on into the community.
Another class we also offer is called our Step-Up Program. This is a program for
five weeks and it's one night for five weeks that teaches individuals to learn to
obtain housing in the community, maintain housing in the community and, of
course, retain the housing in the community. By having the rental assistance it
helps us to make for better tenants to move into the community. We have a
greater chance of maintaining the housing by educating them with this. I work
very closely with, as I mentioned before, with the landlords to ensure them that
our clients have gone through these programs so that they can feel a little bit more
confident and not have the so-called stigma of individuals that live in homeless
resource centers. Basically what we are trying to do here is we're trying to help
our clients become independent and be able to live in the community, have the
stability, have the continual support of case managers as well as resources in the,
resources within our agency. I think some of the benefits that we offer our clients
for the rental assistance is because they've gone through our program already,
they feel very comfortable with us as case managers. So with that rapport that has
already been built, the comfort level of them asking or seeking help is, is, you
know, it's very, it's a good start when we're working with them once they move
on.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. KAMAKA: Okay. And that's pretty much what I have to say. Do you guys have
any questions regarding it, the -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. KAMAKA: --Rental Assistance Program? I'm sorry. I'm so nervous.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you very much for
being here. Relax, it's okay. . . . (chuckle). . . We're just...
MS. KAMAKA: . . . (chuckle). . . I was told at like 8:30 that we're going to be here at
9:00 so it's...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Like I said, relax, you know, you know your business.
We don't, we want to know about it. So just share with us, it's okay. I'm
wondering about the Rental Assistance Program. Do you have a much greater
need than you're able to fill?
MS. KAMAKA: Well, I wouldn't...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is not a trick, trick question.
MS. KAMAKA: Yeah. I know-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I tell you why, we're trying to see if there is a place
where, if this a place in the budget where we might want to increase the funding,
so we're trying to determine what the need is out there and how much of it we're
meeting.
MS. KAMAKA: Right. Well, I, I defmitely believe that this is an essential grant that we
do receive, and the reason why I believe that is because our waiting list has
always been such a big concern at both resource centers. And by having this
rental assistance we can then move people on into the community and then start to
re-house people in our program. So yes I believe it's, it's a very essential fund.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you. I think that's something that I had not
thought of that, you know, if you can move them out, then you can serve
somebody else because they can't move out until they can obtain -MS. KAMAKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --an affordable rental.
MS. KAMAKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MS. KAMAKA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Becky Woods followed by Jocelyn Bouchard.
MS. WOODS: Good morning, Council Chair and Council Members. Thank you for
having us here and listening to our testimonials. Joelvonne is an excellent case
manager, she's worked with our clients for several years and she knows the RAP
program very, very well. Since the RAP program has begun with our agency, we
have been able to see the difference that it's made as far as our wait list is
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concerned; however, I am just, I'm amazed at our wait list at this date. I would
say about six months ago our wait list--and this is when the RAP, we ran out of
RAP funds--our wait list was about 187 people on the wait list. Today my wait
list is 34 at Ka Hale A Ke Ola and that's because of the Rental Assistance
Program. We have a total of three families and a total of 34 people in all. That is
the lowest it has ever been. And not only with the RAP program, the thing is
about our agency, we work in conjunction with the other two programs, the
Money Magic Program as well as the Step-Up Program, which teaches the clients
to be better tenants out in the community. They learn how to clean and maintain
their apartments, they learn how to budget and have ongoing case management,
because the Rental Assistance Program is a subsidy program. So the clients are
required to come in and have continual case management anywhere from three
months to a year depending on their need. It's an amazing program and I think,
truly, I think all the agencies that receive the Rental Assistance Program will
agree it's the most vital program for our community. Our homeless individuals
are able to move into the shelter, have their educational needs met so that they
become self-sufficient and do not have to return back to the shelter. Our success
rate I would say is about 80 percent as far as recidivism, it's amazing. So I just
want to say thank you very, very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this
morning? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Your wait list of 34 is to enter Ka Hale A
Ke Ola?
MS. WOODS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: From there they are educated and then go out when you
feel that they're, they can feel, I guess, strong enough to go out and rent a place
and keep a place?
MS. WOODS: Right. So what happens is that they enter our program and for six weeks
they're in emergency. During the six weeks they are required to take the Money
Magic class and the Step-Up Program before they can move into the transitional
shelter. Once they're in the transitional shelter they can be there for up to two
years, but while they're at the shelter they continue on with these educational
programs, such as parenting and other life skills, educational programs. It's
mandatory that they, that they participate in educational programs so that when
the times does come and we feel that they're ready and that they have the ability
financially to pay a rent that, that meets their budget, then we move them out with
the Rental Assistance Program. And then as the case management continues
while they're out in the community, we have an action plan that we work with
them on as, with the case management, and they set the goals for the action plan
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as far as how are they going to increase their income by the time the subsidy is
done. How are they going to make it on their own. We assist them in making
those goals and they're realistic, doable goals. We don't want to provide rental
assistance to individuals who have set their expectations too high and they can't
meet those goals because they'll end up back at the shelter. So we work very,
very closely and diligently with all of the clients and we take it very seriously.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I like the fact that there's follow through.
Also at Ka Hale A Ke Ola you do not allow any kind of drugs or alcohol?
MS. WOODS: Absolutely not. And that's part of the Rental Assistance Program as well.
It's all, it all ties together because with the Rental Assistance Program they have
to follow through in the Chemical Dependency Program. If they don't, they don't
get the rental assistance. They can't be there if they don't follow through. So it
all ties together. It, all the programs just come together as one to make the client
self-sufficient to the best of their ability.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Also in your program you don't allow freeloaders,
right -MS. WOODS: Absolutely not.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --people that just want to stay there?
MS. WOODS: Absolutely not. They have to do the life skills, they have to do
community service, they have to either, you know, they have to have work, they
have to be going to school, they have to be doing something to better their lives.
It's not a free-for-all.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Finally, in your money that you have for rental
assistance, could you use more there -MS. WOODS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and why? And why?
MS. WOODS: Well, we can absolutely use more especially during the economy right
now, because we allow so much money per client, up to $3,500 per client.
Sometimes that's not enough. If you have a larger family, they need more money
and we need to subsidize them for a longer period of time. We're not able to
assist everybody. We have to be very careful on who we assist and how much we
can assist them with. There is always a greater need. So, I mean if we can help
somebody for a longer period of time to ensure that they have the ongoing case
management, that would be beneficial.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are most of your people on rental assistance working or
are there a lot of people that are disabled?
MS. WOODS: We have a few that are disabled, but most of them are working. They
have to have a source of income, of course.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
MS. WOODS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair I really want to thank you for coming
today, Ms. Woods. But this Money Magic class sounds really interesting. Maybe
we need you to come and help us right now. We could use some money magic.
MS. WOODS: . . .(chuckle). . . Well, we, we absolutely do have, it's an incredible
program. It's six weeks long and it's intense and. . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Essentially what, what are you teaching them?
Budgeting?
MS. WOODS: We teach them about budgeting, we teach them about the check books,
how to save, credit cards, just every aspect of financial stability. So.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, it's interesting because earlier we had another
testifier talking about financial literacy. And what we're finding is that a lot of
people do not have financial literacy, they never learned it as kids, they never do
it as adults and, so they run into all kinds of problems.
MS. WOODS: Especially. . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So do you think fmancial literacy is definitely a need, not
just for you and your agency, but for everybody?
MS. WOODS: Oh, I, absolutely, absolutely. I think that it's really critical. For one
thing, I think they really need to instill that more in the high schools, you know,
but so when kids come out and they have a checking account, they're not
bouncing checks at $25 a service fee, you know. But as far as the agencies are
concerned that are assisting the clients with this program, I think it's critical that it
be a component to the program.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Terrific. And thank you very much for the work you do.
MS. WOODS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're the source. Thank you.
MS. WOODS: Well, thank you. I just want to say really, truly thank you to all of you
for your continued support. It hasn't been difficult, or it has been difficult for us
and I just really, truly appreciate your support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I got a question. What is the maximum length of
stay at your location?
MS. WOODS: Well, we have the six-weeks emergency shelter, sometimes, especially
now we've extended it to maybe eight weeks, sometimes even more and until the
client gains fmancial, a source of financial income, whether it be DHS or Social
Security. And then once they're, there they can stay up to two years, and
sometimes even then we've had this client, this family who received Habitat for
our, the Hawaiian Home Lands. And they had to stay an extra six months,
because their house was being built. So we make exceptions if there's a good
cause, but it's up to two years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. WOODS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One more question from Member Molina.
MS. WOODS: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Becky, and thank
you for that very, you know, positive news with regards to your wait list being the
lowest it's ever been. So obviously the County assistance has made -MS. WOODS: It's working.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --an impact on it. Are you able to provide us at a later
time how the other counties are doing? Because we keep hearing about the high
numbers of homeless on say Oahu. And so I presume we're doing, you know, if
you had to base our performance compared to -MS. WOODS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --the other counties, a little bit better?
- 43 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

MS. WOODS: Well, you know, I mean every county, of course, is different and I think
that Maui County is unique because we have this support. And the State, you
know, a big provider for us is the State, but their county, their county funds are
different than ours. And we couldn't provide the services we provide without
your support, and I think that what we're doing here is positive and I think it
works better than it does on any of the other islands. Because I don't see things
moving along like they do here. I also, I just want to bring this up too because I
went to, to see this homeless shelter on the mainland, I was just curious about it,
it's called Tent City. And I was completely amazed at how the shelter was run
independently by the residents that live there. They receive no funding
whatsoever and, but the county gave them a lot of land, and they were able to
build their own little like cottages, they were within, they didn't need a permit
because of it. But to me it, it took away the problem. It was, it was a huge
facility and it didn't cost the city or the county anything. And that's something
that we can consider here, you know, just, we have Puunene, we can use that. I
mean there's so many things that we can do to help the homeless. It just takes us
working together as a team to come up with these ideas. But I was very
impressed and I just wanted to share that, it's been on my mind.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Well, thank you, Becky, and thank you for mentioning
the prospective of buying land because we have an Affordable Housing Fund, and
maybe that's the direction the Administration working with the Council should
look at in terms of more buying land for whatever level of income housing that
we may need in the future.
MS. WOODS: That's what we're looking at as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Great. Thank you.
MS. WOODS: Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jocelyn Bouchard followed by Stacey Moniz.
MS. BOUCHARD: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. My
name is Jocelyn Bouchard and I'm honored and privileged to be the CEO for the
Maui Humane Society. I want to thank you for this opportunity to testify before
you here this morning. As you know, the County of Maui contracts with the Maui
Humane Society to provide animal management services for our island. We are
proud of this partnership and as, as part of this partnership I, too, have been
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monitoring the H.B. 1744 and have been advocating to keep those funds on the
Neighbor Islands. We have had staff and board come out and testify at the
hearings and they have stated that we would, we are asking that you keep the
amount of money that is in the Mayor's Proposed Budget. This does represent a
decrease for us from last year and is our best attempt to help out with the, the need
to trim funds without having to cut staff or programs. You've probably also heard
that we have had an increase in need, we have about a 14 percent increase in
intake numbers at the shelter this year. And any given day we have 210 animals
currently at the shelter and every single day of the year, 365 days out of the year,
we receive an average of 27 more every single day. We have a number of or a
wide range of critical services that we provide for this island, and we are not just
an animal shelter. We have about 40 paid staff and 75 volunteer staff that help
out our shelter. Most of this you probably already know. The main reason I'm
here this morning is because last week the Maui Humane Society got more than
their fair share of the headlines in our Maui News. I thought you might want to
ask some questions about that. In a nod to the fact, however, that there is no such
thing as bad publicity, I do need to note that in the Sunday issue there were two
older Golden Retrievers pictured on the front page. Somebody saw them there
and came in and adopted them both into a new home. So I think it is true, there's
no such thing as bad publicity. On the off-chance that you don't have any
questions for me this morning, I guess what I want to reiterate is that the Maui
Humane Society is proud of our partnership with the County. Our board and staff
are at such a high level of engagement right now it's almost frightening, and we
are committed to providing the programs and services this County needs so that
you can continue to be proud of the Maui Humane Society. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this
morning? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Jocelyn, thanks very much. And I
know. . . (chuckle). . .you know, it's not always easy to be in any situation where
these disagreements happen. My question to you is in the past we've had a
proviso for spay and neuter.
MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is that in your, I guess, your vision that would still
continue just as it has in the past?
MS. BOUCHARD: Correct. We have the same amount of funding for Molokai Humane
Society in our budget. That's one of the things that is proviso'd and I believe the
other is 40,000 for spay/neuter, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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MS. BOUCHARD: And those are both in the budget at the same amount.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and the spay/neuter that's with the 9 th Life, I
think, is it?
MS. BOUCHARD: No, there's a partnership we have with Feline Foundation and we
provide...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Feline Foundation.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes, so funding for spay/neuters of feral cats.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. BOUCHARD: That is also in there, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. I just wanted to make sure that, you know,
because that was one of the things I got out of the articles was, you know,
spay/neuter is so critical.
MS. BOUCHARD: Absolutely. Absolutely. Definitely one of the biggest factors in
preventing continued high populations of unwanted animals.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and with regard to your comment about
the increase in services that you're getting, are people just dumping their animals
at the Humane Society or tying them up to your fence or whatever?
MS. BOUCHARD: All of the above. We are seeing an increase in, we have those
after-hours kennels and people utilizing those. Families are bringing them in with
great distress, you know, families that have had to move off island or they've lost
their homes and they're moving into a rental or a smaller house, and, and, you
know, they will bring them in and it's very emotional for everybody. So we see
it, it impacts us at all ways, dumps, bringing in, owner turn-ins, abandoned
animals on the street. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
-46-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Stacey Moniz followed by Sandy Baz. Members, I'm aware of
the time and we got Sandy and Terryl still awaiting, and Terryl is the last one that
signed up prior to the meeting convening. Stacey?
MS. MONIZ: Good morning. My name is Stacey Moniz. I'm the Executive Director at
Women Helping Women and wanted to say thank you again for going to Lanai. I
know we're, most of us were there on Thursday night. And, you know, it's quite
a trip to go over there, but it always reminds me of how isolated that community
is. I always feel like our State is very Oahu-centric and then when I go to Lanai,
I'm painfully reminded that I often am very Maui-centric in my thinking, too. So
I'm glad we all went over there. My purpose in being here today is to talk about
the Rental Assistance Program as well. Women Helping Women is one of the
four agencies that receives that money. And I was really, I had been wondering
how come our shelter, we had been operating at very, very high levels for the last
couple of years. Like I mean 25 women and 27 children at the shelter at any time,
and our numbers have been low and I haven't--so I thank Becky for mentioning
that--I never connected that to the Rental Assistance Program. I mean we're
down to about 11 women and 12 kids. But I really believe, I hadn't put those two
together, that's definitely a part of why we don't have a backlog at the shelter. If
the women in our shelter have the opportunity to move into their own place, they
defmitely will move and many of them are ready. But the thing that gets in their
way is the extremely high cost of moving into a new place. The best thing from
my perspective about the Rental Assistance Program is that we're able to help
families who are not homeless yet. Like the women in our shelter, they're already
homeless so they're going to have to put down a deposit, they're going to have to
pay first month's rent. If they owe arrears in their utility bills, they're going to
have to clean that up first, too. So it can be extremely expensive for them to
move into a new place. And if we can prevent them from becoming homeless,
that saves a lot of money, and this rental subsidy really, really makes a difference
for those women that are not homeless yet. So I am really excited by the
opportunity to, that you're considering more money in this area. I think when you
look at the struggles that so many of our families are facing, the fear of
homelessness is the biggest one. When you've got kids and you've been working
all this time and, you know, due to no, I'm not a drug addict, I'm not a, you know,
criminal, I'm just struggling and I'm going to be homeless with my kids, that it's,
it's such a critical need. We serve specifically battered and formerly battered
women. We also have a man in our program on Maui and Lanai with this money.
So our, our pool is pretty specific, our, the people who use our services, but we
defmitely partner a lot with the other agencies. So I want to encourage you to
consider that. It's wonderful news.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing--Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When we were on Lanai, I meant to ask you the
question, but is there an area where women can go or men can go for help -MS. MONIZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --where they can stay?
MS. MONIZ: Oh, well, you know, Beverly, she's our advocate on Lanai, she's worked
really, really hard with the community there and there are several resources she
has that are very confidential. But if people need shelter more than a few days,
they need to come to Maui or to Molokai, there's a shelter there, or Oahu or one
of the other shelters in the State. But shelter on Lanai, no, not at this time. We
had met with some community leaders a few years ago and at that time the, the
biggest need was the, a health center which they have now have created. So I
think we'll begin discussions again about having a shelter on Lanai. Rather than
having a confidential shelter it would be very public. I mean on an island with
3,000 people confidentiality would work like one time. And so, but we wanted to
have it very public and where the community takes ownership in keeping the
family safe there. And so we had that conversation. . .oh, maybe six years ago
now. I guess it's been quite a while. But now that the health center is up and
running I think we can revisit that idea now. But there is no, but Beverly does
coordinate safe places in the middle of the nights, on the weekends. We met with
the Police Department while we were there and they, you heard everybody
singing her praises, she's amazing. The work that she does, one women, people
come to her house in the middle of the night, they know where she lives. They
chase her down in the supermarket and on the street and she never stops working.
But she does find housing for, primarily I think it's been women. I don't think
we've had at the shelter any men there yet. But if we had a need, she could figure
it out.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you, Stacey. Sandy Baz followed by Terryl Vend, and
Maude Cummings [sic] would be the last testifier that signed up. Sandy?
MR. BAZ: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. My name is
Sandy Baz and I'm testifying on behalf of Maui Economic Opportunity. You will
be reviewing, hopefully, the grants that we receive today. I know you guys are
dealing with a lot of different issues and, and one more is a line in the Department
of Housing and Human Concerns item that's for rental assistance. And right now
that line gets funded $425,000 and you've heard testimony from our clients,
various clients throughout the different communities who've received rental
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assistance support and from executive directors, and from. . .also from community
members who are interested in trying to figure out where to get monies to support
rental assistance. It is a huge need and the more stable that we can have a family,
like was mentioned before, the, the, the less domestic violence there's going to be,
the less divorce, the less issues that are going to be involved in a lot of the social
problems that we have now. So if we can keep somebody in their home that's a
real, real strength or get somebody who is homeless into their own home. Just a
little bit of information, MEO was funded for, to serve 39 people in our Rental
Assistance Program. We were actually able to serve 53 and so that's significantly
higher than what we were funded to do, and that's through the diligence of our
staff and working with the clients on an individual basis. We don't just say here,
you have this, this amount of money to go spend on rent. We work with them
individually on their budget, on what their needs are. They're required to attend
credit classes, financial literacy, education. They, as part of their assistance, you
know, we may be able to pay their rent, and it's, again it's kind of sliding scale
until they become independent in, in their paying rent. We work with them
individually to remove those barriers to why they can't pay their rent. So if they
have a problem going to work because they don't have a car, because they can't
pay their insurance, we'll go and pay their rent, but we want them to bring in a
receipt that says that they paid their car insurance so then they can go and, and get
to their jobs or their second job or other employments. We also tie this in with
another program that is funded by the State, but they are required to be TANF
eligible. This program serves a huge need. There is more need, of course, than
there is out there. But if you want to, we want to look at expanding the program,
providing more funding, better assistance, we would probably--right now we have
a cap and if the family size is greater than six, they're, they're kind of capped out
at that, at that family size. So if we could increase that, we could increase that to
be able to meet different family sizes, as well right now we don't pay for back
rent. As part of our program, you know, we won't pay. . .if they're, if they're in
arrears, we cannot pay for their back rent. Maybe we can pay their future rent so
that they can, they can catch up.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. BAZ: But if we can also pay for their back rent, then we can increase that as well.
Right now we average around $3,000 per participant that gets assistance from
MEO services. So I'm here to answer any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Members, questions for Mr. Baz?
Member Nishiki followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sandy -MR. BAZ: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and you may not want to answer this. The hotel and
lodging people were gutsy enough to let us know how we may be able to fund
programs and they mentioned property taxes. Has the nonprofits ever taken a
stand or do you intend to into how perhaps we can-MR. BAZ: I can't, I can't speak on behalf of the nonprofits.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. BAZ: I can just speak on behalf of my own personal opinion. And I think that right
now the citizens of Maui County, while they're struggling through economic
times, do have very low real property tax rates. And so . . . (end of tape 2B —
11:03 a.m.). . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hi, Sandy. Thank you, Chair. Do you have a wait list at
MEO for rental assistance?
MR. BAZ: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And any idea how bad that is? I remember at one point it
was ridiculous and I don't know how bad it is right now.
MR. BAZ: Right now the wait list is about 20.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Twenty?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that's 20 people coming to you and saying I'm going
to lose my home if I can't get some help?
MR. BAZ: Right. The reason why it's a little bit lower than in the past is because the
County, Department of Housing and Human Concerns has been really good about
getting the funding that is available out to the, to the four agencies that provide
the support in a timely manner and, and for you guys for keeping it funded.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you see a lot of homeless people coming to MEO?
MR. BAZ: Yes, we do. The...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maybe not necessarily speaking...
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MR. BAZ: For this program?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. They may come in for various reasons, employment. MEO has 65
different programs, as you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (chuckle). . . Oh my gosh, it's grown.
MR. BAZ: So, yes, it's grown. It's grown quite a bit. So they come in for various
things, but when they come in the door, we help them, we, we do an assessment
of what their needs are and kind of what areas that we can support them in with
those different programs. So if it's transportation or Head Start or infant/toddler
care -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --or employment or anything like that, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, my fear is that, you know, we're going to see that
increasing exponentially with the loss of, with the foreclosures and people losing
their homes. So I think as we prepare this budget, I think it's important that we
have some information about if there is a huge wave of this coming so we can
prepare.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Foreclosures have impacted the community. If you look in the paper,
you see on a daily basis...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know, four pages of foreclosures instead of jobs now.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: So the people who are being foreclosed upon, you know, there's all kinds of
speculation about what kind of loans that they had and different things, but loss of
job is usually one of the major reasons why they're being foreclosed. The
availability that we have to assist them with rental and get them a shelter, you
know, a house over their head is something that will impact their life and help
them to be continuing to have employment and a fairly decent social life.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. Thank you for all the work you
do. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Sandy.
MR. BAZ: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thanks for your testimony with regards to rental
assistance. You mentioned in your testimony that MEO would look at if, if this
body does approve an increase.. .
MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . .that you would look at assisting clients with paying
their back rent as well. Have you ever used the monies that you currently have
appropriated used to help with back rent?
MR. BAZ: Not in the past few years. We, we changed the program with the County's
assistance about three or four years ago and, because before it used to pay for
back rent or first month's deposit or, or, I mean deposit or first month's rent. But
in looking at the type of program that we were able to provide and the long-term
outcome we're looking for, we, with the County's department staff worked on
changing the program so that it would have a long-term impact. And, you know,
like you heard Becky say, she had a 80 percent success rate. MEO's success rate
is actually 100 percent in this program right now in keeping the people in their
homes because of the way that it's set up. So we'd have to increase it to include
back rent and moving forward into them to becoming self sufficient.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I, I'm just, you know, just trying to get a better
understanding of it. Because you might have some folks out there who, who,
whom might say, okay, now we're going to also include paying back rent as well.
`Cause I know the intent has always been to give, provide a hand-up and not a
handout.
MR. BAZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So I just want to be -MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --get a clear understanding of . . (inaudible).. .
MR. BAZ: It would, it would still have to meet our criteria of -- 52 -
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --them being, you know, that having a source of income to be able to, to
show them to be able to become self-sufficient after a certain period of time.
Those criteria would still be set in there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: But if we have the ability to keep people from getting homeless to begin
with, then that would be an excellent tool on our belt.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, thank you
very much.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I got one question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, it, how long have you been in the Rental
Assistance Program?
MR. BAZ: Oh. I'd been at MEO for almost ten years -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll ask the question.
MR. BAZ: --and, and we've been doing it ever since then, probably before that, for a
few years before that too.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and your clients that are participating, have
you seen rents increase?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you seen rents decrease?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When have these decreases occurred?
MR. BAZ: Recently. Yeah, with the, the amount of rent that people have to pay
currently is lower than it was a year and a half, two years ago.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But the clients that are currently paying $100 because
of the current situation, landlords haven't dropped their rents, have they?
MR. BAZ: We don't have a program where the client would only pay $100.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, no, no, I'm just using that as a figure.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. No. The way our program works different necessarily than the, the
vision of Section 8 is that they're only on a subsidy for a very short period of
time. So the landlord can't get used to a higher amount of subsidy that he would
decrease, you know, or he would keep increased because there's money coming in
the door.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you think there is need for someone to build rental
housing?
MR. BAZ: Yes, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you very much, Sandy.
Terryl Vencl followed by Maude Cummings [sic].
MS. VENCL: Aloha, Mr. Chairman and Council Members. I apologize for the voice
today. Hopefully it'll last for as long as your questions last. My name is
Terryl Vencl. I'm the Executive Director of the Maui Visitors Bureau. Let me
please begin by thanking the Administration and all of you for your many, many
years of incredible support for MVB. I'd like to ask, once again, for your
favorable nod for the funding of MVB. We feel very fortunate to have that
consideration in the budget at this point. It's tough times out there. The national
economy is struggling; therefore, vacationers are concerned about taking trips.
We had the best quarter ever in our history in 2008 just before the fall of ATA
and Aloha Airlines and then, of course, followed by the global economy. The sad
news is not just that they're not traveling as much, but they're not spending at the
same rate they have in the last four years. Our airlines and accommodations have
had to provide deep discounts as incentives for visitors to travel which results
unfortunately in less TAT and GET. And because the vacationers' budget is to
spend less, they hurt, you know, they're hurting our small businesses when they
spend less as well. The largest employer, the largest revenue generator and the
largest industry in this County remains the visitor industry. If our residents aren't
working, they are not buying, so that means that not only do we have a downturn
in visitor spending, but we now have a downturn in resident spending, again
hurting all of our businesses. Most of these issues in terms of the economy are
out of our control. It's about consumer confidence. If people aren't working or if
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they're having issues with mortgages, et cetera, they don't feel confident about
spending even what they have. Maui County has always stepped to the plate to
assist the Bureau with dedicated funding and I certainly hope you'll continue to
do so. I don't have to tell you that we need to stay top of mind. We have to be
head-to-head or ahead of the very stiff competition. Other destinations are
offering cash back, offering money for flights, offering many things that frankly
our budgets do not allow. So what is MVB doing? We're not doing the same old
thing, I can tell you that. It changes daily almost sometimes. We're doing more
partnering, we're doing more leveraging, we're doing more thinking out of the
box. Exposure right now is paramount as people do begin to shop and look for
places to take a vacation. The properties and airlines, as mentioned, are offering
specials and incentives like they've never done before. In fact it is less now, it is
less expensive to come to Maui now than it has been in any recent history. MVB
must, must continue to be out there sharing the information, dispelling myths
regarding airlift and -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. VENCL: --training agents as to why they need to work a little harder to sell a
destination experience that is like none other versus the easy inclusive destination
where in some cases it might not even be safe to travel. MVB is working hard to
reenergize our marketing efforts through new production of commercials, ads for
publications, online banners and a brand new website coming soon. We need to
continually reach out to, to the incentive and conference businesses as we are all
being painted with the same brush as people, such as AIG. We also need to keep
up our efforts for exposure in the many different medias, the publications, radio,
TV, and/or events. For Maui visitors I believe that we're going to experience a
very slow, gradual -MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MS. VENCL: --climb back. I believe that we're about to see some pent-up demand that
I hope will slow the bleeding. . . .(clears throat). . . Excuse me. That, though,
will be punctuated probably by steep hills and valleys as we have experienced in
the past. This is no time to step back and wait to see what happens. This year and
next will be critical to rebuilding the revenue base that we've enjoyed for many
prosperous years. What we do or don't do right now will make a difference in the
very near future. You can't leave the marketplace and expect to remain top of
mind. Some reports point to the fact that we'll be looking at a new frugality in
our society, but I don't think it means that we should change our course at all. I
think we stick to the course we have set and we allow ourselves to be fluid, we
stay on top of research, trending -MR. TAGUCHI: Five minutes.
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MS. VENCL: --and we respond accordingly to stay ahead of the competition. Your
contribution, your specific contribution is what allows MVB or Maui to do things
that some of our other islands are not able to do. Once again, thank you for your
past and present support and for your consideration. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks so much, Terryl, and I'm sorry you're
not feeling well. You heard the, you know, answers or the, you know, questions
that we're asking before. So I'm not going to, you know, go through that again
because I think that hopefully at some point you'll be able to give us a response.
But one of the things that, you know. . .and I get asked this all time by people who
really, you know, have had past concerns with how we grant money. You are the
recipient or the Maui Visitors Bureau is the recipient of let's say 3.8,
$3.85 million in the past. What ends up happening as a result of that investment,
the monies come into the hotel properties and then they give so much in terms of
grants or do fundraising or other things to help support community organizations.
Now what's been suggested to me--and I have no way to respond to this, so I'm
going to ask you to respond--when we give the visitor industry $4 million roughly
and let's say $1 million of that would come back in the form of grants or
community aid to nonprofits, why not just have the County directly give the
million dollars and distribute it where we want it to go, and then reduce your
amount that we're giving you by the $1 million? You understand what I'm
saying?
MS. VENCL: Maybe, let me try.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .(chuckle). . . Okay.
MS. VENCL: If you're speaking about the--there is no grants or money or anything like
that that's given to nonprofits outside, as far as I know, outside of Charity Walk
donations, that's the cash. The Charity Walk brings in something like $300,000
and it is then divvied up among different players, different nonprofits. The stuff
that I think Carol was eluding to a little earlier is about certificates for auction
items and certificates for this or that, or for giving people ballrooms for whatever
their school function is or that sort of thing. So I guess in that sense, I'm not sure,
it sounds like your, people think that because we get a grant that that somehow
goes to the hotels, and that's not true. We're just totally, that's totally separate.
Everything we have is spent on marketing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I. . .well, and I, I guess, you know, if I can follow the
rationale of the people making this case to me, what they're saying is that it's the
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visitor industry as a group, as a result of your marketing, you're bringing in
visitors, therefore that additional funding would be accessible to these nonprofits.
So their case to me was that, well, what's the difference? So you're saying that
there's absolutely no relationship between what you do and the fact that tourism
increases and the tourists come here to frequent our, our hotels and lodging?
MS. VENCL: No, I don't think that's what I said. I think that I said, that's what I do. I
mean our funding is meant for marketing and it's generally outside this State and
it is designed to bring people into the State to spend dollars that go into the
County and the State coffers. That's what we do. The Hotel Association does a
Charity Walk that's totally separate from anything. I don't help them with
Charity Walk, I don't give them any funding for Charity Walk, I don't do any of
that. That's a whole separate issue that they do as part of their mission. Their
mission is to advocate, legislate, help with legislation and to give back to the
community from that sector. But it has, that has nothing to do with what it is that
we do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. Well, I hope these people are watching
that asked me the question. . . . (chuckle).. .
MS. VENCL: Well, I'd be happy to talk to anyone if they wanted to call me and ask me,
I, I would, I'd be happy to speak to anyone about it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much.
MS. VENCL: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair And thank you,
Ms. Vend, for being here. Maybe we can clarify this a little bit more so that
people understand. What the hotels do, resorts, the different tour groups, tour
companies that, that do business here in Hawaii, how they help nonprofits in a
direct manner is not based upon your money? Am I correct in saying that?
MS. VENCL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And so that the public understands the
questioning that was being done by the Member prior to me, Member Johnson,
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what I'm seeing is that--I've been a part of whether it's Hale Kau Kau, St.
Anthony and all these other. . .I can go on and on and on of different programs
that we have dinners, auctions. These are generated income off of donations for
hotel stay; restaurants usage; tours, whether it's kayaking, whether it's a surf
lesson--I don't care what it might be--that is offered for the visitor industry and
the residents in general, but in the visitor industry would be really what we're
looking at. These are given by many hotels, by many of these companies so that
we can auction it off and whatever money we make is what goes to. . .whether it's
Hale Kau Kau, whether it's a St. Anthony, whether it's MECC, or whatever it
might be. These monies go directly to those organizations to offset their
operating and other organizational expenses. Is that correct?
MS. VENCL: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so there is a real definitive difference
between the two so that people understand that what you do, whether it's for the
Lions, whether it's for Kiwanis, whether it's Rotary, I don't care what
organization that have fundraisers and go to the various hotels and other
visitor-type businesses, those monies, those gifts that are given to them to be
auctioned or to be sold or to be given out as part of the golf tournament or
whatever it might be, that monies is for that organization for their fundraising
purposes. It has nothing to do with your promotion, your bringing the visitor,
keeping the visitor top-of-mind aspect of what you're doing versus the hotel, what
they do for the community?
MS. VENCL: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I just wanted that clarification.
And I think, Chair, we, we who've been in the nonprofit like in your case with the
Lions have seen the benefits in other organizations, and I think we have to thank
the hotel industry and the visitor industry in many areas. Direct benefit, but they
also give back a lot and that's beyond the Maui Charity Walk.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Medeiros
followed by Member Molina, followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Vend, thank you for
being here and for your testimony. I hope you get well soon.
MS. VENCL: Thank you. I'm sure I will.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I think we all recognize that the visitor industry
certainly is the largest employer, revenue generator and industry in our County,
and we're trying to work with you and this industry to see how best we can
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maximize the use of taxpayers' money to keep, you know, promoting this
industry. In part of your written testimony and your oral testimony there's a
sentence that says other destinations are offering cash back and money for flights.
When you refer to a destination, is it a specific property or is more like a state or a
country?
MS. VENCL: It's a state and country. It's Puerto Rico, it's Mexico, it's Florida, it's
international countries.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. So who offers this cash back and money
for flights? Is, is it their governments? Is it their industry? Who offers this?
MS. VENCL: Much of it is out of the government, but I'm sure the visitor industry must
have to do something in those areas in order to get money from the government.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I asked earlier when Ms. Reimann was,
was here and testifying, I asked her if the visitor industry, the Visitors Bureau and
the Hotel and Lodging Association, do you have periodic meetings where all three
groups are meeting to discuss, you know, strategic plans to improve things?
MS. VENCL: Our boards are, are separate meetings, of course, but some of the, you
know, yes, there are conversations among us and among people, such as HTA as
well as HVCB, our corporate in Honolulu. So, yeah, there's meetings going on
all the time to gather research, to learn what's happening out there and try to
decide where do we need to go, how do we need to move the checker to make it
work better for us.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. You mentioned they're talking among
themselves. But are there any official meetings that incorporate all three groups?
MS. VENCL: Official meetings. Well, we've had-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I mean do you have a, a group meeting of the three-MS. VENCL: Yeah. Probably in a, a month ago maybe the HTA folks were here. The
marketing directors of, I'm sorry, the marketing contractors from all over the
globe were here. There was a--the public was invited--there was a thing in the
paper to attend. So official meetings, if you mean official as in open to the public,
there are those.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. I'm, I'm trying to get some clarification if,
since the Maui Visitors Bureau with their funding does the marketing use of the
funding and the marketing benefits the hotel and lodging industry. So I would
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think that there was a combined meeting periodically among the principals of
these groups, but there isn't?
MS. VENCL: We don't have a meeting of, again, of our two boards. I can tell you that,
of course, Carol and I work very closely together and when we have comments,
concerns, whatever, we take each others comments, concerns if you will.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. VENCL: . . .to our own, to our own boards. You, if I can recall when you asked her
that question, you mentioned something about strategic planning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. VENCL: Understand that everyone, we, we are both membership organizations and
everyone in our membership knows what we're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. VENCL: I've just actually instituted a brand new thing to send out quarterly that
tells everybody exactly what's happened in the last three months, what's going to
happen in the next three months. The reason I did that is because things are
changing so quickly. We used to be able to do a plan and it would last for, you
know, pretty much a year, you'd have to tweak it here and there. But we're
having to move and do things differently. An example that I'll quickly give you,
if I can, Mr. Chair, is we just did a full-on media blitz for one entire week in the
Bay Area. Unheard of, we've never done it before, and we were part of a
month-long program that was setup with a partnership between HVCB and
Hawaiian Airlines. And what happened was each island took a week during the
month of March and themed it and then went out there and had a week in the Bay
Area. So ours happened to be the third week of March, we themed it Romance
Me Maui which is our romance campaign. And I'll tell you, it generated tons of
interest and we're now trying to put the numbers together, actual flights, how
many packages did you book out of this kind of thing. We're working on those
numbers right now, but phones started ringing in the Bay Area, agents were being
called. We were on radio every day during the month of March, Maui was. So
that's kind of unheard of and what has been said or talked about is that if that
turns out that it was a very good success for us, we may take that same thought
pattern and move it to maybe the Pacific Northwest in the fall.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I realize, I think from previous
testimony you gave us or sharing of information, that the West Coast was and still
is one of our better markets?
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MS. VENCL: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And with the new global thinking going on as far as
alternative energy and, you know, a lot of, having to do with environments, are
we looking for new markets?
MS. VENCL: I'm always looking for new markets.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are there any new potential markets that you're
considering?
MS. VENCL: Last year, I went to China. I went for the sole purpose of finding out
about that visitor, who they are, what they want, what, what we have that would
interest them. I have someone today in Korea doing the same thing. I do know
that in the Korean market right now they look a lot like the Japan market did to us
one time. They love golf, they don't have the opportunity to play it a lot, and it's
very expensive. And honeymoon and romance is a hot one, a hot theme, if you
will, for the Korean market. So, yes, we are looking at both of those. Do I expect
any big onslaughts? Probably not. We do not have direct flights, so the first
people to see any onslaught would be the Big Island or Oahu, and then they will
begin to learn more and more about Maui and realize that it's worth the extra leg,
if you will, on an airplane to come to Maui. But you can't wait until it's time to
do that to start marketing. Your name's got to be out there, you've got to start
finding out who these people are and what they want when they get here first.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and just finally, Ms. Vend, in the same
thinking and same regard do you target market, marketing, such as do you target a
group or an industry such as environmentalist or alternative energy officials, or is
it a broad marketing?
MS. VENCL: There's a couple different things. In the leisure market our markets are,
our targets are the 100,000, 75 to 100,000 and above households. They are
generally, our demographics run 50, 45 to 60 years of age. So those are the kinds
of, for example, publications that we might get in, the kinds of things that that
demographic reads. We also in the meetings and conventions arena, our biggest
business, I guess, our largest share of that business comes from the incentive
business. The incentive business meaning when you work for a corporation and
they tell you make this goal, you make that goal, they give you a trip to Maui.
Guess what, those people have.. .all their money is discretionary spending
because it's all picked up by the corporate. That's one of the issues we're having
now with this brush that's painted all business trips a bad deal and it isn't a bad
deal. So we're trying to work on that avenue and try to make sure that people
know because that's our, that's huge for us. One more thing about that market,
we are heavy in pharmaceuticals and flooring and medical.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, thank you for sharing that information
because I, I think it's important that we really diversify our marketing to get, you
know, different markets to Hawaii and to especially Maui County. So thank you,
Ms. Vend, for that information. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. VENCL: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Terryl. You
know in your testimony, you mentioned that MVB is thinking outside of the box
which many of us can appreciate. What about the issue of staycations? And I
bring up staycations because, you know, the target has always been, yeah, let's
bring the visitors here, get them to spend money. But what about staycations to
promote that and do something good for our residents? You know if you can,
there's an effort to talk with the various property owners about doing, if you will,
a media blitz here. Because there's a lot of people who want to take that vacation
with their families, but obviously the cost for air travel and so forth is very
expensive. Why not do it right here in Maui? It's a beautiful place and
sometimes you talk to residents they, who've lived here for years and they've
never been to Haleakala or, or, you know, just down, spending a lot of time down
in the resort areas. I mean I kind of look at this as a win-win situation and as a
way the visitor industry can sort of show their appreciation for our residents who
have to, you know, deal with a lot of visitors who come here and infrastructure
concern, issues as well. But the whole point being that we're in such a downtime,
people are stressed, they still want to take that, that little mini-vacation and rather
than going elsewhere, how about doing it right here? What kind of efforts is
MVB looking at in, in regards to that area?
MS. VENCL: In years past the instruction given to MVB has been that we are to market
outside this State to bring people in. That is basically what we have done. There
are times when it's been a downturn or there are times, Molokai is another great
example, where people want to visit our own islands. And so we do small kine
things like that. The hotels have most recently stepped up with . . . (end of tape 3A
- 11:38 a.m.). . . they are the ones who generally put those offers out as opposed
to coming through us, because again we represent a destination as opposed to a
hotel who wants a visitor to go specifically to that hotel. I think that Carol
worked on some information regarding kamaaina rates and staycation kinds of
things, and at some point maybe she could share that information with you.
Because I know it always comes up and everybody is always interested and
you're exactly right. I did one last weekend. I had family here. Let me tell you, I
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was a visitor for a week. . .boy, was I a visitor. That's probably why I'm sick.
. . . (chuckle). . . But I was running, running, running the whole time. But I did, I
did just that, I took, took family out. And oftentimes, we sometimes get caught in
this rut where we think that we don't, we don't go on our vacations locally unless
we do have visitors. So it's not often that, that we have the chance to do that. But
I'm, I'm with you and I think the hotels are, are open to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And thank you for that comment. If there's someway
you can relay that message to the property owners, and, and there's an indirect
benefit in the economy. I mean if they, they may have that dinner, you know, you
have a reduced room rate, you may or may not spend at the hotel other than that.
But, you know, you're going to spend money in the region, you're going to go to
that store to go bring the goodies back to the hotel room or go to that restaurant
out there. So from a, from a broader perspective I think there's a real economic
benefit in promoting the staycation to our residents. So anyway, just a thought I
hope you consider.
MS. VENCL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. We just got back from Lanai,
right?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Single digit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Single digit occupancy. Catching the ferry, $50 round trip.
Carol, if you're listening, please talk to that property on Lanai. You know, I'm
sure a lot of Maui guys want to catch the ferry for $50 roundtrip and stay one of,
at one of those two properties. I thought I'd mention it to you since you're here.
Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Terryl, not to question your marketing, but
asking about why San Francisco was chosen as that test? Income? What was it?
MS. VENCL: No, it was actually the population, you know, there's a large population
within a Bay Area. It wasn't just San Fran, it was north, it was south, we brought,
you know, people came in from all areas. It's also a place where you can pull
people together in a centralized way other than--because we did have the question
why not L.A. L.A. is spread out a lot further and so we could, much easier bring
a lot of people from south and San Jose, Sacramento and some of those areas,
easier to congregate them, if you will, in San Francisco when we brought in the
media and the travel agents, et cetera.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Then you mentioned you're looking and you took a trip
to China and you mentioned Korea, and then you mentioned direct flights and so
you put Japan in there. Do you actually know how many people from China are
visiting someplace in the world?
MS. VENCL: Someplace in the world? I don't have that with me but, yeah, I could tell
you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, do the Chinese people go and travel?
MS. VENCL: They are traveling.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: To the tune of what number?
MS. VENCL: Oh, I, not enough that I would spend huge dollars in. Let me, let me
clarify what I said and I probably didn't go deep enough. In those developing
markets Maui needs to, they need to know that there is a Maui. So we need
something there that, that gives us a presence. But when you look at what we do
in those areas versus North America and Canada and even Australia, it's manini
kine money, but it will build if the travelers build and that's what we're looking
for. We have to wait and see.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. That's the question I asked is because if you
don't know the numbers that are leaving China to go and visit, you don't know
the numbers that are leaving Japan or Korea to go visit. I know that Honolulu
attracts a lot of Japanese.
MS. VENCL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So if you don't know those numbers or don't know
where these people are visiting, then you would have no idea on how to lure them
to Maui.
MS. VENCL: Well, I do know, I do know the numbers. I don't have them in front of me
right now, but I do know how many people are outbound from those countries.
And-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And where are they visiting?
MS. VENCL: They're visiting US, mainland. One of the thoughts is this is a stopover as
they're going to US for three days, four days, that'd be a great thing. They are
visiting Europe. And let me just clarify one thing, a lot of people think that
because the government worked with China to deal with the visa issue, it's not
like it's easier, much easier to get anything. You see, in the past people couldn't
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travel from China to America unless they were on a business visa. What the
government did was said you can now travel for leisure. They still have to
qualify, they still have to spend an exorbitant amount of money to get their
passports and visas and whatever. And they're not, they have to go only into two
or three different places in China that'll offer that. So it's not, you know, I don't
personally see flood gates, if you will, opening up there. But I do like the idea of
stopovers on their way to somewhere else to begin to build this business and
understand the business. So I don't want to discount it, but at the same time it's
not going to take the time and effort that we spend in North America, Canada,
Europe and Australia and New Zealand, because the market's not there quite yet.
May I add one more thing? And one of the biggest things we did actually was a
DVD. We have done a new DVD, an English, Japanese, Chinese and Korea.
And so what does that DVD do. . .that and, and some brochures? We printed
them in those languages so that we can send them out to the travel agencies, and
they're our voice when we're not there. And they have something to remind and
show people who Maui is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Has the State decreased your funding or do you know
what monies you're getting from the State and what you were getting in prior
years?
MS. VENCL: In the past I have gotten 3.2. We have been given so far $130,000
decrease, but that's still all up in the air just like yours is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sorry, Chair, I know you want to get on with this, but at
some point we're going to have to discuss this 'cause it's a very large budget
item, so we might as well do it while we have Terryl. And she sounds like me.
We don't know when we're going to give out here with the, with the bad throats.
Terryl, Terryl, I notice that you talk a lot about entertaining or approaching or
working with travel agents.
MS. VENCL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know in the United States today, don't a lot of
people just surf the net and get to Expedia or wherever it is that they go and buy
their trip without going to a travel agent?
MS. VENCL: Okay. First of all, all of those kinds of, of agencies have travel agents.
They have to know when they talk to people on the phone, when they try to
answer questions. But in answer to the first question, there are still many, more
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than half that's, that even surf the web but then go to an agent to book. They go
to the web to learn, they go to the web to shop, and then they want somebody to
be sure they have someone to go back to should they have an issue, and they often
go to a travel agent. Travel agents are not as much on the out as people think that
they are.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I haven't talked to one in years so I kinda
wondered if that was still the vogue being that now we all like to, you know, go
online and just book our trip with United or wherever we're going. But I guess
that's not the case.
MS. VENCL: Well, I think it also has to do with those who may have a different income
level, those who have the savvy of shopping and booking online, and believe it or
not, there's a lot of people out there who don't have that right now. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know for a while we heard so much about travel
agencies not doing very well and their cuts being so junk. It, it just doesn't
follow.
MS. VENCL: Well, I can only tell you--I can try to find some numbers for you--but I
can tell you that it does, that the agents are huge, hugely important.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Interesting for me because I thought we're
moving away from that.
MS. VENCL: Believe me, if they weren't producing, I wouldn't be spending time with
them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. VENCL: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. VENCL: Mr. Chairman, I will be, I do expect to be here through the day if there are
other questions that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got one last question before I let you go.
MS. VENCL: Pardon me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I get one question before I let you go.
MS. VENCL: Okay.
- 66 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to your San Francisco trip you, you mentioned
Hawaiian Air. I know Hawaiian Air is a company that provide trips to the
mainland as far, as well as to Asia. So your, your partnering with Hawaiian Air in
regards to that trip that you took in San Francisco, because I know that they have
a lot of destinations on the West Coast. Is that a strategic plan that you might, or
in fact the whole State might be taking advantage of? In other words partnering
with Hawaiian Air along with, for instance, Maui Visitors Bureau to get more
clients to Maui.
MS. VENCL: Okay. Let me see if I-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't want to put you on the spot with United and the rest of
the airlines but.. .
MS. VENCL: Well, it's not a matter that we don't partner. We always partner when
somebody steps up and says let us help you. We would never turn that down.
This particular situation was, you know, it was only one of us who went over
there, that's, that's all. Basically Hawaiian's partnership in that was that, that
actually we were lucky, because we have relationships we were lucky to get some
free trips so that we could give away free trips all day long when we were on the
radio. So we were lucky in that aspect. But what happens is people, and it might
be a wholesaler or it might be an airline, it could be any number of different kinds
of agencies, it might be an Expedia who comes to us and says...we will go out to
them and we'll say we're looking for some help in the shoulder seasons, in the
fall, in the springtime. What do you got that we, what kind of program can you
put together for us that we can all enjoy some revenue out of that. And so they
come up, a lot of times they come up with the idea, or our inquisitiveness will
bring them to a point that they go, well, I got this idea, what do you think about
that? Then we all sit down and we try to figure out if that's something that works
for us or it needs to be modified, or it needs to be jimmied around or whatever it
is. But it happens with airlines, it happens with wholesalers, it happens with
online people, it happens across the board for us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. VENCL: And we'll take it whenever we can get it. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you will. Thank you. So, Members, Terryl is going to
be here all day so if you have any more questions regarding the visitors industry,
you know, go see Terryl. At this time the Chair would like to call on
Maude Cummings [sic]. Thank you, Terryl. Maude is the last testifier that, that
signed up prior to the meeting.
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MS. CUMMING: Welcome, Council Members. My name is Maude Cumming and I'm
the Executive Director for Family Life Center. And I'm here to speak about the
County Rental Assistance Program. Out of the last $400,000 appropriation
Family Life Center received $50,000. So we looked at that money and said how
are we going to make it have the most impact and ensure that the people that we
assist remain housed? So we do that by trying to leverage and, and partner and
collaborate. One of the things we were able to do is last October the Veterans
Administration, for example, nationwide came up with HUD Section 8 vouchers
for homeless veterans, and Hawaii received 70 of those vouchers. So we
immediately went out and tried to identify any people that we knew that were
veterans that could benefit for this as well as work with the local Veterans
Administration. And we were able to assist five homeless veterans and we know
that they're going to be sustainable because we, we try to help with one shot how
we're going to make the most impact. So we're able, we're able to assist with the
deposit and then the, their Section 8 voucher is going to help sustain it. They also
have case management from the Veterans Administration as well as the case
management that we provide. We also look at whether, other kinds of supports
that the rest of our programs, other programs other than rental assistance offer,
and one of those is if we see perhaps a client--we work with the Mental Health
Department, for example--there may be a client that receives Social Security, that
the reason they, they are not housed is because they cannot manage their own
finances. We will offer to be the representative payee, where we will receive,
we'll setup accounts for them. We receive their Social Security and we pay their
bills and we work with their case manager, and that way we know that they're
going to stay housed. We do not maintain a wait list because we found that
generally the need is immediate, and by the time, we spend more time trying to
see these, call people, are you still needing assistance? But currently we're
experiencing about eight to ten calls a week that we cannot, we cannot assist. We
only have a, most of our funding we try to provide direct assistance so we have a
quarter, 25 percent case manager assigned. So when the, the case load is heavy,
we stop accepting any new applications. I get calls from people saying they,
they're buying food instead of paying their rent. We encourage them to pay their
rent. We will help them with food because we have other programs that offer
that, that that is more important. So we, we try to cap off assistance at about
$1,200 per household -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. CUMMING: --and it averages about $900. Any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For curiosity's sake, does the check that you cut to a
landlord go directly to them or do you give it to the person requesting the rent
assistance?
MS. CUMMING: We never cut out checks to individuals. We do an inspection and we
take pictures, we write up a contract with the landlord. The, the, the check goes
directly to the landlord, it's mailed to them or they pick it up. If the client leaves
for any reason, the check must come back to us, and we put it in another fund
where we can continue to use it for, for rental assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is there any charge that you charge whoever's giving
you the money for your overhead costs?
MS. CUMMING: No. Oh, you mean the landlord or. . .?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You, as an individual, to take care of Bill Medeiros and
you, you charge a certain percentage of...
MS. CUMMING: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (chuckle). . . Thank you. Members, any more questions for
the testifier? Seeing none, thank you, Maude, for being here this morning.
MS. CUMMING: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maude is the last testifier to sign up prior to the meeting. Is
there anyone out there that want to provide public testimony at this time that
haven't signed up yet? Seeing none, Members, without any objections, the Chair
would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members...
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr. Chair, can I take. . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Director Tsuhako?
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MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla and Members. I just want to quickly,
before I forget, let you know that the Federal stimulus money has come down to
the Hawaii State Public Housing Authority in the form of a program called
Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing. This program is being administered
through the State. I'm on the review committee that's currently reviewing about
14 applications that were made for services to the Neighbor Island communities.
We are expecting funding to go directly from the State to the selected nonprofits
in the amount of $700,000. Most of the requests from the agencies on Maui have
been for rent subsidies. So we are expecting that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you identify the programs, the. . .well,
organization that will handle this program?
MS. TSUHAKO: The selection hasn't been made yet, Mr. Chair. The evaluation
committee was supposed to meet by teleconference this morning, but the Public
Housing staff wasn't prepared to proceed so the meeting has been postponed until
tomorrow morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the 700,000 is strictly for Maui or we'll be competing,
competition throughout the State?
MS. TSUHAKO: No. The total funding for this program was $2 1 million and so we
expect Maui County to be allocated, Maui County agencies, not the County itself
but Maui County agencies to be allocated a total of about $700,000. Historically
Kauai has not had the providers to be able to use money that's been allocated in
an equal fashion to them. And if there's leftover money from Kauai not being
able to spend their allocation, then the extra money would be allocated to other
agencies Statewide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that good news.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Lori, who or were you in charge of contacting
the different agencies here who may have been provided rent subsidy, and did
you?
MS. TSUHAKO: For this current request for information from the State?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For the applicants that were going to apply from Maui
to run the program.
- 70 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

MS. TSUHAKO: The information came directly from the State, Councilmember Nishiki,
through what they call a Request For Information. It was also transmitted through
the Maui County Continuum of Care which is a large consortium of agencies as
well as individuals who are involved with homelessness. It's a very, it was a very
short turnaround time. I think they only had about four days to prepare proposals.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. But I just wanted to know that whomever they
are were contacted?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. They all applied.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: All of the, the four recipients who receive rental assistance funding
through the County all applied in addition to some others.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'll make it really short. We heard today from, Director,
four agencies who participate in providing rental assistance. Is the Salvation
Army included?
MS. TSUHAKO: No. The Salvation Army is not a current County grantee,
Member Baisa. But the Salvation Army did make an application to the Hawaii
Public Housing Authority for part of the funding that's available through the
Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing grant.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So of the County grantees that do it, we listened to
four, are there more?
MS. TSUHAKO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. It's important we get the
whole picture. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Chair is going to recess this meeting
till 1:30 this afternoon and we'll reconvene at 1:30. So this meeting is in recess.
. . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:00 p.m.
1:33 p.m.
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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC Nos. 09-59 and 09-88)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, we had a long morning in regards to public
testimony. We've heard from the nonprofit sector that provide services to our
people here in Maui County. This afternoon the first thing that we're going to
cover is the Maui Humane Society program. And at this time, the Chair would
like to have comments either by the Budget Director or Ms. Tsuhako from
Department of Housing and Human Concerns.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair, and good afternoon, Members. I'd like to make some
comments regarding, regarding the morning testimony and perhaps shed some
light on how the Administration came across this budget that, that you're
deliberating for the next couple weeks. First, I want to thank all the nonprofit
organizations that showed up this morning and have been in contact with our
office and for working with us on a tight and focused budget in a very, very
challenging economic times. However, while the 2010 Budget is constrained,
unfortunately we expect that this will continue also into Fiscal Year 2011, as you
have all heard and are well aware of from the news about our national economy.
These circumstances make the budgeting decisions and fiscal management of our
County even more challenging. . .to responsibly, which then is difficult is. . .it is
critical that we remain conservative for the long term for the viability of our
County.
Second, this Administration supports the nonprofits and the services they provide
to the community. For Fiscal Year '10 we have budgeted 34 million, which is
pretty near the same level as we had in Fiscal Year '08 and Fiscal Year '09, and
which is 100 percent increase when you compare this Administration's budgets
for grants, line item grants as compared to 2004 when the grants were only
17 million. It's 100 percent increase. It is also important to know that while
grants have increased 100 percent, our Department's operational costs for the
same period of five years have increased only 72 percent.
We have heard the discussions this morning about raising real property taxes to
support our current levels of spending. However, the Administration fully
realizes that this is an option, it always is and we have seriously considered it.
However, we also noted that there's a lot of challenges right now in the
unemployment area. Many individuals have lost jobs, many of you, including
myself, know people who have, are working but are working at reduced hours.
And many of you have read and pick up the newspaper every day to see
foreclosures in the classified section. We did consider raising taxes, but in light
- 72 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

of what our Maui residents are going through, we decided it was not a good
option to raise taxes this year.
Again, this is very tough times and the decisions we face are not easy. I can tell
you that we have turned to the departments and the nonprofits to solicit their help
in restricting spending not only in Fiscal Year '10 but as the departments have,
we've already started in Fiscal Year '09, looking forward to even tougher years in
Fiscal Year '11. Over the past few weeks we have seen the departments come
forward with their reduced budgets, and you have seen that their departments
have postponed purchases of equipment, they have reduced expenses, the focus
on keeping key operational needs and they have not included salary increases for
themselves or the employees, except where the collective bargaining agreement
required it for our Police Department and Fire Department. The Mayor has
notified the Salary Commission that there'll be no increases for our, for the
Mayor, Director and Deputy Directors.
In closing, we recognize the difficulties that the nonprofits are facing and we
thank them for the understanding and cooperating with us in this year's budget. It
is a fiscally challenging time, there's no doubt about that. As we all face difficult
decision in a tight budget that we face in Fiscal Year '10 and '11, it is critical that
we continue to partner together to address our community needs. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Director. Before I call on Ms. Tsuhako, Members,
any questions to the Director's comments this afternoon? Seeing none, then okay,
we'll take the Maui Humane Society program. Ms. Tsuhako?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. The Maui Humane Society operates as a
grant program from our Department. The total requested allocation is $1,480,249,
and I think as Ms. Bouchard mentioned in her testimony earlier this morning, that
total reflects a decrease in, in funding that she got from last year but also trying to
maintain services at a level that's not going to be detrimental to our community.
So we would ask for your consideration in, in agreeing to that allocation for the
Maui Humane Society.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Medeiros?

Thank you.

Members, any questions to that?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Can you give us a
reference page or. . .?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, 8-13 [sic] -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on your Details.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thirty-one, I think.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry, 31.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .8-31?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .8-31. Member Molina, question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Just one quick question for
the Director. Earlier we heard from Ms. Bouchard and she mentioned that there
have been some issues that have been expressed in the media regarding the entity.
And obviously it's something that I think that has to be resolved in, internally by
the organization. Of these issues that were brought up is there anything, any
comments from the Department to, you know, for a lack of a better term, seek
adjustments or anything we need to be concerned with? 'Cause for me, you
know, I'm just looking at the, at the proposal and the issues that the organization
has had with regards to a former employee and policies with, with animals and so
forth. You know, I think that needs to be, that I think is just a whole separate
issue. Can I get comment from you?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Councilmember Molina. I agree with you. I believe that a
lot of the issues that are being played out in the, in public are issues that need to
be addressed internally by that agency. As far as our management of this Animal
Management Grant from the Humane Society, I will tell you that the organization
has been very prompt in reporting as required. We've had no issue with how they
have been managing the County funds that are, that are provided through this
grant. And so that it, from, from my perspective and from the Department's
perspective there is no reason to have oversight or to have inclusion into those
issues that should be handled between the agency and the public and their board.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So you're not saying any, we should consider
any provisos or anything with their grant request, none of that sort, which
was. . .has been played out in the media, so to speak?
MS. TSUHAKO: I would not recommend . . . (end of tape 3B — 1:42 p.m.).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thanks, Madam Director. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, questions? Member Johnson?
Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just to fmd out, does any of these
services provide any kind of work on Lanai?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. The Humane Society does operate on Lanai as well.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then I'm not, I'm not
familiar with the Humane Society on Lanai, so do you have a staff position there?
What is provided?
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr. Chair, may I ask that Ms. Bouchard be -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. TSUHAKO: --asked to answer those questions operationally?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Please identify yourself.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you. Good afternoon. Jocelyn Bouchard, Maui Humane
Society. The question regarding Lanai, we do not have any staff people on Lanai.
Lanai as well as Molokai have a, what they call a dog warden that operates out of
the respective Police Departments on those islands. On Lanai, it's a half-time
position and I believe they have finally after several years filled that position.
What we do with the, with Lanai and Molokai is we provide training and support
to those staff people. We also accept animals from those islands into our own
shelter, and we are a fiscal agent for the Molokai Humane Society which is a
private nonprofit on Molokai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then all you provide for is, is
training to that half-time position then?
MS. BOUCHARD: We provide training and we do accept animals and, and provide
other support for animal-related issues on, on that island. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then who funds the, the position
then?
MS. BOUCHARD: The Police Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Police Department?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Does the Maui Humane
Society have any revenue generating fees?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes. We have, we have earned income from a variety of sources, a
portion from adoptions, also from our. . .we do private cremations for the public.
We have a small store, we run obedience classes, things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so is there a report that we would be able to
review to show us what the revenues are?
MS. BOUCHARD: Absolutely. I can, the Department has a copy of our audit. We are
audited every year so you can get that, I can provide this body with copies if that
would be easier and also our budget. I don't know if you want the whole budget
or just the audit.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, if, you know, you could consider
that report for us to review.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I thought Ms. Bouchard presented a budget to this
Chairman. If I'm wrong, then we'll get that information -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I appreciate that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So actually as far as the staff salaries and payroll,
they don't have any budget then? They just, they don't have...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: A breakdown of their budget.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I mean as part of what we see in the binder.
It's just, I guess, a grant breakdown maybe.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. It's a grant that provides -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the, the workers with their salary and...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, so, okay, they take care of that from the
grant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah. If we can get that other report, that'd
be helpful.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair No. Just wanted to comment that it's
customary that those budgets are submitted to the departments.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .and then we don't get them in the budget, but I'm sure
they're available if anybody really wants to take a look. But it would be probably
ten times as much paper as we have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(chuckle). . . Yeah. Right. Thank you. And, Members,
maybe the Director can--oh, thank you for your comments--maybe the Director
can provide us with information in regards to audits of the nonprofits that do
receive grants from the County of Maui.
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm sorry, I'm not really clear about what you're asking for, sir.

- 77 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: If the nonprofits that do receive grants from the County of
Maui, that they submit an audit of their organization to you.
MS. TSUHAKO: The, the audit is required as one of the conditions of receiving grant
funds, so we do have audits from all of the grant recipients.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding
this particular item?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. So if we as individual Council Members
wanted to get that information, do we request it from the Department or go
through our Committee?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can request it from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That way, Members, you know, this week is our last week in
meeting -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, with all the various committees and departments
as well as nonprofit. And if you want questions or if you do have questions and
want answers, I would suggest that you go directly to the Department because by
the time it gets to me, to them -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and gets back to you, you know, it's going to be about a
week, two weeks. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding
Maui Humane Society? Seeing none, okay, thank you. Now we'll, we'll go and
review the grants in the order that are listed on the spreadsheet. I'm hoping that
everybody got this 81/2 x 14 spreadsheet, and we'll utilize this spreadsheet for the
remaining of the afternoon. So the first area is the Housing and Human Concerns,
and the Chair would like to have the Department cover each single one which is
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in your control, Director Tsuhako. So the first one up is, Members, is on your
Details sheet 8-07, which is the First Time Homebuyer's Program. Ms. Tsuhako?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I believe we discussed the transition of the
First Time Homebuyer's Program from what was a revolving fund into a
proposed grant program to fund deposits for qualified first time homebuyers. We,
the Department submitted the proposed guidelines for that program to the
Committee for your review and in addition to the discussion that was held last
week. The $1 6 million allocation is the total of four fiscal years' worth of
funding at $400,000 a year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions regarding that first item?
Member Nishiki followed by -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, so under this
grant or program is the money in that fund available for such things as senior
housing projects?
MS. TSUHAKO: No. The, the grant program, sir, is intended to help first time
homebuyers with the down payment.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And that's strictly it all. . .it can be used for,
nothing else?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: That, that's how, that's what our proposal was.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then the criteria for, for this first
time homebuyer, what are the criteria?
MS. RIDAO: The criteria, Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala, is I think it should be in
your packet, and I would have to look for it myself.
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MS TSUHAKO: It's in the binder.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah. It was distributed on March 30 th .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you know under what title or area?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's an area that they tried to explain on the usage of the first
time homebuyers, and we had discussed this sometime last week. You have your,
you have copies of it, March 30 th .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: March 30 was that, it was dated
March 30 th ?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. It's the Office of the Mayor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There you go. So if, Members, if you can locate your
correspondence.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They could have filed them wrong.
MS. RIDAO: Okay. I have the proposed guidelines in front of me now.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .0kay. Chair, thank you. I'm looking
at all of the -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --criteria.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. But I just, Mr Chair, I, I apologize because I
don't know if I was here when the meeting concluded, but I wanted to find out.
So far I know there's been a proposal from the Administration, but we have not
resolved anything yet?
MS. RIDAO: No. Correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I just wanted to understand that because I
know I'm hearing conflicting things when we're talking about rental assistance
and increasing that fund and, you know. So anyway, I have. . .until we resolve
that issue, it's fine.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Not really a question, but I'm trying
to look at both sides of the issue, and I've heard from several mortgage
consultants and people who process loans and I heard it from Staff also that this is
an issue, this loan is an issue. And, you know, if our intent is to get people into
homes, then we may have to look at this in another way, although I do understand
the desirability of having a revolving fund. But if it is the preventive thing that's
not allowing people to qualify for loans and get into houses, then what is the
purpose? So I think that I wouldn't have any trouble making a decision. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. If I could get a comment from
Corporation Counsel on this matter. 'Cause if you recall, Mr. Chairman, from our
last meeting on this, the body has to consider, we currently have legislation on
this, and the body will have to consider repealing the legislation that we, we
enacted some three years ago. So my, my question to Corp. Counsel is the
Administration is proposing that this, the, basically the legislation be repealed and
now the monies be used as grants to be doled out to qualifying applicants. Can
you cite any restrictions with the usage of the money? I guess, well, with the
current legislation it's to be used as a loan. Now if we go grant, then are there
additional restrictions or, or what? Can you -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --give us some comments just so we get a full
understanding of how the monies can be used? Because, well, I'll. . .you know,
I'm considering another, an option to use some of these monies for something
else. So I just would like to get a clear understanding as far as what are our
parameters, what are, what we can use these monies for and what we can't use
these monies for?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, the proposed bill that repeals--what chapter is
this?--the First Time Homebuyer's Fund, code, Chapter 3.30 in the Maui County
Code. Basically what would happen if Council passed that bill which repeals that
chapter, the money would go into the General Fund. So there are no restrictions
on that money because it would just become, it would become a realization of the
General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So we, if we repeal it, then the 1.6 goes into the
General Fund, and then the Council can choose to, you know, give it to the
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Department to dole out up to 1.6 million for our loan program. And, of course,
the Council has the option to, say, give the Department maybe half of it and the
other half the Council can do what the Council sees fit then with it -MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --for example putting, stashing some of it away in, say,
the Emergency Fund or some other use then? Am I correct?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Before Ms. Tsuhako go to the second one,
the Chair failed to recognize the, the grant revenue area. There's a few grant that
is being considered for the Housing and, or for the Housing program and the
Chair would like cover that at this time. Members, if you can turn to Page 8-32.
You got it? Everybody got it, 8-32? Yeah. Got it? This is on your Details.
Yeah. Ms. Tsuhako, if you can run through all of the grant revenues that are
being proposed for your Department -MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr.-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --starting off with the HOME Investment Partnership Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair So the following are the grant revenue that
we're hoping for, anticipating in our Housing program. The first is the HOME
Investment Partnership Program. This is Federally funded money that will help
with the development of new housing projects. We, we are expecting funding in
the amount of $2 million for that program. Some of the past recipients of HOME
Investment Partnership Program funds have included projects of Lokahi Pacific
and as well as Hale Mahaolu.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, she used the exact word "hoping" to
receive, okay?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Member Nishiki, you got any question?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So this would be available
for senior housing?
MS. TSUHAKO: Senior housing is one potential use for these funds, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next program is the Komohana Hale Apartment
Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Komohana Hale Apartment Program is
expecting revenue in the amount of $167,805. This is a Lahaina project that's
owned by the County but managed by Hale Mahaolu. They, the expected revenue
is due to, I think, fees associated with the project, not a whole lot of money, but
$167,805.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay. Go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next program is the Section 8 Housing
Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Section 8 Housing Program is Federally funded through the Housing
and Urban Develop..., the Department of Housing and Urban Development. The
County is expecting grant revenue in, in total $16,225,390. With these funds
come personnel, the 22 employees. With this program the County is provided
vouchers which are given to eligible individuals and families to provide for rental
subsidy in approved housing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino, question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is the program that someone asked about having a
waiting list, but it seems by what you're projecting here there will probably not be
any more vouchers?
MS. TSUHAKO: That is correct. As I, as I said last week, Member Nishiki, the, the
government has pretty much capped our, our, the amount of vouchers we have. I
checked on the question of wait list and there's approximately 1,900 people on the
Section 8 wait list.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so the Administration has stopped accepting any
more people to be put on the list?
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MS. TSUHAKO: I think the, the wait list is still being maintained. So the, the Housing
staff is keeping a list of people. So when they have, for example, if a family
moves somewhere or is no longer eligible for Section 8 and the next name on the
list comes up, they can contact the next person who's there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How often does this occur?
MS. TSUHAKO: Not very often at all.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I guess now that we know about 1,900 that are
on this list waiting for rental assistance and many more that probably the
Administration told not to apply, that we could have how many residents that
need rental help?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, I, I believe that there's, that there's many more than
1,900 people -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. TSUHAKO: --who need rental assistance. The distinction between the Section 8
subsidy and the Rental Assistance Programs that were being discussed by the
grantees earlier this morning and last week are that, the Rental Assistance
Programs which MEO spoke about, Family Life Center spoke about, Women
Helping Women spoke about are all meant to be short-term rental housing
assistance programs. Section 8 recipients can receive that assistance for a long
time depending on their eligibility.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So do you know how long this list has been here? My
question, why I ask this is because maybe out of the 1,900 people some people
may have moved off that ladder and no longer need more. So you don't update
this or you don't keep any recent...
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that the Housing Division does update that doing follow-up
calls to make sure people are still wanting to have that assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member, Member Nishiki. Just a fast question.
Ms. Tsuhako, any idea about ARRA stimulus money, the possibility of increasing
the number of Section 8 housing vouchers?
MS. TSUHAKO: The stimulus money. . .it seems very unlikely that the Federal
government will increase the number of vouchers that we'll get in Maui County.
What seems to be a possibility is that HUD through Section 8 may contract for
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additional rent subsidies that may not be intended for long term. So it's not going
to add more vouchers for the long term, but they may get influx of, of funding to
do rental assistance or short-term sort of homeless prevention funding to
supplement what we have here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So how does an organization find out about these things and
how do they apply?
MS. TSUHAKO: The money hasn't been announced yet, the funding for this. So what
will likely happen is that the, I'm expecting that these funds will come to the
County through the, through Section 8 and that Section 8 will be doing an RFP to
announce the availability of funds. And then we'll do receipt of proposals from
various agencies who might be interested in, in participating with us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just a quick follow-up on
something So the 1,900 on the wait list is 1,900 applications?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And as Member Nishiki asked, if they're on
the waiting list and for some good fortune reason they no longer need to be
requesting Section 8 housing vouchers, on the application are they made aware or
a requirement of them to notify your office that they no longer wish to be on the
list? How do you fmd out that?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't know if that's a requirement or not, Mr. Medeiros. I can
certainly fmd out, but I, I think that the, like I said earlier, I believe the housing
staff would go through the list occasionally and sort of contact people that they
can contact. So it's, really when you have a waiting list, it's almost incumbent
upon the people who are on that list to keep their information updated so that in
the event that their, their application is ready to be looked at, the Housing
Division can get in touch with them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Okay. Yeah. The only thing about that,
that system is a lot of people won't notify -MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --the Department. You know as, as compared to
Hawaiian Homes if you don't notify them with your current information, you're
no longer contacted or you're no longer at the position you are on the list. So
somehow the responsibility should fall on the applicant to call the Department. If
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their, they have a voucher and they receive HUD housing and they stay there for a
while and then leave, that voucher is already used?
MS. TSUHAKO: No. If they move into another HUD eligible home or if their--they
have to maintain eligibility, of course.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. TSUHAKO: But if they choose to move into a different home and that home is
certified as HUD eligible, then the voucher moves with them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. TSUHAKO: It's portable that way.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Very good. Thank you, Department.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Director, of the, the HUD
funding you had 22 positions funded by this. Is that correct?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. What percentage of your funding
is, represents the, the personnel?
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh, the, the total cost of the personnel -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MS. TSUHAKO: --compared to the total funding? I'm not sure. Hold on one second,
please. Salaries and Wages. I can do a quick calculation. Except I'm not good at
this. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: While you're doing that...
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. You know my calculation, sir, is about 5 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Five percent, okay. And then these funds
are, are guaranteed renewal annually?
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MS. TSUHAKO: There, there's never a guarantee on that, but we've received HUD
funds for many years, and I can, I can project receiving HUD funds again for
Fiscal Year '10.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then as the funding changes,
then does the position counts change?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think that the position counts haven't changed for a long time, but
neither has the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But it's...
MS. TSUHAKO: So they, they would, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: They would fluctuate with the, with the
funding?
MS. TSUHAKO: They would. If there, if there's a necessary, if there's a significant
change in the funding level, I would assume that the, the positions that are funded
through that grant fund would have to be adjusted accordingly.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, question. On Section 8, Director, what is the
maximum amount that households can receive? Maximum subsidy?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. It's based, that's, the maximum benefit is based on household
size, and I don't have a chart with me, Mrs. Baisa, right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: When you have time, I'd like to have that.
MS. TSUHAKO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The other is, is there a maximum time that you are, can
be on this program?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't believe that there's a maximum time so long as you remain
eligible.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do we have any kind of aging as to how long people
have been on Section 8? I think that's a very interesting thing for us to know.
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MS. TSUHAKO: To see the average -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: --length of time people have been, have been on vouchers?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, you know, how long have people been on this? Is it
ten years? Twenty years? What is it?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't know. We could certainly check and see if we can get that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. It's not an emergency, but when you have time, I
would be interested in those statistics. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next grant is the USDA Rural Community
Development Initiative.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The USDA Rural Community Development
Initiative was placed in our budget under grant revenue because the Department
intends to apply for these funds to assist our local nonprofits who are working on
construction projects. These funds are available and the Department has tried
very hard to sort of go after grant funding that's available in the community
through other sources other than, from other sources actually from the Federal
sources as well as State sources or private sources when possible and to try and
bring that as a benefit to the nonprofit community. Recently we've had several
nonprofit agencies working on construction of projects for which they've not had
a whole lot of experience in the past, and so projects tend to take a little bit longer
to do. So we're hoping that with a successful grant application and funding
through this program, agencies will be provided with technical assistance that can
help them navigate through the pre-planning as well as
planning--pre-development, excuse me--pre-development and planning as well as
the construction of projects that are necessary for their programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay. So, yeah, thank you, Ms. Tsuhako.
And so this is something new, we haven't applied for this in the past? 'Cause I
don't see it listed here anywhere before. Or was it somewhere else buried and
now you're bringing it up for like some other departments have reclassified
things?
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MS. TSUHAKO: No. This is a brand new, brand new application that will be made, I
believe, before the end of May.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And what are the chances of us getting it?
Fairly good?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think we have a very compelling argument that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: --those nonprofits who are building projects need to have technical
assistance in doing them more efficiently, which will result in lower costs for
everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this would be like a, a project consultant, a
project manager, something of that nature?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is what this, this type of funding would be
used. It wouldn't be on direct construction cost?
MS. TSUHAKO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It would be for that purpose?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. And I'll give you an example.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: Recently the ARC of Maui has been working on building a group
home on Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. TSUHAKO: And the ARC of Maui is very, very well versed in actually doing
programming for adults with developmental disabilities. They've not really had a
whole lot of experience with building projects, you know, constructing of house.
And so through the Deputy Director's assistance, they were able to get some
consultation from Tom Cook from the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Contractors...
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MS. TSUHAKO: --Contractors Association.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: But we're finding that they could still use more help.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. TSUHAKO: . . .and we're hoping that funding from this grant will be able to
provide that technical assistance and, and handholding through the process to
allow ARC of Maui to be successful in building their project as well as lowering
their cost because the longer it takes, the more it will cost them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this would be for housing purposes. . .for
whether it's for rental assistance or to purchase or whatever, housing that our
nonprofits would put together whether it's, like you say, ARC of Maui or
anybody of that nature?
MS. TSUHAKO: . . . (end of tape 4A — 2:13 p.m). . . project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A construction project?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Does it mean it can be apartments, it can be
multi, in other words, multi, single, doesn't make a difference?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Very good. Yeah. I think if anything can
help our nonprofits and we should get some of that for the County of Maui, too,
but that's another issue, another conversation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry, Mr. Chair, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Its title is USDA Rural.
What's the definition for "Rural" as defined in that title?
MS. TSUHAKO: The USDA has different definition--well, the USDA definition of
"Rural" has to do with both population as well as income. So there's different
eligibility requirements, it doesn't necessarily have to be what we consider rural.
I believe Kihei is still designated rural right now under USDA guidelines.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so you have that definition that I, I can
request from you?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I think it's part of the grant application.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: We can forward that to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All right. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair And then this is
available to all nonprofit agencies?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, it's not available to all--you mean the, if the County were to
receive the grant?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Actually we've already started that. We've. . .when we, when
we were discussing the potential of this grant with Irene Lam from USDA, the
Department sent out an e-mail to all of the nonprofits who are working on
construction projects describing what the, what the grant was all about and
inviting them to submit information to us to help us package the application. So
thus far we've received responses from about six agencies who said they would
be interested in working with the Department in doing the grant application and
potentially receiving funding for this.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So they would be applying to you for a
grant for this assistance or are you the provider of the assistance from the TA?
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MS. TSUHAKO: We would be, the County would be the applicant for this to the
USDA.. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.
MS. TSUHAKO: . . .and once the, once the grant is approved and the funding received
the County would contract with the technical assistance provider and then work
out subcontracting agreements with the recipient agencies.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So it's not a, it's not a dollar
amount then for an agency then, for a nonprofit agency?
MS. TSUHAKO: No. It would not be a dollar amount. It would, the dollar amount
would be calculated based on the consultant's fee.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Ms. Tsuhako. The designation of what is rural, I
know sometimes the definition doesn't meet, I guess, what some of the standards
are that were once applicable. Is Maui County still considered, the whole island,
is it still considered rural and eligible?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, not now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: The entire island is not given that blanket title of rural, there's several
pockets that are exempt from that rural designation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And those would be basically the areas where
the population is so dense or the income level is so great that they would not be
eligible?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, yeah, I think it's fair to say that Central, the Central Maui area right
now would not be receiving a, would not be eligible for a rural designation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And how about West Maui?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm not positive, but I don't think that, I don't think that, I do think
that they're still considered rural -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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MS. TSUHAKO: --in West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause I'm just concerned with what areas are
actually going to be eligible for this funding that meet the criteria. Okay. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, turn to Page 8-33. This is Human
Concerns Program, Assisted Transportation Program. Ms. Tsuhako?
MS. TSUHAKO: The assistant, Assisted Transportation Program, sir, is worked out of
Kaunoa as a, Kaunoa is our, is our vendor for this program. We expect grant
funds totaling $175,908.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. So only Kaunoa services can
utilize this funding?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct. They're the vendor for this service.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They're the vendor?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So if they choose to utilize some of the money as
the vendor for another organization or transportation service, they can do so?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that the Office on Aging just completed an RFP for a variety
of services that are funded through the Executive Office on Aging. But I'm not
absolutely sure about whether assisted transportation comes within the auspices of
that RFP. So I will need to check on that, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because is Kaunoa the recipient of the
funding or the County?
MS. TSUHAKO: The, the County is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then it goes to Kaunoa?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Child Care and Development Block Grant.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Child Care and Development Block Grant is a potential program
funding from the Federal government through the ARRA. We're not quite sure,
the Department is not quite sure yet what the, the proposal or the availability of
funding is. Well, we simply put that request in there as a placeholder. We have
been trying very hard to be as aggressive as possible about going whatever, going
after whatever funding we can, not just for the County to receive these funds but
also to partner with nonprofits so that they can receive additional funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just quickly, what would these funds be
available or used for?
MS. TSUHAKO: They would be used for child care programs and basically,
Member Kaho' ohalahala, it would be based on what the Federal government put
out as their request for proposals. So they would create the parameters and we
would look at, the Department would look at what services the County might need
within the parameters of those programs and then make an application afterwards.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Community Based--oh, nope, wrong one.
Congregate Meals Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Congregate Meals Program provides
congregate settings and meals for our senior citizens. The requested, expected
grant funding for this year totals $333,179.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is this something that we discussed last week?
MS. TSUHAKO: We did.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The reduction of meals?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, this is actually talking about the reduction in the grant funding
that's available.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So as far as the reduction in the grant funding, so we expect
from the Federal government $37,000 less or. . .?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, just so that I get a clear understanding and
`cause I might have missed this at the, your explanation last week. This is for like
Meals on Wheels and stuff like that? No? It's a different program? What, what
specifically? I know this is, what, for seniors, right?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And does that all fall under that realm?
MS. TSUHAKO: The, the. . .no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Congregate Meals Program are those meals that are provided to
seniors at certain sites.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. I see.
MS. TSUHAKO: For example, at Hale Mahaolu -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MS. TSUHAKO: --we do a site meal preparation and, and provision there. I think they
have meal, meal sites at Wailuku Community Center on some days or at Mu Like.
So those are the different sites within the community that the seniors are able to
congregate and have their meals together.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. So Meals on Wheels is a totally separate
entity?
MS. TSUHAKO: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. I appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So this is part of the Elderly Lunch Program?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So this is where money
comes from like the meals in Hana?
MS. TSUHAKO: For the congregate meals?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Congregate, right.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so is this, does Kaunoa receive this or does
your Department receive this and disburse it?
MS. TSUHAKO: The Department receives this money, but we, we use Kaunoa as our
vendor, once again, for congregate meals.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So Kaunoa takes care of all the congregate
meals throughout the County wherever it's qualified?
MS. TSUHAKO: That are County funded, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thank you, Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next program is on Page 8-34, Home
Delivered Meals Program.
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MS. TSUHAKO: The Home Delivered Meals Program expects to be funded through
grant revenue for a total of $372,904.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is this something that we discussed in regards to
Elderly Lunch Program?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, it is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No, questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I, I'm just looking, you know, at the, the,
two of the meal programs, you know, the majority of the funding goes to
personnel. So what part of it in the operations, is any of it for food itself or. . .?
MS. TSUHAKO: The, in terms of the, the running of the program, the County does pay
for a great deal of the food cost, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the food cost is not a part of the
program itself then?
MS. TSUHAKO: The, what you see over here is the breakdown of the salaries and
wages, equipment and operations that are funded through the grant funds. And
then I, I believe last week what we discussed was the County allocations for those
programs, including cost for the meals as well as for equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So these two programs as we're
looking at right now are mainly for the cost of personnel and for whatever
operations, which is very minor compared to the personnel?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
- 99 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think I asked the question earlier, this the
Meals on Wheels, yeah. Thanks, yeah. I got 'em.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Ms. Tsuhako, if we're to go back to whatever,
what we're providing the seniors today, so we're looking at, on this grant
revenues the deficit of 37, 38,000, 14,000 and what was discussed last week of
84,000?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that the, the totals that Mr. Tanaka was talking about last
week may have included reductions in these grant revenue funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So it, it's all inclusive then?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe it is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Let's see. The next program is the Kupuna
Care Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Kupuna Care Program is a, is a Stated-funded program that comes
to the Maui County Office on Aging. We are anticipating grant revenue in the
total amount of $680,283, the, which is approximately a 2.2 percent reduction in
what we received last year. These funds are administered through the Office on
Aging and are used to provide direct services to our elders, including chore
services, including personal care such as baths. . . .That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Any funding from the County to take care
of some of these things?
MS. TSUHAKO: The, the County has provided last fiscal year an additional $720,000
through an allocation for the services to frail and elderly to leverage funding from
the Kupuna Care project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Johnson?
- 100 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Lori, is that money still in the frail and elderly?
MS. TSUHAKO: We have made a slight reduction in our request in the, that allocation, I
think from 720 to 591,000.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So that went down quite a bit. And I
remember we went over that, Mr. Chair, so. . .yeah. I, I know it was some other
things too that were included in that, but so that was a substantial reduction then.
And is it, is it principally just so that things would balance out?
MS. TSUHAKO: It was. Part of it was the necessity of reducing our budget, but the
other half of it in discussion with Deborah Arendale, who's our Executive on
Aging, is that certain services are, are maxed out right now, and so if there's no
vendor to provide that service, the money would not be spent anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. I see what you're saying. So that it's
not necessarily that you have a waiting list, it may be that there's insufficient
personnel to even cover others on the waiting list? Is that correct?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I believe it would be the, the services may not be as available to us
to contract for.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: And so the, the capacity of the service system is already at its max
right now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then that would be reflected in the
reduction in funding in that other line?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So the -2.2 percent is already projected in your
estimation that you gave us last week?
MS. TSUHAKO: The 2.2 percent in the Kupuna Care?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: In my estimation of what I gave you last week...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: You went from 700 to 500,000.
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh. Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is? Okay. Members, the Chair is going to take this
opportunity to have our Council Chair introduce an important figure for our State,
Senator Daniel Akaka. Chairman?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Council, thank you
very much for the opportunity. And, of course, Chairman, thank you for your
break in the budget process. This afternoon, we're really privileged to have with
us this afternoon Senator Daniel K. Akaka, who has come and visited, he's
visiting the different islands. He was on Oahu this last weekend taking care of
business. He has been on Maui all day today. He left Oahu at 5:00 today. . .doing
his rounds and we're privileged to be able to welcome this afternoon Senator
Akaka.
ALL: . . . (applause).. .
SENATOR AKAKA: Aloha.
ALL: Aloha.
SENATOR AKAKA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for giving me this honor of,
of saying aloha to all of you. I, I count it really a privilege to come and see all
your faces, and I know you're working very hard at the task that you're, you're
engaged in. Up there, we're still working on it. The President has been working
on his budget, the President meaning Barack Obama from Hawaii, and but it
looks good. We're still working on. . .I should tell you that on the Senate side as
Chairman of the, of the Veterans Affairs Committee, I was able to finish my
budget and, and was fortunate to have raised it by $6 billion and to also after
some, some discussion was able to raise it $540 million more. But it's all to help
our veterans and their, their needs at this day. And so I'm happy about my
budget -ALL: . . .(laugher). . .
SENATOR AKAKA: --in, in the Veterans Affairs and I'm, of course, I'm sure it's going
to hold because the President is supporting my budget. So, so I know what you
folks are going through and want to wish you folks well. I want to just leave the
message with you that as a member of the Banking Committee we're working
hard. And I think when we feel that we've been able to stabilize the, the bottom,
and so if we can hold that and keep moving up, I think we'll be helping to resolve
the, the huge challenge that we have in this economic crisis. But we're doing this
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all together and what I wanted to leave with you is that please, we are a part of, of
you, so as you work and you have your needs please, please talk to us. Maybe we
can help you especially now when we have a Chairman of the Appropriations
Committee, Dan Inouye, and who we may be able to help more than we ever did
before. So let's, let's keep our contacts and work together for the people of Maui
and for Hawaii and for our country. So, I would just want to say God bless you
and God bless your families, God bless Hawaii and God bless the United States of
America. Mahalo nui loa, a hui hou.
ALL: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank, thank you, Senator. Thank you, Chairman, for being
here this afternoon. We appreciate it and if you have a blank check before you
leave, you know, we would welcome that. . . . (chuckle).. .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
SENATOR AKAKA: If you don't mind, yeah. . . (inaudible).. .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
SENATOR AKAKA: And this is just an aside story and I remember the date,
September 23, 2008 is when we, we had that economic crisis. And so the
Banking Committee called a meeting, we called in Secretary Paulson and also
Cox and we met for five hours. And our simple question to them was what
brought us into this crisis, what happened? And the second question was what
can we do to fix it? And, you know, five hours we didn't get an answer, but the
only word that came out of them was that we need to build confidence in this
country. And they were asking us, as you remember, $700 billion, and fmally
because we didn't have an answer to our questions, we said well, you know, we
can't give you a blank check.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
SENATOR AKAKA: We told them we can't give you a blank check, but what would be,
we would be willing to do was to make, to set up initiatives so that they will have
to follow and if they, they approve that, we'll give them the 700 billion and that's
what happened. In the meantime while we were doing this, as you recall, the
House voted and turned it down. Remember? And the, the stock market dropped
one, $1 trillion. And then by the time we came out and we passed it, then the
House passed it too. But I think all of that has stabilized the bottom and so we're
working, working up. But, but I want to tell you the first thing we had on that
initiative was no bonuses, no golden parachutes and yet, you know, they really
didn't, at that time, I think take that over. But, but we're working on that. But the
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initiatives was oversight and all these that, that we felt was important for us to
know what was happening. And we just hope our efforts will, will help our
country sooner than later. So mahalo nui loa again and, and take care.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Senator. Thank you.
ALL: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chairman, point of personal privilege. Can we
take a short recess just to say hello to the Senator, if, if possible -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --a very brief one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. We'll stand in recess till 2:45. This meeting is in recess.
. . .(gavel). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:37 p.m.
2:48 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Thank you, Members, for allowing the Chair to call a short
recess. It was a pleasure to see one of our United States Senators here at Maui
County, Senator Akaka. Although he didn't leave any check.. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .we still need to continue our budget review process.
. . . (chuckle). . . So when we left off, we were at the Kupuna Care Program. And
at this time, I'd like to call on Member Kaho'ohalahala, if you have any
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And then I just need to know that
the amount that's shown here is mainly for contracting of services?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the total amount goes mainly to
contracts then?
MS. TSUHAKO: Contracting.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And that contracting of
services is through Office on Aging?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so is there a pretty much set schedule of
disbursements to particular programs or groups or do. . .is it available for people
to apply for as far as group services?
MS. TSUHAKO: If--stop me if I'm misunderstanding your question, please. The
Kupuna Care funding is allocated in different ways to different services to cover a
variety of needs of elderly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. TSUHAKO: The funding includes services such as Maui Adult Day Care and
personal care from Hale Mahaolu, homemaker, housekeeper services, chore
services as well as some funding going to home-delivered meals and to the
Assisted Transportation Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And I think my question was, has the money
been already directed to certain agencies and programs already?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe the, I believe the Office on Aging just recently did an RFP,
and they're in the process of, of scoring those RFPs for the funding that's
available in the next fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I missed it on the first
round. But I want to kind of revisit that seven hundred-some thousand dollars
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that we had in there for the frail and elderly. Director, does that include chore
service?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, it does, Mrs. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. The reason I'm asking is I understand that
there could have been more chore service provided, but that the funding was
reduced for chore. You know, this has been an issue as long as I've been
involved, and the reason was because we paid, we could only afford to pay such a
minimum wage because of the limited funding it was hard to keep people. But I
understand people were hired and then laid off because there wasn't, the money
was cut. I mean I can't imagine the need for this service being less as we all get
older and need to stay in our homes and cannot wash clothes and wash dishes and,
you know, do all the things that we need to do in order to be in a home. . . .If you
don't have an answer and you can check, I'd appreciate it.
MS. TSUHAKO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. TSUHAKO: So, Member Baisa, you're just trying to ask if chore services have
been or will be reduced -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it-MS. TSUHAKO: --based on the allocation that we are requesting now?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If, if I understood correctly, I was trying to follow the
discussion, there was a mention about this was reduced and it wasn't a problem
because there were people that, that didn't want to provide this. So there wasn't
enough service providers available. That's not my understanding.
MS. TSUHAKO: I've asked Ms. Arendale to join us.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. ARENDALE: Thank you for the question, Ms. Baisa. We recently did adjust the
contracted amount, we reduced it by $20,000 for this year because there was an
overage, there was a carryover from Fiscal Year 2008 when we projected out for
what would be spent by June 30 th . The chore services were about $20,000,
actually we only, we only took back 20,000, but we projected it would be about
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$25,000 short. They wouldn't be able to provide that level of service. Sorry, I'm
out of breath.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (chuckle).. .
MS. ARENDALE: They wouldn't be able to provide that level of service. As we project
it out, we have it tracked from July 1. As we project out month by month their
usage, they were going to be, they were not going to be able to use the funds. So
we adjusted that level of funding to go to actually home-delivered meals so that
we could put the money with an agency that would use it by June 30 th . So next
year their funding will be the same as it was. We were just projecting out the
percentage that they were using.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you're saying that this was an adjustment late in
the--well, when is the program? When does the program end?
MS. ARENDALE: The RFP ends June 30. So the money needed to be encumbered by
June 30 and utilized.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we still have April, May, June. Was that when you
did your calculation or was that earlier?
MS. ARENDALE: We did our calculations based on the amount used through the,
through the month of February, and as of the month of February they were about
20 percent under their projected usage. As we, as we put, as we determine each
month how the percentage of the contract they need to use, they were, they were
going to fall about 20 percent lower than what we had allocated.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Was this decision made in concert with the provider?
MS. ARENDALE: Yes. The program specialist spoke with MEO's supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, I'm not going to belabor it, but I was under,
I was told that the program was cut and I wanted to be sure it isn't cut. Because I
think it's one of those lifeline programs like meals, you can't stay in your home if
you can't do the laundry and clean the refrigerator and, you know, do all that
stuff. So, I just want to make sure we're not shortchanging our seniors. Thank
you.
MS. ARENDALE: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, the next program is the State Of
Hawaii Mental Health Transportation-State Incentive Grant.
- 107 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Transformation, I'm sorry. No, go ahead.
MS. TSUHAKO: The State of Hawaii Mental Health Transformation-State Incentive
Grant has already been . . .(end of tape 4B — 2:55 p.m.)... Yes. We've been
awarded that already in, in the total amount of $24,499. The Office on Aging
took the lead in requesting these funds from the State of Hawaii's Mental Health
Transformation-State Incentive Grant Program to provide planning funds for the
development of what's called an Aging Disability Resource Center, which is a
proposed one-stop shop for aging as well as disability issues for our community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is this one-stop shop -MS. ARENDALE: The idea-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --to provide?
MS. ARENDALE: Excuse me. Thank you for the question. The one-stop shop would
be, if we have all the organizations that serve aging and disability, the people that
receive those services, in a very close concert with each other. . .when a family
member or the individual calls, we can immediately get them connected with the
service they need rather than saying we don't do that but you can call this agency.
Rather than having individuals call or go to a variety of buildings, eventually we
would like to be collocated in one spot so that individuals have a much easier time
accessing services.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I don't understand it, Mr. Chairman. But it would seem
to me that if someone wanted services, they'd have a number to call. So what,
why would you want to have them all congregated in one spot?
MS. ARENDALE: Well, right now they have several numbers they have to call
depending on the service that they need. So what we want to do is do some
cross-training among agency personnel so that the folks that deal with aging learn
a little bit more about the services that the folks with disabilities need. So initially
this $24,000 is, is to help us as, as a community develop a strategic plan so that
we're all better at directing folks to the appropriate service and getting people
help in a timely, efficient manner
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So it's not that you're going to put a building
and have all of these specialists in one place?
MS. ARENDALE: Eventually that, that would be, you know, in a five or ten year plan.
Right now, Hilo does have a one-stop shop where they have, I think, 12 agencies
that are located in one building so that folks can come to an ADA-compliant
building and go to several offices at once rather than having to get in their car, get
to one office, then go to another, then another. It's just much easier on the elder
or the person with disabilities to be able to, to get their needs met in, in a central
location.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm just wondering, I mean I think the
concept is great. Isn't this something like what the Cameron Center was set up to
do? I mean agencies that are all congregated to one location providing services to
multiple kinds of clients? Yeah? So you're not reinventing the wheel, are you?
MS. ARENDALE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Just checking. Because I think
it's great, but if we already have one that's providing such a thing, then why
would we look for another, you know? Perhaps we should collaborate,
collaborate even more.
MS. ARENDALE: This is actually a mandate from the Administration on Aging from
the Federal government to move towards the ADRC model of service provision.
So we're actually being mandated to, to-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I know. But is that different from what
we provide? Is it so different from what we provide?
MS. ARENDALE: At this point, yes, there's not a lot of work between those in the
disability community with those in the aging community. Typically those two,
the, those two service areas have remained somewhat segregated from each other.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next program is the Leisure Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The Leisure Program is expecting grant
revenue in the amount of $89,214. And this program is an award-winning
program run out of Kaunoa that, that provides wellness as well as other holistic
programs for senior citizens.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One, one quick one. Director, where does this grant
come from?
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MS. TSUHAKO: I believe the Leisure Program Grant comes from the Federal
government.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not necessarily OAA?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't believe it comes from OAA because I think it, if it did, it would
need to go through the Office on Aging, and my understanding is these funds go
directly to Kaunoa's program and not funnel through the Office on Aging.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Good. Good Federal money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank, thank you for the check, Senator. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (chuckle). . . Okay. The next program is Nutrition Services
Incentive Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The NSIP as, as we are calling it, are funds
coming from the United States Department of Agriculture. They come through
the Office on Aging and are given to Kaunoa, and this program provides a
reimbursement in effect to the County in the amount of 40 to 60 percent [sic] per
meal for those that are served at congregate meal sites.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So if I'm correct, that this, this helps offset a pretty
good percentage of the cost of the meal that we are serving to our seniors and our
needy?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah, a portion of it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A good portion.
MS. TSUHAKO: Forty to sixty cents per meal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Per meal. What does the meal actually cost then?
I mean, you know, since, you know, since you brought up that figure.
MS. TSUHAKO: It varies.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: Anywhere from five, $5 to like $8.15.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Per meal?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this 40 to 60 cents doesn't do very much?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, but it helps.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It helps. Okay. Thank you. I appreciate that.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 8-35, Retired Senior Volunteer Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Retired Senior Volunteer Program, RSVP
is expecting grant revenue in the total amount of $79,339. If any of you enter the
County building from the main lobby, you can see the benefit to the County of
this program. We're usually greeted by a very pleasant senior volunteer who sits
in the information booth and who's very helpful. Senior volunteers work in all
- 112 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

different venues in the County, not just for County services but also for our
nonprofit community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I'm just wondering, so this
provides for only one position now, although the programs are found
Countywide? Who funds all of the other positions?
MS. TSUHAKO: Some of the other positions are funded through the County. So there's
just three people who work in that program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So Countywide there are only three
positions in RSVP?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct, that are funded. But the, the seniors themselves are the
volunteers, so we have three staff from Kaunoa who are working on this program.
One is grant funded.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So everyone comes out of
Kaunoa? The rest are all volunteer?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Organizers, coordinators, all volunteers?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, let me be clear. We have three staff members who work at
Kaunoa for RSVP. They recruit, they retain, they train, they assign or they match
up volunteers with agencies who need their help. And out of those three positions
one of them is funded through this grant, the other two are funded through County
general revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But they're all based at Kaunoa?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, they're housed there.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So when you have satellite RSVP
programs, then they are all volunteer? There's no paid staff at all then for
that. . .(inaudible). . .
MS. TSUHAKO: You mean like on Lanai or on Molokai?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MS. TSUHAKO: No, there are no paid volunteers. But the Kaunoa staff does travel to
Molokai and Lanai to both do recruitment and training and support for the
volunteers out there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then this basically takes care
of the salaries then?
MS. TSUHAKO: It takes care of one salary.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: One salary.
MS. TSUHAKO: The County funds the other two.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The County matches that. . .well,
provides two more. And then in the operations, what does the operations then
include?
MS. TSUHAKO: The operations include the cost for training volunteers as well as
tracking them, their hours, their contributions, recruiting them, providing
incentives as well as doing the volunteer appreciation events for the senior
volunteers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the, it appears that the
program was reduced then from '08 to '09 by half, yeah, just about. . . .0h, no,
no. Well, it says, it says your salaries are at 28 and then your program operations
at 53, I see, okay. And then the following year then you, you bump up salaries to
almost double and then you reduced the operations in '09, the current year?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct. That's what's reflected there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the staff position increased it by that
amount then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .You're showing one staff-MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on this program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, I'll have to check on that. I don't know the
answer to your question.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. 'Cause that, that would be a major
bump-up from, from '08 to '09. And then I was just looking at the, the, the
differential changes. But your program operations area has been reduced by half.
MS. TSUHAKO: The, the operations for the Senior Volunteer Program are also
supplemented through County funds. I think out of operations also comes
reimbursements to the seniors for mileage, some of them do request mileage for
their volunteerism. And I believe the County provides funds for that as well to
supplement this grant revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And where would, where would
all of those funding come from, which part of the County as you're describing?
MS. TSUHAKO: From my Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: From your Department directly?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Then, then just an
explanation then, Chair, about the, the change in the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Ms. Tsuhako, if you can get that information to
Mr. Kaho' ohalahala, rather than from the Chairman to you.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. That way I think faster turnaround time.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next program is Start Living Healthy Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Start Living Healthy Program is really the
Chronic Disease Self-Management Program. These funds, the funding in the
amount of $50,000 is received and anticipated from the State for embedding this
program into our, our County's program. The Chronic Disease Self-Management
program is a, an evidenced-based best practice, and the program has been taking
off like wildfire under the leadership of Program Specialist Jo Reyes from our
Office on Aging. She has managed to corral many partners in the community to
help work on this program and provide it to our elders to help them manage
chronic diseases. There's many wonderful stories, success stories that came out
of this program. We're happy to have these funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So this Start Living
Healthy Program, how far a reach does it have from Central Maui?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe the CDSMP program has been offered in all of our
communities in Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So all the districts?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Molokai, Lanai and Hana?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it's through what vendor?
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MS. TSUHAKO: Actually the, the program staff has recruited volunteer instructors, or I
think the instructors get paid a very small stipend. And they have to be paired
with a master teacher and they go out in pairs and do this program over, of a
period of about six weeks. There's I think Alu Like was used as a vendor for a
short time.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so they have a means to travel to Hana,
Molokai and Lanai?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. The program has funded that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAI-10'0HALAHALA: No questions, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fast question. Is this, this the area that we see a lot of
advertisement in the Kaunoa newspaper?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that the, the Kaunoa Leisure Times does publish, I think their
most recent addition did have one offering of that. But the classes are actually
offered all over through Alu Like as well as at Hale Mahaolu for other people.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And they indicate that in the paper.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Next program is the State of Hawaii
Strategic Prevention Framework — State Incentive Grant.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The State of Hawaii Strategic Prevention
Framework — State Incentive Grant is a program that's funded through SAMHSA
and given to the State of Hawaii, and it's a five-year grant that was funded at
about, a little over $11 million Statewide. We have fortunately written a
successful grant proposal to the State and received our notice of findings about
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two weeks ago stating that Maui County would receive $313,950 for what's
called the first round of funding in this program. The intent, intent of this
program is to target underage drinking or the prevention of underage drinking in
our community. After we receive these funds in our coffers we can start working
on what's called a competitive grant, which means that we could actually attract
more money than the 313,000 that we receive. So using this money the
Department will be working with existing programs in the community to work on
prevention of underage drinking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is the Title III Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The Title III Program is a program that's
funded through the Federal government for elder, for the Office on Aging's
programs. We're expecting grant revenue in the total amount of $717,421 which
is a reduction from last year's funding. These Title III funds provide wages and
salaries for 6.8 positions or equivalent personnel, excuse me, as well as
operations, critical source of funding for our programming for our Office on
Aging.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one is Title V Incentive Grants--well, skip that
one. Volunteer Center Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Volunteer Center Program is a placeholder
in the event that we are able to generate grant funding to our volunteer center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Real quickly, Ms. Tsuhako, you just said in
the event we can secure, so in other words we don't know if we're going to get it
or not?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, going back to the handout,
81/2 x 14 sheet, Grants for the Fiscal Year 2010 Budget, As Revised. We already
took care of the first one. The second one is on Page 8-07, Hale Mahaolu for
Homeownership and Housing Counseling Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Hale Mahaolu Homeownership Program
has been recommended for funding of, excuse me, $45,000. The program
provides first time homebuyers with classes about their home purchase, provides
individual counseling around issues of mortgage delinquency and, and to provide
assistance with foreclosure prevention. It also provides reverse mortgage
counseling for elders.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Quick question, Chair. Director, as a result of the FACE
Conference where we talked on and on and on about foreclosures, I'm curious,
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who else provides this kind of service besides this program on Maui? Because I
think we really need it with all we're seeing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Councilmember Baisa, for that question. Na Hale 0 Maui in
fact had one this past Saturday, one workshop, and Hawaiian Community Assets
provides a similar program. And sometimes the banks will have occasional
workshops.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think what I'm trying to find out is, what I got at that
workshop was that there was a huge need that was not being met, that people
didn't know who to call and there was a real need to do publicity, quick publicity.
Because by the time people found out what to do and where to go, you know, it
was too late and they were with one foot out the door and one on a banana peel.
And I'm wondering if this isn't an area where some of this housing money that's
sitting around might not be of use. I'm just worried 'cause, you know, the more
people that go into foreclosure, the more problems we're all going to have with
homelessness and God knows what else.
MS. RIDAO: Correct. If, if you will note, there is Federal mandates now that require the
banks to first work with the person that is in danger of foreclosure. And then, and
then they should be referred to one of these service providers. However, I think
the banks have been trying to provide people, people that are in danger of
foreclosure assistance in working out their loans. In the past, you are the right,
the banks did nothing until it was too late and people would lose their homes. But
your point is well taken, we should keep an eye on that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. It's a big concern because,
you know, we don't need any more people -MS. RIDAO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --homeless. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. The $5,000 that was cut from this program, that
was just simply part of the process of trying to cut and. . .(inaudible). . .I guess,
give everybody an equal amount of pain?
MS. TSUHAKO: It, it was, Member Johnson. But it's also because, you know, the. . .in,
in looking at a strategic plan to fund the grant with the granting of funds to
agencies in the community, the Department really looked at creating priorities.
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And the priorities that we used were for food, shelter and for safety issues. And
so we sort of looked at all of the requests that came into the Department through
those, through those different prisms. Did it meet the standard for food, shelter
and safety? And so those agencies and those services that provided that directly,
we tried very hard to maintain their funding and then looked at other important
services, true, but maybe not rising to the level of food, shelter, safety to do
secondary reductions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I understand that 'cause see now, I
see this one as shelter, because I see people that, you know, it's, it's great, you
know, if you have a local bank, but some of these people, the mortgage electronic
registration systems has already taken over. In some cases they don't even know
the lender because somebody has just bought this paper because they're certain
amount in arrears. They don't even have a face or a name or anything else, and
those are the kinds of calls that I'm getting because these people don't even, it's
not like going down to your corner bank and having a one-on-one with them. So
to me I think that agencies or entities like this, to me it's like I want to keep them
in their home, I don't want them to be, you know, on the beach or living in their
car or whatever. So, you know, we'll, we'll deal with it, but I just, you know,
that's really important. I guess like Member Baisa, I just see this as falling maybe
a little bit differently into that category that you listed. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. When Na Hale 0
Maui came before us, they did talk about a program that was Federal, Federally
funded to help mitigate the foreclosure processing, but this would be after the
fact, after homes are already foreclosed. And then he talked about other funding
that would be made available to look at preventative measures for foreclosures.
So, so where, where is this in that scheme of things right now? In the way that
you made, you've mentioned that there are three, Hale Mahaolu, Na Hale 0 Maui
and Hawaiian Community Assets. These are the three agencies right now that
provide any kind of assistance for counseling or financial literacy. Is that, so how
does that help in, in terms of the foreclosure part of it, I guess?
MS. RIDAO: Primarily, Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala, it's an education, and the, the
key is that the homeowner is not waiting until it's too late. They have to take a
certain amount of responsibility relative to seeking out the help. Once they get
that assistance the homeownership counselors can negotiate with them, with their
bank or their lending institution on what can be done. When the foreclosure issue
became a problem, there was not the Federal mandate out there to the banks that
they had to try and work out the situation. So I have noted to myself to kind of
check out what the foreclosure situations are right now after the Federal mandate
and see if that, if in fact it has improved.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But this particular line item then,
this funding amount goes specifically to Hale Mahaolu?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Yes, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the others that you
mentioned, Na Hale 0 Maui and Hawaiian Community Assets are, provide the
similar services then?
MS. RIDAO: Correct. And I am not, I'm not sure where they get their funding to do
those services.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is this the only program area
within your Department that provides any of this kind of service at all?
MS. TSUHAKO: As a line item, yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Because, you know, throughout
the discussions I've heard many of the agencies that we support also saying that
they provide these services as well, you know, that they're looking at financial
literacy, you know, homeownership services. So I'm just wondering is there, is
there a whole complement of people that are out there doing the same thing?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think it's a different level of service. I think when the agencies who
were here this morning talked about the Rental Assistance Program, it was more
in terms of creating financial literacy, for learning budgeting and to get them, to
get the families into a better space financially. I don't necessarily think that they
were working on homeownership issues. Because if they're getting rental
subsidies, they wouldn't be homeowners necessarily.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, I was curious that you have this
under here for homeownership, but you're dealing with senior citizens so, you
know.. .
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. Hale Mahaolu serves senior citizens and...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So who does, who does the
Homeownership Program?
MS. TSUHAKO: They, they serve, they serve other people in the community and they-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: As well.
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MS. TSUHAKO: As well.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So these, these funds come
available once the budget is completed, when?
MS. TSUHAKO: After, after the budget ordinance is passed, then the Department
already has an application from Hale Mahaolu as well as for all the other agencies
who've been recommended for funding in our budget. And so the Grants
Management staff would take that information and would contact the agency, or
the agency usually contacts us and they begin the process of working out a grant
agreement. And the standard grant agreements allow for an--I don't know what
they call--I guess an advanced payment of 25 percent and then the rest of the
funds are allocated at 25 percent, the final payment at the, before the end of the
fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I know that Hale Mahaolu at one time was
waiting for payment for this service and had fallen way behind. You know if
that's caught up?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I know it's caught up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is the Affordable Housing and/or
Supportive Living Housing, Members, on 8-08 on your Details sheet.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Affordable Housing and/or Supportive
Living Housing allocation in our budget is requested at the amount of $150,000.
And this fund, this allocation has traditionally been or historically been used by
the Department to supplement the needs in, the needs of, of homeless service
providers or agencies that are helping formerly homeless people move towards
self-sufficiency.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, Ms. Tsuhako. My question then is simply
why so much reduction? I mean I see others have been reduced, but not by 167 or
250,000. Was this put somewhere else?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, Mr. Victorino, it was not. The, the reason that, that reduction was
made is because we had to make cuts in our budget to accommodate the
parameters set forth for, for the Department. And also because the Department
also has another allocation specifically for homeless programs. And so we had
hoped that even if we had reduced this amount of funding available through this
...(end of tape 5A — 3:28 p.m.). . . the funding from the homeless allocation to
sort of make up for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, with the way, the direction we're moving and
I, I understand there is going to be cuts somewhere. But the most needy are
usually the ones that I, in particular, hate to cut, you know, and I think this
program and other programs similar--well, what was the difference, what was the
other part? And I guess there is somewhere inside here, I can find it, right? Is
there a page for that one so that I can see what the difference that you just
mentioned that you were giving something to the homeless. I thought I saw it
somewhere.
MS. TSUHAKO: There's, there's a homeless allocation in our, in our budget. I'll see if
I can find it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I'm sorry. I saw it, too, but I can't recall
where I saw it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You have a copy of that?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh, we're going to come to that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. REVELS: The page is 8-26.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 8-26.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I know we're going to come to that,
Mr. Chair, but, you know-- 125 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: 8-26.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just feel it's a big drastic cut. So at this
point I'm going to let it stand until I come to that one, and then I'll bring up the
question again, Mr. Chair. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Tsuhako, one fast question. This is affordable
housing and not trying to provide housing for homeless?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. The, the Department has used that, this allocation in different
ways over the years. So it could be used for both.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For both?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Homelessness as well as affordable housing?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. And the idea about the supportive living program is that there's
some people who, you know, through circumstances cannot go directly into
market-level housing. And so there's some programs that are aimed toward
helping those, providing what they call wraparound services to folks so that they
can maintain their housing even with the challenges that they have. So this fund
is sort of meant to do that as well as to look at any additional need that might
come up for affordable housing issues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kind of hard to understand removing 250 and
putting it somewhere, somewhere else when you see all this reduction, yeah. So
that's something that, hopefully, we come across that on 8-26.
MS. TSUHAKO: It was very difficult to do -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: --Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I can understand. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Lori, what is this, how do you help affordable housing?
I didn't understand it.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Well, this program, the, the allocation would be, we would be able to
use it for affordable housing in whichever way we determine affordable housing
to be. For example, if one of the agencies came up and, and proposed a program
to promote affordable housing, we could use some of this funds. But as I said,
historically we've used it to supplement homeless funding or to help people who
have more than enough challenges move into regular housing and, or to have
supportive housing. I don't recall a time specifically when it's been used directly
for affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that's fine that you have the flexibility. My
question is to date of that 400,000 that was earmarked, how much have you used
for homelessness if that's what your thrust was in using this money?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think out of that fund at the time the Department was asked to make
or to identify savings. We, we set aside the $250,000 and I don't believe we've
used the rest of the funds yet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But you still believe that money needs to be put into
homelessness program?
MS. TSUHAKO: I do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Because when we look farther down that we
were pointed at, there is a cut and not an increase. So for me it's not making
sense. You know, you got to put money if you know that you're going to need it
and you cut one and now you're cutting this one also.
MS. TSUHAKO: By a small amount, you're right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. But then the other one you cut by a big amount.
I mean if, if we're not going to take care of the homeless, fine, but--and I don't
know what that means, Lori, by homeless. Is that someone that's on the street
without any house? You know, if there's a cut there, then I don't want to say that
I can go put it somewhere else, but I don't see it being put somewhere. That's all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So the title of this line item
seems to be little bit confusing because affordable housing. But it's never been
used for affordable housing, just for homeless programs?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't recall a project that's been funded out of this allocation
specifically for affordable housing. My recollection is that the, the funding that's
been used from this allocation has been to supplement programs that are
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generated out of the homeless area and for those individuals and families who
have extraordinary needs for wraparound services that would be called supportive
living.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Maybe, you know, next budget cycle the title
of this be changed not to include affordable housing, because it doesn't seem
we're doing that with this funding. And granted homeless, you know, programs
are very important. So as it stands, would a project such as a senior affordable
housing project be able to get money from this fund for consultant services?
MS. TSUHAKO: Possibly, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So existing in the fund, I think you just told
Member Nishiki the balance hasn't been spent, there's still money in that fund. Is
that correct?
MS. TSUHAKO: That, that's what I believe right now, Mr. Medeiros. I, I would need to
look at the IFAS printout.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: With, the most recent one would have been for the end of March.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So if there is a qualified applicant wanting to
apply for existing funding, they can do that?
MS. TSUHAKO: If there's funding available
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes, but...
MS. TSUHAKO: I'd be willing to talk to them, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, I think Member Medeiros
asked the question, but I am interested in knowing what was expended to date in
this amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
- 128 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, yeah, like Member Medeiros, I'm really not
clear about the title, if that could be re-titled. Because, you know, it seems like
the direction has been to go give the funding more towards the homeless and, I
guess, for some supportive living needs. But if I could request from the
Department maybe, I guess, a more specific, you know, written out explanation of
the program or the fund. Because I'm guessing maybe the reduction in $250,000
maybe if that, the thought was because now that we have this Affordable Housing
Fund that was created via Charter amendment, I don't know if that went, was part
of the thinking behind that as well. So just for my own information to just get a
written explanation or a description, I should say, of this particular program. I
think that would help us in our decision-making at a later point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Ms. Tsuhako can give you that information directly.
MS. TSUHAKO: I will.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I was going to ask this question. Since you haven't touched
that money in '09, am I right?
MS. TSUHAKO: You know, sir, I, I remember setting aside some of this funds as was
requested of the departments for carryover savings. And I don't, I cannot
honestly tell you I know how much is remaining.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So if, if we didn't utilize this fund throughout the years,
I can see, I can understand of removing $250,000 because we haven't utilized that
particular fund. And I, in regards to affordable housing, I understand where
you're coming from as far as, you know, trying to provide affordable housing
which can include homelessness. But there's lot of homelessness programs
throughout this request that it's becoming more, you know, hard to understand,
yeah. You figure homelessness would be one category, you know, you put, put in
a number and whoever applies for a PAF [sic] for that particular funds would, you
know, would come out, out of that one big homelessness program. So, yeah, if
you could, you know, talk directly to Mr. Molina in regards to the Affordable
Housing and/or Supportive Living Housing defmition, I guess. The other thing
that I want to ask you is has any, anyone applied for this particular funding
before, if any?
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MS. TSUHAKO: The application, the, the process of applying has been directly through,
to the Director in the past. So it hasn't been sent out as a request for proposals.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you don't know then?
MS. TSUHAKO: I know that in the past the requests have come directly to the Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Okay. Next program, Affordable
Rental Housing Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Affordable Housing, oh excuse me, the Affordable Rental
Housing Program is what has been referred to last week as well as today as the
RAP program, which is called the Rental Assistance Program. The Department is
requesting that the allocation remain the same as it was in Fiscal Year '09, which
is $425,000. Four agencies currently receive funding through this allocation.
Those agencies are MEO, Maui Economic Concerns of the Community or Ka
Hale A Ke Ola, Women Helping Women and Family Life Center. The individual
allotments differ. MEO receives the greatest, the greatest amount of money at
$181,250 and Family Life Center receives $56,250. The services covered in the
RAP program differ slightly among the agencies as well as the average amount of
assistance and the average amount of time that families or individuals are eligible
to receive the funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Just to follow up on
Director Tsuhako's comments made today before our lunch break with regards to
the 700,000 Federal assistance. Can you tell us when that was, I guess, advertised
or when was it made known to the Department and to any of the other entities out
there?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that the request for information was published around
April the rt .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So roughly close to two weeks ago?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So those interested in effect they would have
known about this? Because this is first for, I'll just say for me, I'll speak for
myself that, you know, with your announcement this morning. So I'm kind of
surprised it wasn't shared with us earlier by not only you, but also other entities
assuming they did know about it. But it was, I guess, advertised, yeah? 'Cause
we've had the request, you know, from the various agencies about a potential
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increase and need for more funding in this area. So, I certainly would have liked
to have known about this a lot sooner, Mr. Chairman, yeah. Okay. Thank you,
Madam Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I just want to be sure, Ms. Tsuhako, that I have this
correct. This is like a earmark for Maui, this $700,000?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, actually the, the total amount is 2 1 million and it's like, as I said
earlier, it's being administered to the Hawaii Public Housing Authority. And
initially there wasn't a decision made on how the funding would be doled out to
the applicants. Initially the Public Housing Authority wanted to do what they call
a stacked rating, which is just to score all the proposals and then grant money
based on the, the total scores. And actually, the Kauai County representatives had
a difficult time with that because in the current, the current funding that is, comes
from the Public Housing Authority, Kauai gets about 16 percent of the funds that
go to the Neighbor Islands. The Big Island gets 54 percent and we get about
34 percent. And so Kauai County had, had requested for this round of funding
whether the State would consider and the other counties would consider doing an
equal share, so everybody getting approximately 33 percent of the funding. So all
of the county representatives from the different continuums of care agreed to that,
and that, that is how the decision was made to score all the proposals and yet still
try to keep in mind that approximately $700,000 would be set aside for each of
the Neighbor Island counties.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So although we don't have the money and we don't know
who's going to get it because the proposals are not done, we're pretty sure that
Maui County will be getting 700,000?
MS. TSUHAKO: Agencies in Maui County, yes, will be receiving approximately
$700,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. Well, that's, that's really a vital piece of
information because prior to your making this announcement today, I was toying
with the idea of moving $1 million into that because I think we really need it. So
that's a big, big relief, that's a big help, because our community is going to need
every dollar. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Lori, again you said the four agencies
that receive this Affordable Renting, Rental Housing program monies are MEO,
Ka Hale A Ke Ola, Family Life Center and. . .?
MS. TSUHAKO: Women Helping Women.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Women Helping Women. And then of
this amount in this current fiscal year, all of those monies have been expended?
MS. TSUHAKO: All of the funds have been granted out to the agencies.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then you, you have the breakdown
in those amounts. And then do you follow whether or not all those monies are
expended?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. The, the monies have to be expended and the contracts closed
before they would be able to receive any other funds. So, I think most of these
agencies received the Fiscal Year '09 funds at the, toward the beginning of
January. I think one agency had previously asked for an extension and they might
have gotten their money in March.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So if they are not expended, what
happens to those funds?
MS. TSUHAKO: They don't get paid to them. They stay within our County.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But then the monies would be
going back to your Department then?
MS. TSUHAKO: So the, the funds are paid out to them based on that quarterly schedule.
So if they don't expend the funds and submit the proof that they've expended
those funds and for what, what purpose and to how many people, they won't get
them. So the, the County won't release the funds to them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the remaining funds then will
be in your Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think they revert to the General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: To the General Fund?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then they would be
considered carryover then? And how do we track the carryover amounts?
MR. PABLO: There'll be a summary at the, in the quarterly fmancial statements. So
when the, when the Finance Director prepares the quarterly financial statement for
the quarter ending June 30 th for each department, there'll be a carryover amount.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Will that be one amount for each
department or will they be broken out into the program areas?
MR. PABLO: It'll be one amount for each department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So when we ask these specific questions
about how much was actually carried over, then it wouldn't be reflected there?
MR. PABLO: I believe that Finance Department could probably break it down further,
because they, they have the accounting system to do so. The quarterly report
solely prepares a summary of it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Departmental summary. Well, the, you
know, the difficulty would be trying to understand which of these programs are
actually, you know, not expending so that there are amounts that are carried over.
And then getting it, a departmental program summary doesn't allow us as we're
reviewing program by program to understand what is working and what isn't
working. Yeah, so.. .
MR. PABLO: We could take a look at the quarterly financial statements, I mean a
quarterly report I was mentioning. At the beginning, I know at the beginning part
of the quarterly report it has it by department, and later on when you go into the
performance measures, I believe there's also a summary by, by program. But, but
we could take a look and verify that for you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'? One real quick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Before we leave, I just want to ask Director one more
question. Ms. Tsuhako, do you know if the program's money, we, we can do the
kind of programs we're doing with it now or will it have different approaches?
Will it be as flexible as what we have now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director?
MS. TSUHAKO: From what I've seen of the RFI and from what I've read of the
proposals that were submitted to Public Housing Authority, it seems like most of
the agencies are asking for just more money to run the same program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. That's important.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one is Housing and Land Enterprise of Maui dba
Na Hale 0 Maui for a Community Land Trust.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Na Hale 0 Maui, the allocation that's being
requested for Na Hale 0 Maui is $120,000. As Mr. Andersen said this morning,
the agency submitted a budget that was $3,000 or, excuse me, a request that was
$30,000 below their, the allocation they received during the current fiscal year.
Na Hale 0 Maui tries to secure and preserve a permanent supply of affordable
housing alternatives for low to moderate income households in our community.
They have a four-step process for potential homebuyers. They provide workshops
to give information on homeownership under a land trust model. And they're
currently initiating the HUD Neighborhood Stabilization Program for our County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No questions at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Na Hale 0 Maui. . .in
trying to secure additional housing, do they have any projects completed?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. RIDAO: Yeah. Councilmember Medeiros, if you're asking if they've purchased
housing or have done a housing program, I don't believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so the budgeted money is more for
operations?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. RIDAO: I believe that's.. .
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. The funding is for organizational and administrative support.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Which is 120,000 for 2010?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, but is it their endeavor to secure or
provide additional housing through consultants or other nonprofits such as, I think
at one time they were considering affordable housing in Hana with. . .I'm not sure
who the other partner was. But so they, they don't have any affordable housing
completed, that they were the ones that wanted to initiate it?
MS. TSUHAKO: Not to my knowledge.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. No projects other than the $3 million they received
in Federal grants. Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, if you can turn to Page 10-26 of
the Program Budget. There is a listing of the Community Partnership Grants.
. . .Department, this is a two-year grant for each of the applicants or the recipients
on this page?
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MS. TSUHAKO: Pardon me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is this a two-year grant starting off 2009-MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and continuing on 2010?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Member Molina, any questions in any of them?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh. . .quite a big list, Mr. Chairman. You know, can
you come back to me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is a pretty exhaustive list here. You know, I had this
discussion a while back about the community partnership grants, and I think that
this idea of a two-year grant is really a good idea. You know, in order for an
agency to do a good program. . .if they don't even have two years of funding,
their number one problem is to secure a staff. Because you cannot have people
come and work for you and tell them well, you know, we only have one year of
funding, so it's very difficult. So I am big fan of this two-year grant idea. I
notice that there is a reduction of 73-some thousand dollars in the total package
and yet the list on Page 10-26 is, does, looks like 74,000 wasn't allocated. So I
guess it's okay. So, I think it's okay for me at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only question is because many of the agencies
that are receiving monies, you know, like let's say Mediation Center of Molokai
or whatever it is or Molokai Community Service Council, I know our past
practice has always been like you get one, you know, you get one shot and that
agency gets, yeah, I guess just that amount of money and you can't duplicate. But
because these are for different programs, how are they accounting for it? Are
these separate grants all managed independent of one another?
MS. TSUHAKO: They are. A separate grant agreement is cut for every different
program.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But let's take Boys and Girls Club of Maui,
for example. Because those are separate accounts, do each one of those have to
do a separate audit?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe they used a single audit for the entire agency.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. How about the other entities?
MS. TSUHAKO: The other entities if they have a single program, would still need to do
an audit the same way a larger agency with multiple projects would be required to
do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So let's say for Molokai, for example, you know, like
they're getting money through the Community Service Council, they have to do
an audit for each one of those allocations?
MS. TSUHAKO: If Molokai Community Service Council, I believe, was the umbrella
agency for a smaller program, then they would be required as sort of the -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Umbrella.
MS. TSUHAKO: --umbrella agency to get the information from the sub-grantee and
provide that to Grants Management.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But I know that, you know, everybody that
gets money from us is subject to audit. So, I guess what I'm trying to do is figure
out how are they keeping track? I mean you look at the duplication. Every time
you engage in a grant, just the work that it takes and the monitoring for that one
grant. Wouldn't it be more beneficial to work with the entity and try to get them
to submit one grant and then have different, I guess, allocations going to these
different groups that they're overseeing?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think that's a suggestion that, you know, certainly could be
considered by the Grants Review Committee. I, I don't know how that would
work in terms of actually, for example, if you submit one blanket application for
several different programs and if some programs are chosen and others aren't, I
don't know if it would disqualify the whole application. You know what I mean?
I don't know the, the nuts and bolts of the-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I understand what you're saying, is one
aspect of it may be able to be funded and yet maybe another section of the
program would not. But then I would think that you could adjust through the
grants review process what you're going to allocate. But that's just my view.
The other thing is each one of these separate entities that's receiving monies--I
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know that I raised this issue before and I saw a letter go out, I believe, from the
Administration about the insurance. Each one of these entities have to carry their
own, if they're in a County agency or a County building, they all have to carry
their insurance--is that correct?--$1 million naming the County of Maui as an
additional insured?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't know what the insurance requirement is, is specifically about
the, the level of liability and what the County has to be named as. But they do
each have to have insurance, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, this is one area again, Mr. Chair, that I want
something done about this. It just doesn't make any sense that we're granting
these people money, each one of them, you know, maybe not all of them, but the
ones that are in County facilities have to provide based on our requirement
insurance and it could be $2 million now. And then they require them, we require
them to pay for policy and yet we include that as an eligible expense for
reimbursement. So in essence we're, I mean we're our own worst enemy. So, I
just want to find someway to look at realistically how can we help so that we're
not having to purchase or these entities are not having to purchase separate
policies for each one of these programs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm not real familiar with all of these, but
I have a question. The Friends of DT Fleming Arboretum, what, what is that?
MS. TSUHAKO: It's an educational program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's educating. . .?
MS. TSUHAKO: It's educating the public and I think they do programs with, with
school-age students at their facility.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And they have, there, there is an
arboretum...
MS. TSUHAKO: . . . (end of tape 5B — 3:58 p.m). . . I don't have, I have a list of all the
agencies. I don't have their separate grant agreements with me. I can certainly
check and, and tell you exactly what it is that they're supposed to be doing as part
of this Community Partnership Grant.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then on the, the Legal Aid
Society of Hawaii, then does this provide to all islands in Maui County?
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MS. TSUHAKO: I know for sure the Legal Aid Society has offices on Maui and
Molokai. I do not know if they have an office in Lanai. I believe their attorney
travels to Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So you don't know what this
money is actually being used for then?
MS. TSUHAKO: My understanding is the, the Legal Aid Society uses their funds to
assist low-income or income-qualified folks with a variety of legal services.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And you're not sure if Lanai is included
on this then?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm not sure, but I've traveled with Legal Aid attorneys to Lanai, so
I'm guessing that they go there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just looking across the board
where there are general kinds of agencies we're funding for grant programs here
that they reached the Neighbor Islands as well, our Neighbor Islands.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. There is a Legal Aid office on
Lanai, so I'm just, that's why I asked the question. But, yeah, but without your
details, then you're saying you don't know what they
specifically. ..(inaudible). . .
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. What happens is the Grants Review Committee receives all of
these applications from a variety of, of agencies for specific programs, and they
through their own process review, score and then make recommendations to the
Administration about funding levels for these Community Partnership Grants.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then on the very last item,
the funding, the funding distribution to be recommended by a Grant Review
Committee. So is this an amount that, that remains there, not awarded to any
specific?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct. The Grants Review Committee when they met last
year made recommendations to the Administration for funding of the agencies
that you see listed. They also had a small amount of money, I believe it was
$56,000 that was left unspent, and that, those funds were sort of subsumed into
the reduction that was taken in for this year's budget.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is that normally the practice that
you have in a remaining balance then?
MS. TSUHAKO: Usually it's a small balance, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then you just take a percent
reduction of that?
MS. TSUHAKO: Pardon me?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, never mind. Okay. Does this
become carryover then at some point? Have you, if you haven't expended that
amount for any reason, then that goes back into the General?
MS. TSUHAKO: It would have, yes. I, I believe the Department has contracted with an
agency to provide bus service in Hana for our National Guard program, so we
have used some of those funds that were left over from the CPG process.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this amount money then is for further
awards then?
MS. TSUHAKO: It could be, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So the total award would be 15, $1.5 million?
MS. TSUHAKO: That was for last year, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just have one question,
Department. I'm not familiar. . .well, I'm not familiar with several of them, but
one that I'm interested in is Ka Hale Pomaikai. Where is that located? Because
it's a sober living house. Because we have one in Hana, but I'm not sure if it's
called that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Molokai.
MS. TSUHAKO: It's a Molokai program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Molokai?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, excuse me, for a moment. No knowledge about
any, what is MECC, Inc. operations of KHAO?
MS. TSUHAKO: MECC is an acronym for Maui Economic Concerns of the
Community, and KHAO is Ka Hale A Ke Ola.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. The one question I had was on this Malama
Na Makua A Keiki. What is this all about? I, I see it's a treatment and housing
for women, but I'm not familiar with that program. So would you give me some
kind of idea what is that?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'll do my best.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay. And, yeah, thank you.
. . . (inaudible).. .
MS. TSUHAKO: Malama, Malama is a gender-specific substance abuse treatment
program for women.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: They are administratively under the auspices of Aloha House right
now, and previously they had residential treatment for pregnant women as well as
women with children. So they do, they do best practices that are specific for
treating women.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this is all substance abuse then?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And this is Countywide? This program?
Or is this specifically...
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't know. I don't believe that they serve anywhere other than
Maui island.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Not the neighboring districts like Hana,
Molokai or Lanai, not that you know of?
MS. TSUHAKO: Not that I know of.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tsuhako.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Tsuhako, fast question. When will the Grants
Review Committee, I guess, approve the grants?
MS. TSUHAKO: The Grants Review Committee met last year and they made their
recommendations to the Administration. So they won't be meeting again
because, because of the two-year funding cycle -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: --they won't be meeting again until next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. So this is the proposal for the GRC?
MS. TSUHAKO: This is the Administration's proposal because the GRC was tasked
with making initial recommendations based on a two-year funding cycle, and
always, the contracts have always have the little proviso on there that says
pending availability of funding -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: --for the second year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we're going to take a ten minute recess.
We'll reconvene at 4:15 and we'll continue with the grants from the, for Fiscal
Year 2010. So this meeting is in recess until 4:15. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:05 p.m.
4:21 p.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . Thank you. Okay. Members, we'll continue on.
Members, to speed up the process if you can ask one question.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you have any more questions, you call the Department for
your answers. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Ms. Tsuhako, if you can, 8-26. Culture and Arts Grants. Page 10-24 of the -MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Program Budget.
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr Chair, the Culture and Arts appropriation request is coming in at
$139,500. This, the Culture and Arts is another program that is reviewed by the
Grants Review Committee. So applications are, are forwarded to the Grants
Review Committee, and the Committee reviews those applications, makes
recommendations to the Administration for funding. These grants are also,
grantees are also informed that because this is a two-year funding cycle, that
funding for the second year is contingent upon availability of funds as they are for
the Community Partnership Grants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. See how fast that went?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. 'Cause you said.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So we have a credit of one.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one is on Page 8-17 of your Details, American
Red Cross.
MS. TSUHAKO: The American, the American Red Cross is being recommended for
line item funding in the amount of $10,000 for disaster response and
preparedness. The Red Cross is an integral partner with the, with the
communities, other services as well as with the County to provide disaster relief
assistance to meet immediate emergency needs during the time of an emergency.
We are recommending funding at that amount of $10,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui Adult Day Care Centers.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair Maui Adult Day Care Centers is being
recommended for a line item grant in the amount of $256,500. With these funds
the Maui Adult Day Care does social, therapeutic, respite and daytime programs
for elderly as well as for those who suffer from Alzheimer's or dementia, and
adults who are physically and mentally impaired. The $256,500 allocation
proposes to serve about 1,200 of our communities most needy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Not so much a question. . .well, I
guess, just one question that I've been allotted in the interest of expediting the
process here. Madam Director, when we discussed the Community Partnership
Grants on Page 10-26 in the Program Budget, the Alzheimer's D&RD
Association, their grant does that help, will that help in Maui Adult Day Care
Center sort of deal with their, deal with any concerns regarding their reduced
budget proposal?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you for your question, Member Molina. The, I can tell you that
the Maui Adult Day Care as well as our Office on Aging, Alzheimer's and other
agencies that deal with elders and issues, having to deal with our elders work very
closely together. So I'm sure that there's. . .if not direct funding going both ways,
they do collaborate in a way that makes the services provided by each of those
entities more effective.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not on this one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Where am I now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll come back to you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I'll take advantage of my one question,
Mr. Chairman Adult Day Care, does it include funding for Hale Hulu Mamo in
Hana, which is an adult day care.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It does? Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Madam Director, can you tell me why the 5 percent? Because
it, when you look at the total, they all vary. So if the, if the marching orders was
10 percent across, can the Department tell us the differentiation between some
getting 5 percent, 2 percent, et cetera?
MS. TSUHAKO: In trying to make recommendations about funding for the various
agencies we tried to focus, as I said earlier, on food, shelter and safety. And we
viewed the populations being served by these various service providers and tried
to identify those who are most vulnerable and tried to maintain as much of the
funding as we could for those agencies. And that would account for the variations
in the levels of reductions that were taken by those agencies.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Women Helping Women.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Women Helping Women is being, has asked
for $190,000 in, in this line item allocation. It is the only provider of domestic
violence shelter programs in our community. They provide 24-hour emergency
shelter and support programs to provide safe shelter and advocacy for women and
children who are dealing with domestic violence. The grant, this grant is really
important for critical funding positions in that agency, which also provides
domestic violence crisis hotline as well as assistance in preparing and seeking
temporary restraining orders, advocacy in court, accompaniments, education
support groups and positive parenting. This agency's request was considered
within the realm of safety as well as shelter for vulnerable residents.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Just a comment that I think I would like to see
more there, because I think we're going, going into a phase where this may
become more important than ever. But I'm glad to see the level funding. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Hana Human Services.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Hana Human Services essentially had to
do with the Hana Dialysis program. The grant previously had been to the Hana
Community Association, and we have recently seen the grand opening of the
Hana Home Dialysis program which is very satisfying and indeed very helpful to
the folks out there who need that service. We are recommending funding in the
amount of $45,000. My understanding is that the grant funds would be provided
to Hana Community Association to act as an umbrella until Hui Laulima is able to
secure all of their necessary experience in order to qualify for a grant on their
own.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Ms. Tsuhako,
for that comments. However, the agency that is overseeing and operating the
Hana Community Dialysis Home, and that organization is called Hui Laulima 0
Hana, they're now a certified nonprofit. What would it take to direct the money
directly to them now? The only reason we use Hana Community Association was
at that time Hui Laulima 0 Hana was not a certified nonprofit, but they are now.
So is there a change in wording that we got to do so the money can go directly?
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr. Medeiros, the Hui Laulima because they're new, newly formed
and newly created has to have a, I think two years worth of proven experience as
a grant recipient before they could obtain those funds on their own. And so Hana
Community Association was cooperating with the County and helping to act as
the fiscal agent for that project until Hui Laulima could establish their own track
record and be able to apply for that grant on their own.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you so much for that clarification.
Would it then be recommended that we apply a proviso to this so that the money
is directed to the dialysis?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: That, that would be fine with us.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Then we-MS. TSUHAKO: We, we've, the Department has managed to have a really good
relationship with both with the Hana Community Association as well as the,
Lehua and the folks from Hui Laulima.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. TSUHAKO: So that shouldn't be a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Okay. And I, I think you're correct, it
shouldn't be a problem because basically the, the officers of Hui Laulima 0 Hana
are also officers of Hana Community Association. So thank you for that
clarification. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
- 148 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mental Health Association in Hawaii.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Mental Health Association of Hawaii,
Maui branch is being recommended for a line item grant in the amount of
$27,000. With these funds the Mental Health Association provides advocacy,
education and family support to those who have mental health issues in Maui
County. With. . .the, the proposed grant says that the agency may serve up to
1,500 people throughout our County. The funding is geared toward, 80 percent of
the funding is geared toward staffing. And I think Mental Health Association of
Maui only has one staff member.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you clarify, 80 percent was to staff a one, a one staff
operation individual, and is it only 80 percent of these funds or their, or their total
fund that they collect?
MS. TSUHAKO: It's 80 percent of the funds that we are recommending -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: The 27?
MS. TSUHAKO: --would pay for the staff.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Self Sufficiency Programs.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Self Sufficiency allocation is an allocation
that is run through the Director's office, and it has been used historically to
provide funding to programs that specifically address self sufficiency. So, for
example, during this current fiscal year one of the grantees is the Maui Economic
Opportunity, VITA Tax Assistance Program which used $22,500 of County funds
to leverage other funding to be able to help low income residents with filing tax
returns and hopefully getting return, getting refunds. The County is also working
with Consumer Credit Counseling Services right now to execute a grant that
would assist the growing population of our friends and neighbors who are needing
financial counseling over a long period of time to deal with their debts as well as
manage their budgets with less income.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And just a reminder, April 15 th is coming around
the corner, so get your taxes all done. . . .(chuckle). . . Next item is Hui Malama
Learning Center.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The Hui Malama Learning Center. . .provides
alternative education and vocational programs that teach youth from age 5 up
until 24 about sustainability and self-reliance. They provide education to
caregivers to help in their children's academic success. This program also has
funding that would go through Ka Hono. . .Ka Honua Momona--excuse me, is
that the right name of the program?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you say it again?
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
MS. TSUHAKO: . . .(laughter). . . Sorry, I'm stumbling through my words. In essence
they propose to do more services on Molokai with these funds. We're asking for
an allocation of $187,020.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. But this is a heartbreaker for me. I have the greatest
respect for Hui Malama and there's such a huge, huge, huge need out there. So, I
hope that they can continue to do what they do with this money, 'cause, you
know, there's just nobody doing what they do. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Farm. Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The Department is recommending a line item
grant in the amount of $252,000 for Maui Farm. Maui Farm is a program that
provides very intensive family strengthening services to families. In discussing
this, this recommendation with several Members, I will note that in the scope of
human services there are those services that are meant as what we call light touch,
which means that with a certain amount of money you are able to intervene with
many, many more clients. And these are called light touch services and it doesn't
mean that they're less of a need for that, but in the entire continuum of, of human
services you have agencies that serve greater numbers of people with fewer
services and less intense services. And then there are agencies like Maui Farm
that maybe serve fewer numbers of people but with a great deal more intensity,
and these services provide the stability for families to move forward. So we're,
we're recommending the allocation to Maui Farm in the amount of $252,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No question. But just a comment that they, they really
provide a very important service in our community and like Member Baisa said
with, with another organization, I hope they can certainly sustain the same level
of services with the amount that's being considered. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Another tough one, but I think we're going to have to eat
some of this whether it's difficult or not. And I'm hoping, you know, I'm an
eternal optimist that something is going to break, that we'll be able to do
something about this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I think this is a
program, you know, that in our review of them said that while they do with, with
what they can with the limited numbers of, of clients, that this is a program
probably that could use more support because they're at their limits already and
so they can't help any, any more. And if it is a good program, then, then they
should be considered for more funding so that they can reach farther than they,
they currently are. And I think the idea of, of providing self-sufficiency in the
families, getting them to know how to sustain themselves to become self-reliant,
you know, would meet some of your, your criteria for self-sufficiency funding
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perhaps. You know, so again I think that they should be considered for more
funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just the same comments, Mr. Chairman. Maui
Farm, Hui Malama Learning Center, they, they provide a service that people that
become their clients pretty much have no other place to go and to be made whole
again. And so it's sad, you know, it's sad that we, we have to reduce their
funding, but hopefully, maybe, Mr. Chairman, we get a check from
Senator Akaka. . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .so we can restore all this funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everything has been said. When the check arrives,
let us know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know like everything else when you consider the crunch
that we're in, then there's sacrifices to be made so. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, thank you. I just want to ask a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know we're trying to move along as quickly as we can
here, but, you know, the, the line items that have not received funding, I guess by
not discussing them we're agreeing with the recommendation not to fund them.
And I have a question about the ARC of Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. I'll get back to that as soon as we -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --complete the rest on this page.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There's two actually that we need to get back. Homeless
Programs.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Homeless Program allocation again is one
of those allocations, large allocations that's worked through the Director's
Department, the Director's Office, excuse me. And in the current fiscal year we
are funding Maui Economic Concerns of the Community Central Program, their
Combined Program as well as their Homeless Emergency Services Program
through this allocation. We've also planned to give funding from this allocation
to Hale Kau Kau to supplement their feeding program. A small allocation was
also given to Family Life Center to do some support for the recently completed
point in time count, which actually sought to use outreach workers to count the
numbers of homeless which would be used to determine Maui County's
allocations in future Federal funding. We have, we have requested a small
reduction in, in this allocation basically to look at savings within the
Department. . .not, not because we don't feel that it's necessary, but we did have
to balance the needs of, the service needs of the community as well as with what
the Department could do. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. What was the, you said a little
bit for this and a little bit for that. And so what was specifically for MECC? Do
you have a breakdown, the actual breakdown of this 510,000 or are you going to
make those decisions as they come along?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, I can tell you what, the decisions will be made in the next fiscal
year depending on how much funding we have. But for the current fiscal year -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: --I can tell you exactly how much was spent for each of those
programs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead, if you can do it real quickly.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah, sure. Maui Economic Concerns of the Community - Central
Programs 242,000; Combined Programs, 138,000; the Homeless Emergency
Services or HES program, 115,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was all the 520,000?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Those were the three allocations given to Maui Economic
Concerns of the Community.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This year you're going to, your next fiscal year
you're going to use that money, but you also mentioned a couple others that you
were going to give small amounts to.
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh, no. The Hale Kau Kau-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Like Hale Kau Kau, et cetera.
MS. TSUHAKO: --is set to receive $20,000 from Fiscal Year '09 allocation, and Family
Life Center already received $4,000 from this year's allocation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So for 2010 you're looking for similar amounts?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Based upon the need?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because, you know, the Hale Kau Kau, I'm very
familiar with the program, and they're, they have almost more than doubled,
almost tripled the amount of people seeking meals every day. And, you know, I
don't, every time we lessen fund--and again I heard the Chair and I hear
everybody, somewhere along the line somebody has to suffer--but we seem to
make those who need it the most suffer the most. But I mean it's not your fault,
it's just the way of the world.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. We have actually been working with Hale Kau Kau to try and
give them funding through a variety of sources, not just through this large
allocation. Because they provide meals to homebound elders in Kihei, we've
actually contracted through the Office on Aging to provide them some funding for
that as well. So we're trying to, you know, use the funding that's available to us
in, in creative and meaningful ways to, to ensure that services can be provided to
folks who really need them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(end of tape 6A — 4:45 p.m.). . . the dollars
sometimes are nothing. It's not all your fault. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman Ms. Tsuhako, so what is
the relationship with that line item, Homeless Programs and the previous one we
discussed, Affordable Housing and/or Supportive Living Housing, which you
indicated went probably totally in past history to Homeless Programs. How do
those two, two line items relate?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, they relate because, as I said, historically the, some of the funds
from the Affordable Housing and Supportive Living Housing allocation were
used to address dire needs that were expressed by homeless providers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see. Okay. So it's, so the funding in the line
item we're considering now, Homeless Programs, isn't sufficient to cover those
needs that are used by the Affordable Housing and/or Supportive Living Housing
line item? So this, so you're using that to supplement other homeless program
needs or housing needs, but not affordable housing, right?
MS. TSUHAKO: It, it, that Affordable Housing, Supportive Living Housing allocation
has been used in the past to supplement emergency requests that have come from
homeless agencies, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Which this funding that we're talking about now
cannot cover?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chair. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. Member Medeiros asked the
question about that line item that we had spoken of earlier. But it means that in
the total amount of all of the grants, then at the end of the day the $250,000 is just
reducing your, your next year's funding amount. . .you know, by 250,000. So it's
not being reapportioned or reapplied to other areas, it's just a strict dollar amount
that reduces some percentage of your budgets for grants?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's true.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then when we talked about
the need for the support in the area of homelessness and, and all of that, why
wouldn't you have applied that amount then to the program itself?
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, because we had to, we had to really balance all of the needs, and
I think that the Department has done a good job of funding homeless services to
the extent that we were able to in the past. And with the, with the growing
strength of our continuum of care which the County actively participates in and
support, I think that we can do a better job of generating more funding from
external sources like the State or from the Federal government to help address the
shortfall that we might have in the County. And so I'm counting on those
relationships as well as the continuum of care to do the work that will be
necessary to generate more funding for the agencies even if it doesn't come
through the County to be granted to the agencies themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do you, I think earlier you said
you anticipate that the situation to get even worse than it currently is. Am I
correct?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think another speaker said that. But-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Another speaker said that? I'm just
looking, I think we can all, I think if that's something that we anticipate, then
would it stand to reason that these areas are going to be the ones that are in most
need perhaps in terms of services provided to our, our community, you know?
And you, you outlined your three criteria as housing, food and what, safety? And
would you not consider that the homeless are, are going to be probably the ones
that are going to need more support in, in this downward trend for the economy?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think the homeless are going to continue to need support.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You see those numbers increasing?
MS. TSUHAKO: So far we, you know, in the most recent point in time count, the
numbers have gone up, but that was because they were artificially low at the last
go-around. I think there are a lot of people who are on the verge of being really,
really vulnerable fmancially. So I think the, the actual homeless numbers may
remain the same, but there'll be, the people who are vulnerable because of job
loses and other circumstances may grow. So, yeah, I see the need increasing for
some support within that continuum of services.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then by that, that, that reason
don't you see a need to increase in that, in that line item amount? Excuse me.
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MS. TSUHAKO: I'm sure the homeless providers will take whatever funding that we,
extra funding that we would decide to, you would decide to offer them. I am.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I, I just would like to lend my support to
that area of, of need because I anticipate that it's not going to get better. It's
probably going to get to a point that we're going to need figure out how to help
more. The testimonies that have come from throughout our community hearings
have been very enlightening in terms of the kinds of services that are provided to
people that are in need, you know, and these are everything from, from those who
are in abuse to, to losing homes to families to, you know, preschool children, I
mean across the board. So I'm just making sure that we anticipate that maybe
now is the time to put more support where we anticipate it to be and, and be a
little bit more, you know, proactive in that kind of regard rather than wait until it
gets so dire that we haven't accommodated that, that change or that need. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I think the Department is doing just that. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I want to say I share
Member Kaho'ohalahala's feelings. Also, I would respectfully ask that somebody
might want to follow up with the testifier this morning from Maui Economic
Concerns of the Community from, from the shelter about her trip to Portland,
Oregon where she was able to witness something called Dignity Village. And it
was very interesting what she talked about and how this homeless situation is
handled by the residents themselves. Because I'm concerned that we do not have
some kind of more permanent situation for the homeless. You know, we have a
few agencies that are doing it, but I don't think it's enough and that's why we still
have these problems with homeless people. You know yesterday I was in Kahului
and I looked at the parking lot at the old Pizza Hut and it was a quiet day, and I
think I counted almost 15 shopping wagons in that lot and I'm really worried
`cause one of these days, there's a Walgreen's I think going there. So they will
chase those people out again and they'll probably go to a County park, and then
the people in the County park don't want them there. And I think we have to take
an active role of looking at an alternative. And I personally would like to see
money set aside to do that. I'm really concerned. We have to stop this migrant
thing that we take from here to there, we clean it out, but it costs us a lot of money
but it only goes somewhere else. So, you know, if you could, I'd appreciate it.
She seemed to be very enthusiastic about what she saw.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. I will. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Lori.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Madam Director, you know
with the numbers of homeless that's probably going to be projected to increase, is
there a way the Department is able to track people that are coming from out of
State? Because I've heard, I don't know how true it is, but other states they will,
with their homeless they basically give them one-way tickets to the State of
Hawaii and they go to all of our islands. I mean do we have numbers here for
Maui County? Is there a way you are able to track that?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't know if there's a way to track that. I think we could probably
get you anecdotal information from the outreach workers, the agencies who do the
outreach.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. If maybe, I know time is somewhat
short now, but I guess for the future. You know, Mr. Chairman, maybe, I don't
know if there's a way legislatively and, or, or working with our Federal
representatives to do something about this. It just seems like other states just
want to pass off the problem to, to us and, of course, if you ask a person who's
down on their luck and homeless, hey, give them a one-way ticket, where do you
want to go in the United States, sure, come to Hawaii where the weather's great
year round and, you know, and hit up, you know, the local county governments
for, for assistance. I mean there's just something, in my opinion, somewhat
fundamentally flawed with that kind of thinking. So just my opinion. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I think the State Legislature tried to do that,
but they didn't go too far. And, you know, just reading the paper, they're going to
be looking at the homeless at Kanaha Park. So that's going to create more
problems for the County of Maui. But again, you know, some of the homeless
that we see, you know, they, they, they don't want to follow the rules in certain
locations, so they continue to remain homeless. So that's another issue that we
got to contend with. So, you know, that's. . .I don't know what else we can do for
the homeless here in Maui County other than take a look at some innovative ideas
like that woman had told us this morning. You know what happened at the
breakwater, right? You know we all, they all congregated in that one whole area,
we knew where they were and then we, you know, chased them all out so now
they're all over the place. Anyway, Maui Community College for Cooperative
Education Program.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair This proposed line item grant in the amount of
$40,000 is for the Cooperative Education Internship Program. This program
provides funding for students to intern in different field sites within the County
and at other sites throughout our community. The interns learn about work, about
government. They're monitored closely by faculty. The funding is totally for the
stipends for those student learning experiences. The County has benefited greatly
from having these students available to us. The young lady that we just had most
recently at the Office on Aging was an excellent, excellent employee who
provided way more in service than we were able to give her in a stipend. So the
Department requests funding in the amount of $40,000 to Cooperative Education
Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So how many interns will this serve?
MS. TSUHAKO: The proposal will serve up to 25 interns.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then the amount of money divided
by 25 goes to what? It goes to the, the agency or the...
MS. TSUHAKO: No. It's goes to the interns as a stipend for giving -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: As a stipend.
MS. TSUHAKO: --up their time to work in the agencies.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it'd be 25 of, of the 40,000? Twenty
five into the 40,000, that's how you would calculate that?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct. And actually, I think that they, the program has set up. . .I
think we can only serve 20, 20 students this year with the reduction. The initial
request came in at serving 25 students, but, but the Department was not able to
honor the request for funding at that level. So it would be reduced to 20 students,
and they would get approximately $2,000 apiece.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, just one question. So
does the State provide any funding to supplement or match what we give or do
they give more to this program? Because I think it's a good program.
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I don't know what the State provides except for the program is, is
part of MCC, and so I'm assuming they get their administrative support as well as
the salaries for the cooperative education liaison and faculty members through the
State.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So do the students because we're funding it have
their internship strictly with Maui County government agencies?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, they can go to other places. But they've been predominantly with
County offices.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. And the students, this is like a work
practicum? They're gaining credits, college credit while they work?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think they just earn the experience, not necessarily work credits. So
they're, they're. . Aried to be matched into areas where they want to pursue further
education.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Well, usually-MS. TSUHAKO: I don't think they earn credits, academic credits -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Well-MS. TSUHAKO: --for their, their degree.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --couldn't that be work, worked into it? Because part of work
practicum allows the student an opportunity to gain credit while engaged in the
actual career practices that they wish to pursue. So perhaps in continuation of this
program, I mean it cannot just be a paycheck, that's a dead end.
MS. TSUHAKO: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: It's got to have something at the end. And if that something at
the end provides an additional credit in them attaining a degree, it's a lot more
beneficial. What is the $2,000 gonna, gonna do in terms of them obtaining their
degree program? So credit might be a lot more valuable in, in making this
program work. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Point well taken. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, question's been asked. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, at this time the Chair is going to
recess this meeting for our dinner, and we'll come back at 6:00 and we'll continue
with the Grants program. So this meeting is in recess till 6:00 p.m.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:00 p.m.
6:00 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, when we left off, we left off with Maui Community
College for Cooperative Education Program. So the next area is the Maui
Economic Opportunity Inc. for Enlace Hispano Program. Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair MEO's Enlace Hispano Program provides
cultural integration, civic engagement, community education, needs assessment,
service delivery, information referral and workplace, workforce development to
the Hispanic population. Their bi-lingual staff provides services that assist in
acculturation and ultimately which lead to cost savings for the County. They
partner effectively with other agencies to provide service. The projection of
service provision is to 2,500 individuals at a total cost to the County of $157,500.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions. But I just want to make an addition. I'm
looking at the ethnicity report on the program and there are folks who are not
Hispanic, but because they come in for immigration assistance, I guess MEO
serves them. Although the, the largest, the largest group is of Hispanic origin, a
very mixed group, largely Guatemalan, Mexican, Puerto Rican and many others.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I'll pass, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. I just wanted to know, is there a
capacity level for this program, how many they can serve?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm not aware of what that is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Good program. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Family Support Services.
MS. TSUHAKO: . . . (Clears throat). . . Excuse me. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Maui
Family Support Services is making a request, we are requesting a line item of
$47,500 for this program. It's an Early Head Start Program that works with child
development, home, home-based programs. Some. . .they work with income
eligible families, expectant moms, parents and caretakers of kids who are between
the ages of 6 to 3 years. They provide maternal and child health specialist
services in the areas of mental and physical health as well as nutrition and special
needs by helping with child development services at no cost to these families.
The Department is requesting a reduction only of 5 percent in this program and
I'd like to just take a moment to explain why.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Maui Family Support Services also administers our Child Care
Subsidy Grant, and through that grant as well as through some other funding that
was given to the agency by other sources with the County's assistance, Maui
Family Support actually came to the County and offered to reduce their
administrative cost. And they reduced their administrative cost from 10 percent
to 5 percent, which means that the money that we allocate to them goes directly to
families and not so much of it goes towards their administrative cost. And I
wanted to honor that, that gesture by the agency by not reducing them any more
than what is recommended here.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Would you know on the early childhood, Early
Healthy Start Program if they're going to get funding from the ARRA? Because
there were, there was a national, I guess, effort to continue funding that particular
program.
MS. TSUHAKO: I know that Head Start programs are expecting to get some funding
from the Federal stimulus. I do not know specifically that Early Head Start
Programs will.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I thought I read it in the, the NACo paper that we
receive. Okay. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Maui Food Bank.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Maui Food Bank's recommended allocation in
this line item is $200,000, which remains constant from funding levels received in
Fiscal Year 2009. This is a hunger relief program that provides residents as well
as participating agencies with low-cost food. Mr. Yust was here this morning and
I think gave this body an exceptional description of what they do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair Again this is a program
that I think is going to need much more help than, than, than we are providing for
it. And then the 25, 25,000. . .no, we're taking out--oh, we're leaving it 200.
Okay. Yeah. I just think that if there are other ways for him to, to make the kinds
of connection because he stated that right now it's an issue for them to get food
from farms. Somehow we need to make those connections so what is grown here
locally isn't just plowed under for whatever policies or liabilities, that there are
people that really, truly need it. And if it's just a matter of connecting or
providing for the agency the kind of support that they need to cover whatever
liabilities that there are, then, then we should be doing that to help the agency to
help the people that are really in need of food. So.. .
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Hopefully he follows up with the people that do
farming here in Maui County. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Community Work Day Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Community Work Day Program has been a
long-time partner with the County of Maui. Grant funds in the amount of
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$184,800 are being requested via this line item. These funds are projected to
cover program operations, including the coordination of all the volunteer
activities, environmental solid waste and recycling information. This, these funds
are going to be, have been assured that these funds will be used to leverage other
in-kind donations and other funding available to this agency from other sources. I
particularly appreciate Community Work Day Program for the assistance that they
provided the County when the counties had to do large cleanup projects of
homeless sites. I believe that they helped at the breakwater. They've also helped
us at Kanaha when we did the intervention in the summer of 2007 as well as a
more recent cleanup effort in Lahaina on Prison Street.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I think, I think I would look at this
particular organization, and I would continue to ask the Department your three
priorities of housing, food and safety. I think this particular program borders on
safety because of some of the services that they have continued to provide the
County. So this is one, again, that I just don't know where the 14 percent
reduction comes in from. And I think it is a lot more deserving than to have been
reduced to that extent. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I agree with the Council
Chair Mateo. Especially for East Maui they did, what a great program to remove
all the vehicles and, and stuff alongside Hana Highway which is where all the
tourists drive to see East Maui. So, yeah, I too agree that, you know, I certainly
would have liked to at least keep them at a level funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We would all love to do that. . . .(chuckle). . .
Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, there's two others that Chair left on this first
go-around, and the first one is Maui Choral Arts Association. They had $25,000
funding in 2009. I know they made a request for 2010 and. . .total cut.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair Maui Choral Arts Society received $25,000
last year, and I believe that their request to the Department this year was for
$50,000. Unfortunately, we did not recommend funding for this agency. We feel
like the choral arts are an important part of our arts in our community, they lift
our spirits. But really we tried very hard to focus on those services that address
the three priorities that I mentioned to you earlier, and it was regret that I could
not recommend funding for this agency at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions in regards to that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is the ARC of Maui, 50,000 in 2009
and no funding this year.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The ARC of Maui received funding last year
with, for help with acquiring property for a group home residence in Maunaloa on
Molokai. Their request to the Department for Fiscal Year '10 funding was for
$43,000 for furnishings for that home, and the reason that the Department did not
recommend funding for that is because the home is not yet constructed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Medeiros?

Thank you.

Members, any questions to that?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. You know I, I was able to
get them a place in Hana because they wanted to go to Hana, and we did get them
a place. And they provide, you know, a really necessary and needed service that
for places like Hana there's, you know, no other place you can go to get that kind
of service. So disappointing that, you know, they're doing such a good job in
Hana and I know in other areas that we reduced them to, you know, zero. So
yeah, it's, it's kind of hard to swallow sometimes when we, when we don't, you
know. . .take in and, you know, something like this for, you know, the health of
people and, you know, we look at other places and kind of, you know, have some
programs that are not so much for the health or benefit of people, but kind of little
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bit, a bonus kind of program. So anyway, I just wanted to, you know, express
that. Thank you.
MS. TSUHAKO: This-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair I, my reaction was pretty
similar to Member Medeiros' until I heard the explanation of what the $50,000
was for. So it's kind of a one-time thing.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. They requested $50,000 which we granted to them last year
which they, the funding was used to acquire the land. But this year their request
was for furnishings and since there is no structure to furnish.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (chuckle).. .
MS. TSUHAKO: I didn't, I didn't see that that was an immediate need that needed to be
funded this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you for the explanation. 'Cause, of course,
I was very dismayed to see no money for the ARC of Maui 'cause, you know, of
what they do. I understand your rationale. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, can the Director tell us, the County provided the
50,000 for land acquisition. And earlier you had indicated that your Deputy had
assisted them in construction plans with the Maui Contractors Association. Is the
Director aware of this, this home actually getting ready to be built or it's nowhere
in the horizon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. RIDAO: Councilmember Mateo, as you, you are aware they got $350,000 in CDBG
funding.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And that monies was for. . .?
MS. RIDAO: To construct the home.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, okay.
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MS. RIDAO: And they have made application for affordable housing funds to
complement that, and they have been approved for USDA grants as well as loans
to construct the home. So they're in a good situation. Like Director Tsuhako
explained this morning, they are program people, they do excellent program,
they're not construction people. So that's where we wanted to get them the
assistance in helping them to actually get the house to construction.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. No, thank you. And, and, you know, just for
information purposes I was aware of the CDBG funds which allows them the
opportunity to build the home. So it's not like the home is not being built,
Madam Director. The home is in preparation and ready to be built and it's not
going to take, you know, a fiscal year to build this home on Molokai. So I'm just
going to let you, you know. . .I'm going to put this $43,000 back in the budget
and it will be balanced out of the Department's administrative or operations.
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, just...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Just one second question. So ARC Maui
never had any funding for operations of, of the programs they run in different
areas of the County?
MS. TSUHAKO: I've not been aware of a line item to ARC of Maui for their regular
operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So no grant money for operational needs? There
was no grant request? So this request was strictly for furniture?
MS. TSUHAKO: For furnishings for that home on Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, interesting.
MS. TSUHAKO: And I, and I think a small percentage of it was also for administrative
costs.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So but otherwise, as far as the other sites that
they operate such as in Hana, there was no request for operational funding
support?
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MS. RIDAO: Councilmember Medeiros, if I may, Chair'? . . .(end of tape 6B —
6:16 p.m). . . are covered by what is called Medicaid waivers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: So they get a very good appropriations every year from Medicaid. Each
client, I believe, gets a very. . .I cannot give you the exact amount, but it's enough
to cover their operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, I appreciate that information, that
clarification. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everybody okay with that? Page 2, Salvation Army.
Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair This line item is for $150,000 which remains
constant from Fiscal Year '09. And it provides, it will provide service to
homeless clients. The Salvation Army in particular provides much, many services
to unsheltered homeless with food, clothing, referrals to healthcare, mental health
treatment and substance abuse treatment. These funds will go toward case
management and counseling as well as provide some assistance with their
homeless outreach program in which they send a care van as well as outreach
workers into areas known to be frequented by homeless individuals and try to
bring the services to them and work with them, establish a rapport and then
hopefully convince them to go out and seek the services that they need to better
their, their lives.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just one question. Ms. Tsuhako, did you say earlier
in some part of your comments or presentation that Salvation Army was not a
grantee at one point?
MS. TSUHAKO: I did say that Salvation Army was not a grantee of the RAP program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.
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MS. TSUHAKO: They're not one of the four agencies that participate in that program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, Madam Director, so they get no additional fundings
from other sources like Sufficiency Program or any of the other Homeless
Programs that's all, I don't want to say all, but some of these seem to be
subjective in nature of who we're servicing?
MS. TSUHAKO: They do not receive any other funds from the homeless allocation.
Salvation Army does get funds directly from the State of Hawaii to help support
their homeless program. They also received assistance last fiscal year with the
purchase of a new van which they do their outreach work in, because after the
storms in December, 2007, their van was damaged and they were not able to use
it.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So but they, would they be considered appropriate in
additional funding through the other sources of homeless funds available through
these, your listing of grants?
MS. TSUHAKO: They, they would be.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: They would be. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fast question. You know when they do their Christmas bell
ringing, do you know how much they take in here on Maui?
MS. TSUHAKO: I do not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh.
MS. TSUHAKO: We, we could certainly ask.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, and then if all the money stays on Maui. Thank
you. The next one is Grant for Services for the Frail and Elderly. I think we
touched bases on this sometime this morning. . .oh, no, this afternoon, early this
afternoon. Ms. Tsuhako?
MS. TSUHAKO: I would be open to questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, yeah. I, I guess when you ask for services
for our elderly, for the frail and elderly, what--and I think I know some of them,
but this is for all, the various aspects such as respite care and all the other kinds of
services that people come in and help these elderly and frail people, you know, as
far as cleaning service, I mean helping them maintain their, their qualify of life.
Yeah, I guess is the best way I can put it. Is that correct?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct. The, the Office on Aging contracts these funds out to
provide a safety net of services for our elders. So funding goes to agencies like
Hale Mahaolu for personal care, to Maui Adult Day Care for their day care
services as well as Saturday respite, Family Support for caregivers and Sun
Downing Program. Funding also goes to MEO for homemaker, housekeeper and
chore services; to Na Hoaloha; the Maui Interfaith Volunteers for friendly
visiting, telephone reassurance; also transportation and chores sometimes come
out of there. Na Puuwai from Molokai receives some of these funds for their
attendant care services program. Kaunoa receives funding for assisted
transportation as well their nutrition program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So a big, a real broad specter [sic].
MS. TSUHAKO: A broad a spectrum of services are paid for with these funds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, very good. That's one of those
programs too I hate seeing a reduction. Let's see what we can do as time goes on.
Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tsuhako. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, no question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I just want to second
Member Victorino's comments. I hope we can find more money for this 'cause I
know that there is not enough money to take care of the needs of the frail and
elderly. And since we're all going there rapidly, we better watch this money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that last comment.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know we getting closer than others, but let's not
get pushy, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No talk about Danny like that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next is Lanai Women's Center. Ms. Tsuhako.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Lanai Women's Center is the only
Federally funded clinic on that island. They provide primary healthcare to, to
Lanai residents. They're requesting funding for preventive health services,
communicable disease testing, counseling, treatment, outreach and case
management. And they have a wish to be able to provide dental care, perinatal
care and mental health services as well. We're recommending funding in the
amount of $45,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just a quick breakdown. How much of
this funding goes to salaries versus operations or programs?
MS. TSUHAKO: According to my calculations, 28 percent of the requested funding will
go toward salaries.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then the remaining goes direct to
operations or programs?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't have that breakdown, but I would assume those are the only
other two services to which those funds could be applied.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Do you know if they leverage on grants?
MS. TSUHAKO: I have not had a lot of direct involvement with Lanai Women Center,
but because of their, their status as the Federally funded clinic on the island, I'm
assuming that they get Federal funds and that they're--I know they have a new
executive director and they're, they're trying to create a strategic plan to get more
funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is National Kidney Foundation.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The National Kidney Foundation, Maui office
provides a service to approximately 5,000 of our residents about the prevention
and education around kidney disease. They serve residents in all, in all three
islands of our County. They target the high-risk groups and they do early
detections and screenings, and educational services within the community and
intervention services to reverse or slow the progression of chronic kidney disease
which is very prevalent in our community. We are recommending funding in the
amount of $30,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And it just had a get-together, not get-together,
but, you know, prevention program at the Queen Kaahumanu Center this
Saturday. Lot of folks from the health industry helped coordinate this screening.
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Like you, Chair, you know, we just had the opening
of the Hana Community Dialysis Home on Saturday. And having spoken to
people dealing with kidney disease and the requirement of dialysis, it's become I
think, as the Director say, very prevalent in our communities, and this is a
foundation that does a lot of good work in trying to get education out to people
and try to prevent, you know, people from having to have dialysis. So I, I just,
you know, hope that somehow we can fmd money to restore, you know, the cut
because this is, you know, a, a funding for an organization that can mean, you
know, not going on dialysis or it can mean, you know, a life and death situation
for people that have to be on dialysis. So, I think this is really important for us in
our community and throughout our County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I'll pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next set of grants are for disbursements for
Early Childhood. First one is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for
Infant/Toddler Care Program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair The Department actually worked with MEO's
Early Childhood Program Director to look at the funding levels that were needed
to operate all of their early childhood programs in totality. So you may notice that
some of the MEO line item grants remained constant while others took
reductions. The, this particular grant is in the amount of $79,275, and, and it
would propose to provide full day child care from, for children from 12 months
old to 3 years old while their parents are working or in school. In this way we
view this as a, a promotion of self-sufficiency for families so that parents are
allowed to work and know that their children are being well cared for. Head Start
is a, is a program that also encourages parents to get involved in their children's
education. So we support, ask for your consideration for this amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Madam Director, could this have come out of the Self
Sufficiency Fund?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't believe so.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next program is Early Childhood/Child Care
Programs. Director?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Our Early Childhood
Programs/Child Care grant subsidy in the total amount of $95,000 has remained
constant from Fiscal Year '09. The, I believe that the staff member from Good
Beginnings, Melanie Padgett was here last week to testify about how this fund is
used strategically along with other resources available for child care and early
child, early childhood services to help the greatest numbers of parents possible.
Administrative fees which run through Maui Family Support Services, as I
explained earlier, are only 5 percent. In Fiscal Year '08, 24 families received
assistance from this fund, and in Fiscal Year '09, they're anticipating that 40
families may, will receive child care subsidies through this appropriation. So we
would ask for your consideration in keeping this appropriation at level funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I concur and hope we can do that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. You know between the program before this,
the Maui Economic Opportunity Infant/Toddler Care Program and this program,
do both programs have the component of education besides child care?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, Mr., Councilmember Medeiros, this Early Childhood, Early
Childhood/Child Care Program is actually subsidy based. So the program
specialist works with the families to determine eligibility and determine what,
they help them with the grant subsidy to allow the children to stay in a certain
child care situation or certain preschools or if they need to move to a different
one. So it, it only involves education to the extent that the program specialist
works intensely, not just with the family members but also with the other
coordinating agencies to make sure that the family can be taken care of for as long
as possible through this program and then moved on to other programs, like the
Pauahi Scholars or Child Care Connection when those become more appropriate.
So we've been making more efficient use of the County grant subsidy.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And is our County early childhood agency a
part of this?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That's not Good Beginnings, though, is it?
MS. TSUHAKO: Good Beginnings is actually, the staff member is paid through Maui
Family Support Services -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. TSUHAKO: --as the, as the fiscal agent.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: So our Early Childhood Resource Coordinator, Kaina -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. TSUHAKO: --works very closely with, with Melanie as well as with a group of
other specialists in the field of early education to help determine the best usage of
these child care subsidies.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and the MEO's Head Start, that's,
that's education and child care?
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MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. I believe MEO does a fair amount of education with the families
who participate in the Head Start Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So as far as this grant, Early
Childhood/Child Care Program, I'm glad your Department, Ms. Tsuhako, you
were able to keep it at a level funding because it's certainly an important program.
Thank you.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Similar to the senior programs,
I think early childhood programs are very important in this County that they get
one early start in their life. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai is the preschool
on Lanai. Department is recommending funding in this line item in the amount of
$80,750. The preschool provides a nurturing, educational learning environment
for children aged 2 to 6. They serve as a resource for the community
for. . .regarding early, early childhood education. They provide tuition assistance
and parenting workshops, and they are an accredited preschool.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Madam Director, is that the
only accredited preschool on the island?
MS. TSUHAKO: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And then the enrollment has increased? 'Cause
I know we had a lot of testimony out in Lanai. I can't seem to recall, but from the
Department's perspective enrollment is going up, yeah?
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MS. TSUHAKO: I, I don't think--I wasn't at the Lanai meeting, but from what I
understand, the enrollment doesn't, hasn't necessarily gone up significantly.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. TSUHAKO: They're still well within their accreditation ratio of students to
teachers.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And because this is basically the
only accredited preschool on Lanai, you know, for me, Mr. Chair, I have no
problem if we need to consider an adjustment as well. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I listened to the folks on Lanai also and there were many,
many pleas to support the preschool essentially because there are not a lot of
choices. But I think with this early childhood education segment we may want to
take a look at this should we get lucky and be able to do that as well as the
elderly. Chair, I share your feelings.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair, I would like to just
recommend that we do a level funding for this program, because it is the only
provider of early child education on the island of Lanai. I think part of the issue
for, for their enrollment had in part to do with space, you know, so it might
require a larger space to meet their, their requirement for, for the school, and then
the other might be staffing, you know. So, but with what they've done for what
they have, I think they, they're pretty, you know, satisfied. But I would like to
advocate for a level funding for them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I too after being on Lanai
and in previous budget cycles, you know, this is a really important school there.
And, Department, and maybe the district representative from Lanai can also
answer. But you said this is accredited, the only accredited preschool, but is it the
only preschool on Lanai? Or does the DOE have one?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe the DOE is required to have one for those children who
qualify for DOE preschool. But I don't know if any other privately -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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MS. TSUHAKO: --operated preschool.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So this might be the only private one -MS. TSUHAKO: I believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that's accredited? Which is, it's good. So I, I too
would probably work towards making it level funding somehow. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki? Chairman Mateo?
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for
Molokai Summer Program. Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This proposed grant will provide services,
early childhood services during the summer months to Head Start preschool
children on Molokai, which will also allow their parents to maintain employment
or educational endeavors. Priority for this service is to children who are going to
kindergarten at the end of the summer and with, and to children who have special
needs or who have teen parents or meet income standards.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, one of those that I would hope that we can
put back the funding if we can fmd it. But thank you, Chair, that's. . .no
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Madam Director, do you know how
many kids participate in this program and whether the summer program has a wait
list?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe the program serves about 20 children, and I do not know if
they have a wait list. Perhaps, Ms. McNeff does.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. They can, they can get back to us at a later date. Thank
you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman, Mr. Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Chairman for Housing and Human Concerns, so.
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have the same concern about preschool on Molokai as I
do for Lanai and, frankly, everywhere. So again we would like to restore these
monies if we can find some. You know the Molokai Head Start serves children
that are special and, and need to have this opportunity. So, I would be looking
and hoping we can find some more money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for
Head Start Afterschool Programs.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair Through this grant, MEO proposes to serve 60
children, age 3 to 5, with comprehensive education while their parents at work,
attending their educational needs or in job training situations. There's eligibility
for Head Start services. Families must be eligible via their income or be at high
risk or have a child with special needs. This program actually provides funding
so that the Head Start, which I think normally ends at noon, can go through the
rest of the day which would allow parents who have full-time jobs or who have
full-time educational needs can keep their children in a safe place. The
Department is asking for an allocation of $174,775 for this service.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question, Ms. Tsuhako. How many of these
families are single parent?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I don't know how many are single parents.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I'll get that information from MEO.
Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair Madam Director, why the
26 percent reduction?
MS. TSUHAKO: Mr. Molina, as I explained earlier the, the Department worked with the
Early Childhood Program at MEO and determined that some programs could take
a larger reduction because they had other sources of funding, or I think as is the
case in this program, they're planning to reduce services by about 25 percent.
And so it was, it was a coordinated, a way to look at the entire early childhood.
And I know that Ms. McNeff spoke late last week about making a request to the
County for certain levels of funding and then having them decrease by a little.
And, and there were, I think there was an occasion for the Molokai program
where that actually happened.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for further expounding on that. I
wasn't quite clear initially. But thank you, I appreciate the response. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nothing for now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. This program is, is not on Lanai?
MS. TSUHAKO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: This is only here on Maui island?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not on Molokai as well?
MS. TSUHAKO: Molokai has -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Another program?
MS. TSUHAKO: --another program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member, you're done? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions at this time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next program is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
for Head Start Summer Program. Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The, I think my figures are wrong. The Head
Start Summer Program proposed, the proposed program will provide child care
for preschool kids on Maui, allowing their parents to maintain employment or
schooling. This, this program is for children who are age 3 to 5 years old, who
come from low income families or children with special needs, or those who have
teen parents. Priority again is given to children who are attending kindergarten at
the end of the summer. Requested funding in the amount of $95,760.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Why the cut?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: There's no justification that I heard from you about
why the cut.
MS. TSUHAKO: We worked with the MEO staff to try and see where they projected
reductions in, in what they could request from the County, and this was one of the
areas that was identified in conjunction with MEO. The, I, I'm not sure about this
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specific program, but I believe that many of the MEO early education programs
were proposing cuts in service, even. . .well, asking for the funding that was
recommended at this level.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Lori, you know, you mentioned another program that
was projecting cuts in service. Was that because of money that they were going
to see a shortfall in? What's the reason for cuts in service?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that that, that was why is because the agencies, I think MEO
tried to prepare a budget that was minus 10 percent. And we looked, tried to look
at the entire picture of early childhood programs that are run through that agency.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I, I just want to have an understanding that when
you say cuts in services, it doesn't have to do with an agency wanting to do it, it's
because you're--I don't like to use the word dictating--but you're saying, hey, you
got to cut. So what's the outcome? And the outcome is cuts in services. So, I
think we need to have a clear understanding that that's what is occurring, that one
more family that needs these programs to continue and stay fully funded are going
to be eliminated, and therefore a lot of these parents may not be able to work that
may want to work. So it's nothing against Administration. It's whether we here
in this County are going to punish those families whose parents may want to
work but cannot afford child care, Mr. Chairman. And so it's an area for me that
hits down in my heart just because. . .what is, what are we in government doing to
sincere people that may not have the resources? I don't want to wield
punishment, and I feel that this is what is occurring in some of the core kind of
services. So that's my spit for now when I see some of these cuts in early
childhood.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .yeah, because I got, I think more about it and it's
like you're bringing children into this world, and it's not that government's
supposed to do it, but the kid gets cheated again. So then we, we look at why
some of our teenage kids or whatever get into trouble here. They're not getting
the initial start as they come into the world, in Maui County especially. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. I, I share, you know, your sentiments
in regards to programs involving early childhood and to look at reductions of
26 percent, 29 percent, 9 percent, it's hard, it's hard. Hopefully we can, you
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know, collectively do something about this. . . . (end of tape 7A — 6:47 p.m.).. .
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to ask the
Department, the Head Start school programs, whether it's after school, summer
program or a regular program, MEO administers all Head Start Programs?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Throughout Maui County?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So. . .and then can you tell me how many
private nonprofit preschools we fund? We know there's Lanai and, you know,
we, we know the next one coming up is another one, but are those just about it
besides Head Start?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right. Thank you for that information.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and these Head Start Programs when you
look at the criteria, you know, family, single-family parent, low income. So these
are the kids that need to be taken care of. Next one. Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair I have the same
concern as Member Nishiki in terms of what you presented to us, Director, and
that's the, the fact that the, that MEO is proposing cuts in service. What was real
clear in, in our public meetings throughout Maui County for all of the MEO Head
Start Programs, we have had overwhelming testimony from the, the clients that
receive the service, who are very much in need of the service, but are really
appreciative of the service. But I, I think that they're under the impression that
somehow we're involved in making the cuts, but you presented to us that the
agency is seeking to reduce service. So, so there's not, there's a disconnect there
`cause I think their impression is very different from what we are hearing you say,
you know. So how do you reconcile that, that, you know, that difference in
statement that they are under the impression that, that we're cutting the services,
but you presented that they are reducing services.
MS. TSUHAKO:
The, the way that I would explain that to you,
Member Kaho'ohalahala, is that because of the budget forecast and what was
asked of the Department in terms of crafting our budget, agencies were asked to
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consider submitting requests that were 10 percent lower than what they received
in Fiscal Year '09. And so some agencies did, other agencies submitted requests
for more money, other agencies submitted requests at level funding. And it was
up to the Department to take a look at those requests in its totality and to try and
craft a budget that met both the needs of the community in terms of social
services, in terms of services to our most vulnerable as well as the parameters that
are set up by the Administration for the type of budget that we submitted.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. If, if you're saying that they were
requested to come back with a, at least a 10 percent reduction, then as we're
looking at the, the changes here that are being presented to us in terms of, of cuts,
you know, you've got a 26 percent, you've got almost a 29 percent. So how does
that figure out in--you said that they had difficulty in coming, in making a
10 percent cut so. . .in one of your statements, that MEO tried to prepare a budget
at 10 percent, but you're saying that they had difficulty doing that?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, I did not say that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So-MS. TSUHAKO: What I said was that we, the Department staff worked with MEO's
Early Childhood Programs to take a look at what the funding needs were for each
of those individual programs for which the County has historically provided
funds. And to try and. . .for example, we didn't do an across-the-board cut
because we were told that some programs needed to have that level of funding in
order to be able to stay open. And so we tried to accommodate that as best we
could given the other restrictions and constrictions that the Department was faced
with.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So these higher percentages of
cuts then were due to?
MS. TSUHAKO: The higher percentage in cuts were due to some, somewhat due to
what the agency presented to us as their needs in certain programs. So some
programs you'll see remain constant, did not take reductions at all. Other parts of
their program took more than a 10 percent cut, and I think, if I did the calculations
correctly, some of the reductions that were made from the amount that was
requested was done by the Department so it totaled more than 10 percent if you
added all the programs together.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Because this particular program is
a 29 percent reduction.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Correct. And, and I believe that the amount requested by the agency
for that particular program was $95,760.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And again when you're saying the
agency made that request for 2010, you're saying that this is what the agency
itself has determined that they could get by with then?
MS. TSUHAKO: They, I, I believe MEO tried very hard to comply with the request to
reduce their budget request to us.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this is an MEO request?
MS. TSUHAKO: MEO requested $95,760 for this program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So when the clients come back to
us and we say the agency requested it to be reduced, so therefore that's why your
programs are all being reduced. I just want to understand that that's, that's what's
really happening here, or is it because we're asking for the reduce, you know, and
then the agency is forced now to come back with a 30 percent cut?
MS. TSUHAKO: I think that's true. That because of the budget constraints and because
of the information that everybody has known about in terms of what our revenues
look like, as I said, I think MEO tried very hard to come in with requests that
were within the guidelines that were set up and they tried very hard to do that.
And so, yeah, it is their request, but they're basing their request on some
parameters that were set up based on what we, what we anticipated our revenue
situation to be for Fiscal Year '10.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Now as we're going through the
rest of this we're talking of applying that same kind of philosophy across the
board, the policy?
MS. TSUHAKO: In terms of the reductions?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: In terms of how we're going to deal with
reductions.
MS. TSUHAKO: Well, as I said, Member Kaho' ohalahala, some agencies came, made
requests to the Department that were at level funding. Other, other agencies made
requests that were for more funds than they received last year and some were for
reduced funding. So we had a gamut.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just trying to make sense of,
make sense of that. So as we go through it, I mean, there's big changes and
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there's no changes and, and same, same philosophy, same, same parameters. So,
thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and I think similarly that's the way the
departments did it, you know, taking away a lot of, a lot of their resources in
operations that, you know, hopefully it doesn't hamper the County.
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I've been listening to this exchange about whether it was
MEO's idea or the Department's idea and who needs what, and it's very
confusing to me. What I'm very concerned about is what the impact of this cut
will be on the services to the children. Does this mean that we're going to have
less hours in Head Start, less days in Head Start, so that we're going to impact the
parents who are, you know, in training, going to work and trying to, you know,
have their children adequately taken care of so that they can improve their lives?
And for me that's where it's about. And I don't know what the impact of these
cuts is and I think that's something that we need to know. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would like to request that from MEO.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah. I know this is one of the toughest areas to
review especially when you consider children. Department, Nisei Veterans
Memorial Center Preschool, dba Kansha Preschool.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Nisei Veterans Memorial Center
Preschool provides a very unique program that's inter-generational in its aspects.
They pair preschool children with the elders who participate at Maui Adult Day
Care Services. They provide services for children who are age 3 to 6. Their
learning experiences are focused on encouraging life skills based on respect,
caring, appreciation of diversity and service to others. And they provide, you
know, basic services that other preschools do in terms of language skills, math
and science concepts and problem-solving skills. The Department is
recommending allocation in the amount of $23,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pretty much the same concern, $5,000 in a 45, in a
$50,000 budget could be substantial. I don't know what the impact is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. My only comments on this is
that, and I asked them the question about, and I asked them this two budget cycles
away, ago and asked them if they were accredited. They said no and they said
they wanted to be, but the process was too costly and too time consuming for
them. So I'm thinking if the County provided money so that they could earn
accreditation, then the County would be relieved of some of this funding because
then they would qualify for financial assistance from other groups. So maybe,
Department, you can consider that. I don't know if the school requested funding
to help them get accredited, but I think if we invest now, we'll pay less later. Did,
do you know if there was a request to help them get accreditation?
MS. TSUHAKO: I do not know that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No?
MS. TSUHAKO: But I think that's a very good suggestion. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Department. Mahalo, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How many kids in this program?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm not sure, sir. I'm not sure how many children these funds are, are
serving.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'd like to fmd out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. That concludes the Grants and disbursements for
Early Childhood. Members, before we go into the next set of programs, any of
you want to take a recess or do we continue on, fmish it up until 8:00?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Continue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, just one question. The original intent for
tonight, we're going to 8:00?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we're going to go through until 8:00? Okay. And if you
need to stretch your legs, make sure we get five Members in this -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in our Chambers. Okay. Grants and disbursements for
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment. First item is Ohana Makamae, Inc.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ohana Makamae is the sole provider of
substance abuse intensive out-patient treatment, substance abuse counseling,
client assessments, drug screening and sober living as well as aftercare programs
in East Hawaii [sic]. Proposed funding in the amount of $99,955 would serve
approximately 100 clients. Per capita share of that, that treatment is very, very
cost effective at $800 per client.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is East Maui, right?
MS. TSUHAKO: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair Can you tell me, Department,
what Ohana Makamae's request for FY 2010 was?
MS. TSUHAKO: Their request for Fiscal Year '10 was $99,955.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's their request or that's the amount that came
out after 10 percent reduction?
MS. TSUHAKO: That was their request.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That was their request?
MS. TSUHAKO: But they were, Ohana Makamae was one of those agencies that
voluntarily submitted a lower request than they were funded at last year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you know if part of their request was to cover
the operation of their sober living house that was established last fiscal year?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe part of these funds are projected for that use.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because what we funded for them or what was the
Mayor's Budget, the last budget didn't cover their sober living house because it
was brand new. And this Council was supportive of allowing my request of 20
additional thousand dollars for the sober living. So what you're saying is Ohana
Makamae did, this is their request for 2010 and that includes the operation of their
sober living house?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's what my review of the grant request says, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
- 192 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Substance Abuse Programs.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Substance Abuse, this substance abuse
allocation in the total amount of $730, $730,000 is also one of those large
allocations that are directed via strategic plan from the Director's office.
Currently there are several agencies who receive funding through this large
allocation. These include Aloha House's Interim Care and Detox Program in the
amount of $150,000, Aloha House's In Custody Program for $186,000, Malama
Na Makua A Keiki which is a gender specific treatment for women at $65,000,
the MEO BEST Reintegration Program at $65,000, and the MEO Ohana Family
Strengthening Program at $25,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can you, 150, 106 and then what was the
other, women.. .
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh, it's 186.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: One eighty six.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then that, is that 6 —
MS. TSUHAKO: Sixty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --65. How did you determine these
distribution amounts?
MS. TSUHAKO: Via the request from the agencies. The Department has a--historically
these funds were used to nurture new programs for the community that couldn't
necessarily get funding through the Community Partnership Grants or through
line items. And so the allocation was, was created so that the Department could
help agencies with new, innovative programs that maybe met specific needs that
weren't covered funding-wise by those other sources.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And you said that this comes
under your discretion then in terms of allocations?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. The, the agencies submit requests to the Department for funding
for, for this allocation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I just wanted to do. . .another
advocacy for the BEST Program, because I think I wanted to at least hear the
voices of the families and the individuals who took the, a lot of guts coming up
here and speaking on behalf of the program that has helped and assisted them to
find a better way in terms of transitioning into home. So is the $65,000 amount a
request that is going to be sufficient for their program?
MS. TSUHAKO: It is the amount that they asked for.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I have a difficult time
understanding what that means. But I would like you to increase that amount
since it's at your discretion, you know, add more monies there, because it's real
clear to me that by those people who testified on, on all of our islands that were
participants in this program, that they are really needing this help. So, I want to
ask for your support in that.
MS. TSUHAKO: We will do that, Member Kaho'ohalahala, and we'll work with, with
the BEST Program. They, I know that they get funding from other sources as
well. And this request that they, they made to the Department I think, if I recall
correctly, was to continue a program they had started in the previous fiscal year.
Yes, we will work with them and see what their needs are and see what we can do
to help them, certainly.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to lend my support to the BEST Program also. It
was very gratifying to go around listening to the former incarcerated people who
came to share their stories and to listen to their families. You know when we
began the BEST Program, we were sure that, that this was something that needed
to be done, and after all the years that it's been going now--I can't even keep track
of, I think it's maybe six or maybe more since it began--we're seeing the results.
And to me the, you know, the proof of the pudding is in the eating and we're
seeing that it does make a difference. And I know that, you know, there's many,
many other needs, but, you know, there's some things that I think we need to do
in our community and, you know, until we rehab our brothers and sisters who
have been lost along the way, they will continue to be concern for us. So we've
got to invest our money in this and I, I think it's really a great thing and I know
it's a tight year, but anything anybody can do is helpful.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The last item on that particular grant area,
Coalition for Drug Free Lanai.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman The Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai
provides comprehensive strategy and broad-based approach to preventing drug
abuse in that community. They employ a three-prong strategy designed to reduce
risk factors, increase protective factors to prevent and decrease the use of alcohol,
tobacco and other drugs in youth, parents, in at-risk people and in the general
community. Department would ask for your consideration of a $45,000 allocation
for this program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Great program. We heard a lot about it on Lanai. Yeah.
In fact most of the testifiers who came to talk to us on Lanai talked about this
program. Its been around for a while, it's a proven thing. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next set of grants are Grants and
disbursements for Youth Centers and Programs. First item is Best Buddies.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair Best Buddies Hawaii program seeks to match
students with intellectual disabilities in one-on-one friendships with non-disabled
peers at five high schools. Their objectives are to create friendship, build
leadership skills and build social skills in the intellectually disabled, build social
skills for the intellectually disabled. Department is requesting funding in the
amount of $66,000 for this program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And I think this is one of those
programs I also will try to see if we can find some more money. This has done a
lot of great things for, you know, a partnering of students that have challenges
learning and other students who have the ability to share their manao with them
and really make their self-esteem rise. So, I think this is one of the programs I
hope to find some money as we go through this program, but, you know, we'll do
our best we can. Thank you, Ms. Tsuhako. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Madam Director, does the Best
Buddies program receive any type of State support? Because the, the clients, they
deal with the special need students in our, in our schools, public schools. Do they
receive any type of State funding?
MS. TSUHAKO: Councilmember Molina, I don't have their grant application with me,
but I don't recall seeing any funds from the State for this program.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is Youth Centers and you can find
that information on 10-24 of the Program Budget. . . .Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Youth Center, Youth Center
allocation--actually I think it gives a much better idea on Page 10-27. What
happened was the total allocation for youth centers was reduced from 1 8 million
to a proposed $1.74 million. And the calculations that are shown on 10-27 had to
be redone, because I probably pressed the wrong button on my spreadsheet. And
if you look on the bottom under funding for current, expansion or new programs,
you'll see in the Fiscal Year '10 request an amount of $84,003. That was a
mistake by me and so what we had to do is we had to redo the Youth Center
allocations to reflect a lower total amount of allocations, and each of the youth
center budgets was reduced by approximately 3.3 percent. And then we have, we
have new totals that match up with the total amount of our requested allocation
for this fiscal year.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you're going to provide that to the Committee?
MS. TSUHAKO: I can provide that very easily. Would you like me to do it out loud or
just submit this whole sheet?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, maybe submit the whole sheet.
MS. TSUHAKO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Mr. Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so the ones we have in our book is incorrect
then and that's, and that's the bottom line?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. I, we had to redo the totals because that $80,000 had to be
reprogrammed into the budgets being allocated to each of those youth centers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So you'll be giving that us, to us as soon as
possible?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I'll wait for that. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Tsuhako, I just wanted
to know if you or your Department took into consideration when the reductions
were made whether that youth center had any alternative for the children to go to.
And the reason I say that, in Hana we just have that one youth center, and if it's
reduced in the same way as a youth center in other parts of Maui that have other
youth services and programs available, it would seem a little unbalanced and
unfair for Hana to get the same percentage of cuts but have no place else to go.
You, you have any comments on that?
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MS. TSUHAKO: Member Medeiros, the, the new allocation amounts for Fiscal Year '10
for Youth Centers were reduced across the board by that 3.34 percent. So it was
not done individually by youth center, and I think you make a good point.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because, you know, in Central Maui they
can go to Boys and Girls Club, they can go to other youth programs, but in Hana
they only have this. So, I just ask for your consideration the next time. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I just want to ditto
Member Medeiros.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to support my two colleagues that are asking for
special consideration for Hana and Lanai. On the day after our Budget hearing I
spent the morning with parents, a bunch of parents, and they were all telling me
how bad it is now that the swimming pool is closed and there's no theatre and
there's really nothing for their youth to do; that they're finding that this is really
not a good situation because there's no supervised activities for these older youths
and, you know, with, people with idle time on their hands, my mother used to say,
are not playing, praying the rosary. You know, they're getting into all kinds of
stuff. So if we can find a way to provide something, it would be very helpful.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next, Alu Like — Kahua Ola Hou — Molokai.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair We're actually going to be requesting the
removal of Kahua Ola Hou in the title of this line item, because that program no
longer exists as an Alu Like program. Alu Like previously did a residential
program as well as an outreach program in the schools to do prevention. They've
experienced some challenges with their residential program and actually are not
doing their residential portion of that program any longer. That is reflected in the
decreased amount of funding being recommended. The $25,000 being
recommended by the Department is strictly to pay for the outreach services that
go into the school to do the substance abuse prevention work and no longer the
residential portion of the Alu Like Program.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, it's not 500 percent but 83 percent.
Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. So, Madam Director, we're, we're going to delete
the entire line?
MS. TSUHAKO: Just the title "Kahua Ola Hou" because that specific program doesn't
exist anymore.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. So you're replacing it with what?
MS. TSUHAKO: With, with Alu Like.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Just Alu Like? Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: Molokai.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. And, and the $25,000 that was strictly their in-school
service cost that they're, they're asking for?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So just a question. And this program
previous, in previous fiscal years then existed and there was a residential
program?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, there was.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And the only thing that's changed is that
no longer is a home in which there are clients?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. Because of some internal issues that happened with the agency
and, and their staffmg, they had a long period of break where they weren't
. . .(end of tape 7B — 7:18 p.m.). . . through its grants management division
meetings with Alu Like as well as I've had meetings with their CEO to talk about
this funding, and they're trying to ramp up to recreate another residential
program, but at this time they don't have that to offer. So we're proposing to just
fund their work in the schools to do prevention.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Incorporated.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike is a building program in
Hana that provides hands-on construction skills through a training program for
youth in Hana. The request to the Department for $45,000 is being recommended
for funding. The proposal is to have the youth in this program, who are mentored
by master carpenters and others who are very well versed in the construction
trades, actually provide assistance in fixing the homes of eligible elders out in
Hana. So we viewed this as a, as a safety and shelter issue for those elders who
would receive the benefit of having their homes retrofitted and fixed so that they
can be safe within them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Great program. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
-201 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Department, for this
funding and the recognition of this program. You know, this program was
recognized on national TV, and just on Saturday the Governor came to Hana
along with the Mayor. And this program did a lot of the improvements and
repairs to the Hana Community Dialysis Home, and the Governor did go to Hana
School to look at the other buildings that this program had built, including the
bamboo structure, the arts barn, many classrooms, and as you indicated they had
built many things for the seniors in Hana. So thank you for this funding and for
that recognition, Department. Thank you.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass. . . .0h, I'm sorry. I said pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is the Youth Programs.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Youth Programs are a separate allocation,
excuse me, that again is the applications are taken in by the Grants Review
Committee, reviewed, scored and funding is recommended by that body. If you
look on Page 10-27, a list of the current grantees is there along with the proposed
reduction in the funding amounts given the, the amended total of $147,250
requested by the Department for this allocation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: What is the, the Brain Gym?
MS. TSUHAKO: Brain Gym is a--oh, I don't see that program here. Excuse me, but do
you see that under Youth Programs?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. That's a grant program.
MS. TSUHAKO: Oh, okay. Oh, sorry. I was looking in the wrong space. I need Brain
Gym at this hour.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We all do. . . .I've been brain dead for the
afternoon.
MS. TSUHAKO: Everybody stand in line. The Brain-ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
MS. TSUHAKO: Brain, Brain Gym Program I think is a, is a program that tries to
maintain positive thinking, and I think it's a series of exercises and other things
that are meant to generate, you know, more clear thinking. That's the best I could
do at this hour, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Clear enough. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let's see, BEST Program, more money.
No.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, I'm not familiar with this program,
that's why I'm, I'm asking. Yeah. But I mean there's a substantial amount
compared to the rest of these programs. So, so clear thinking is all they do?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm sure they do more than that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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MS. TSUHAKO: I, I've not gone through this program myself. But I, I know that the
program is also offered to elders and troubled youth.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Who administers this, this
program?
MS. TSUHAKO: The agency is called Giving Back and I'm not very familiar with them
to be honest with you. We could, Department would be happy to provide you
with that information.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just curious.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that, that's part of the GRC process, right?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, Mr Chair, I just wanted to offer some historical
information for Member Kaho'ohalahala and Director Tsuhako. I believe this, we
first gave appropriations to this program I think one, two or three terms ago, and
the founder of this program, if I'm correct, a lady by the name of Karen Peterson.
And as the Director mentioned it's also, I guess a series of brain exercises for the
elderly as well as the youth. So, I just wanted to lend that. So Karen Peterson, I
think, she lived out in the North Shore area and I just wanted to provide that
additional information. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that information. I think all nine of us can make
use of that particular program. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanted to ask the Department because like
Member Kaho'ohalahala, I'm not familiar with the first one. Do they coordinate
playground playing or playground construction?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that, that Community Links has actually been involved with
fixing the playground in Haiku that was damaged by vandalism, I think, or by
age.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is that the one at the-MS. TSUHAKO: Giggle Hill.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Maui. Oh. Okay. So the funding is for what, for
materials or for their coordination of resources?
MS. TSUHAKO: Member Medeiros, I'm not familiar with this. This grant is
administered. . .well, the, the proposal and the request goes to the Grants Review
Committee and I don't get those directly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.
MS. TSUHAKO: So, I don't get a chance to review those. The Grants Review
Committee does that for us.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So this all comes from that Committee?
MS. TSUHAKO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it doesn't go through your review then, that's
why?
MS. TSUHAKO: The Grants Review Committee reviews the proposals, scores them and
then makes recommendations to the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tsuhako. Mahalo,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is Big Brothers-Big Sisters of Maui.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair Big Brothers-Big Sisters of Maui provides a
mentoring program for high-risk youth. They pair adults and older youth with
- 205 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

teenagers and younger children for an in-school program. They propose a holistic
model to address dropout rates, delinquency, substance abuse and teenage
pregnancy prevention. They have both community-based as well as site-based
programs for their pairings. The Department is recommending funding in the
amount of $100,700.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this, this money is basically used in regards to
their program's operations, not so much for the operations of the youth centers,
right?
MS. TSUHAKO: Approximately 57 percent of the, of the original request which is $150,
$150,000 that they requested was set up for staffing. So it provides staffing -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: --to assist in running these programs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Running the programs itself?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Because I know we have money set aside
for the youth centers themselves and that's different, that's a different funding
source.
MS. TSUHAKO: It is a different funding source, Member Victorino, but they didn't, Big
Brothers-Big Sisters does not get funding as under the category of Youth Centers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MS. TSUHAKO: This is a separate program altogether.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Separate altogether? Okay. Thank you. And I'm,
thank you for that clarification. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions. Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one is the Lahaina Tutoring Project.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Lahaina Tutoring Project is a project that's
been funded for several years now. It provides after-school tutoring for children.
It's run, I believe, by volunteers in the community in Lahaina. We would ask for
funding in the amount of $5,400.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So what does this pay for? What does
this amount pay for?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe that the amount of funding that we give them pays for some
of the snacks that the children are given when they come for the tutoring program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And do we know how many keiki are
served by this?

- 207 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

MS. TSUHAKO: The agency did not provide that information to us, but I could find that
out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So as far as you know this amount
is mainly just for snacks then?
MS. TSUHAKO: It's for snacks and other incidental expenses that are associated with
the tutoring itself.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And the tutors are all volunteers?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe they are, adult volunteers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Adult volunteers. I was just interested to
see because. . .if you can, if you can bring information, I'd be happy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Just to ask you, is there income criteria to
qualify for this?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't believe there is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On behalf of the students, of course? And so how
do they select if they have over the amount they can take? How do they make
their selections of students?
MS. TSUHAKO: I, I don't know that, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't believe that they do an income, income standards for help. I
think it, a lot of their work depends on simply having the students who want to get
the help be offered it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And my, my question is because there's
taxpayers' money involved in this and if there's more students wanting to be part
of the program, but they only can take so many. My question is how do they
make that selection to receive this taxpayers' money?
MS. TSUHAKO: I do not know.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you find out and-- 208 -
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MS. TSUHAKO: Sure. I'd be happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'd appreciate that information.
MS. TSUHAKO: I'd be happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Volunteer Center — Project Graduation.
MS. TSUHAKO: The Volunteer Center's Project Graduation provides funding to
various high schools. The high schools have to apply for funding. It's up to
$5,000 for Project Graduation events. These Project Graduation events are geared
toward helping our graduates remain drug and alcohol free as they celebrate their
emancipation from high school. We're happy to say that after last year's Budget
hearing there was much more interest generated in Project Graduation, and for the
first time Molokai High School is participating with us this year, we're very
happy about that. And it's an effort that's generated by the schools among
parents and teachers and advisors as well as by the students themselves to provide
an alternative to going out and having a big alcohol-consuming party for their
graduations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. This, Mr. Chair, this program I can speak
very much for because my two sons were a part of it, and I have seen many other
youths that have graduated enjoy a great graduation and live to see the next
morning. We've lost too many. This is one of the things that I can
wholeheartedly support. It is all good. So thank you. And thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
- 209 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2009

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is this, is this funding. . .because I think
there was a request on Molokai at our public hearing asking for funds for Project
Graduation. So is this a source of funding that they can apply for?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. But I believe the, the application deadline may have already
passed, but we, we can certainly check or they could contact the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Because I think that they, they
were trying to, to bring the program back again on Molokai? Yeah.
MS. TSUHAKO: Molokai High School did make an application for these funds.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: They did make?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Hawaiian Kamalii, Inc.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Hawaiian Kamalii, Inc. is a summer program
for at-risk youth. It provides leadership development, cultural enrichment,
education and dispute resolution, peer mentoring as well as cultural education.
The students who participate in this program help with the eradication of invasive
species. It's a summer program, as I said. We are requesting funding in the
amount of $20,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Department, is this program associated with
Hawaiian Canoe Club?
MS. TSUHAKO: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It is? Okay. This is the program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Is this the first request for funds?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MS. TSUHAKO: No.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is the second.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. 'Cause I'm, I mean my sheet just shows the request on
'10.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mistake. Mistake.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, okay. So '09 there was a request for the same amount?
MS. TSUHAKO: In Fiscal Year '09 I believe they requested --211 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty thousand.
MS. TSUHAKO: --$25,000. They, they were funded at $25,000.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Page No. 3. Grants in Budget Ordinance,
Keiki Kokua.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Keiki Kokua provides support to foster
families in the County with social-emotional support, practical assistance and
outreach to these families as well as to adoptive families and those who have
children in guardianship status. This includes grandparents who are raising their
grandchildren. The agency provides social events for the children and the youth
in the families. They have a respite care network, they do outreach, they produce
a newsletter and a kokua line that helps to provide information and referral to
other services in the community. The Department would ask for funding in the
amount of $20,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. It's one of these programs if there's any way
we can fmd additional money to restore it, I'd like to do that. But beyond that I
can support it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Madam Director, perhaps you can
provide clarification 'cause I'm a little confused with Keiki Kokua. From the
onset the request was for bags to help these youngsters who go from house to
house because of foster parent needs. During the public testimony stages we
heard a lot of references to the creation of scholarships for the adult children
going to Maui Community College. So can the Department tell us specifically
what these monies are used for?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair Mateo. The, the bulk, 75 percent of the
money that's requested by this agency is to provide staffmg. And I think they
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have one paid staff member. And I did hear about the, the testimony that was,
that was somewhat nebulous about the use of these funds. We did check. The
Department's grant to this agency does not pay for scholarships to MCC for any
former foster children. And we clarified that with the Executive Director, and she
noted that the, I think there was a statement made by a donor to the agency talking
about those scholarships, but that no County funds were used to provide
scholarships to foster children.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Department, can, can you give me the rationale on
the 25 percent cut for this particular grant?
MS. TSUHAKO: Part of the rationale was, Member Medeiros, that it again did not fall
within the, the realm of our stated priorities for funding, food, shelter, for safety.
This agency primarily provides support services to this select group of, of people.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right, which foster kids, right, that are placed in
homes because they have no shelter or, or they come from homes that are abusive.
One, one thing I'd like to say about this group is that they're one of few that we
have seen that have come in for County funding and have within a short of period
of time innovatively created their own thrift store which is revenue producing for
them which they use to fund, you know, the other parts of their program and
benefits to these families that the County funding won't fund. So, I just would
like to make that known. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for
Youth Services.
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MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair MEO's Youth Services provides after school
and out of school. . .excuse me, provides after school and out of school positive
youth development programs. They provide training and life skills, career skills,
service learning, entrepreneurship as well as acculturation. The youth services
program provides drug prevention education which encourages the youth to make
good decisions and to empower them to control their own destinies. This service
provides this help to youth between 6 th and 12 th grade. They do a lot of outdoor
experiential learning activities. The Department would ask for your support for
an allocation of $200,000 to MEO's Youth Services.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Of course, I'm sure MEO will be grateful for the 200,000
but $50,000 is a pretty big whack. So I'll keep my eye on that and see if we can
find any more. It's a wonderful program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions. Just my support for my colleague
Baisa in that respect.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next set of grants under Housing and Human Concerns are
Grants and disbursements for Facility Improvements. Maui Family — YMCA.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Department is not making a
recommendation for funding for the Maui Family — YMCA.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: May I ask why? . . . (chuckles).. .
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe the agency came in to this body last fiscal year and received
funding in the amount of $250,000 for a Capital Improvement Project.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct.
MS. TSUHAKO: This year their request to the Department was for half a million
dollars, and I just did not have the money to give them half a million dollars for a
new facility.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tsuhako. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I believe we gave them half a million dollars
in 2008 also. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Cameron Center.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The J. Walter Cameron Center, as we all know,
provides housing for about 20 nonprofit agencies in our community, including
many who receive funding from the County for their operational expenses. The
Cameron Center has requested funding to assist in the repair and the maintenance
of their aging facility and in particular with removing mold and in renovating
bathrooms and improving their energy efficiency. Their request for funding
seemed appropriate in terms of the health and safety of the users of the center.
The agency is also looking into other funding sources, such as CDBG and the
USDA as well as through private foundations to complement the $240,000
allocation which is being recommended for them for this rehabilitation project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And perhaps to the Director, the request
for $240,000 for virtual maintenance and upkeep of this building, this building is
a County facility?
MS. TSUHAKO: It is not a County facility.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Who owns this building?
MS. TSUHAKO: J. Walter Cameron Center.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And how, how did it come to be that they're leasing it from the
County?
MS. TSUHAKO: They're, they're leasing the land.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: They're leasing the land from the County?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And we charge them what to lease the land?
MS. TSUHAKO: I believe their lease rent is a dollar a year.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: A dollar a year?
MS. TSUHAKO: In the existing lease.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So food for thought for the Department. I believe the
era of a dollar a year rentals becomes more complex. I think you have to help us
to find additional monies, and the dollar a year does not contribute to $240,000 in
needed repairs.
MS. TSUHAKO: Agreed.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nothing else to be said. Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that's all for the Department of Housing
and Human Concerns in regards to their grants. Did I miss anything? No? Okay.
Members, if you note, fiscal year, the total amount that was granted by this
Department was $10,738,000 and for Fiscal Year 2010 it's $11,158,000. So there
was an increase of $420,000 as, as indicated.
So, Members, we will continue tomorrow morning in regards to the Office of the
Mayor, Economic Development. So. . .Chair is going to call it a night.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Don't you dare.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can't we continue? No. Chairman, let me just say-ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He can continue by himself.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, I want to, I wanted to ask-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Since you're Vice-Chairman
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .you can come over here, you can continue until midnight.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, I wanted to ask the Department for, for feedback.
Because throughout the last number of years whenever we dealt with the
nonprofit organizations there was always a question of the term "double-dipping",
double-dipping in terms of requests, if not through this source, there's another
County pocket. So there's different entities that goes the gambit of the different
departments. Can the Department provides us comment in the double-dipping
process? Because even throughout these projects that we, we heard, there is still
discretionary authority within the Department in the larger sum grants, yet you're
still allowing additional compensation or additional monies to the same
organization that didn't actually, we didn't see as a request. It's a discretionary
thing of the Department. So can you comment on double-dipping?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: I will. Thank you, Chair Mateo. Double-dipping, I think, if we could
describe it in simple terms, is when an agency asks for an amount of money from
one source for one, for a specific program and then asks a different source for
more money for that specific program as well. I think what might be seen in our
budget is that different agencies have asked different sources but for different
programs, and that's how I would distinguish that. I think we, the Department has
tried very hard to curtail the practice of having agencies get line items for specific
programs as well as funding through the Community Partnership Grant process
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for the same program, so same service. So we've, we've worked very diligently
to try and reduce the incidences where those requests are mirrored for the same
program but from different sources.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So it is same program, different sources?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah. So it would be like, for example, if, if I ran a program to help
Mr. Pablo and I went to you and asked you for money and I wrote out a whole
budget, and then I went to Member Baisa and asked her for complementary
amount of money for the very same services without, without showing that I'm
getting funding from you as well as from her.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Members, have a good night's sleep. We'll see
you tomorrow morning. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for
April the 13 th is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
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